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……. Synopsis of evolution of Credit Bureau Industry

Economist Paul Henry Nystrom credits the panic of 1837 as the 
impetus to the rise of the credit bureau industry. In his 1919 
book "Economics of Retailing," Nystrom details how collection 
problems resulting from bankruptcies and business closures led 
to the establishment of the first credit information bureau in 
1837 which was the first of its kind, giving birth to an entirely 
new industry focused on the underlying factors of granting 
credit. 

Initially, it was established to serve wholesalers who desired 
information concerning out of town merchants interested in 
commencing trade. It was a few short years later in 1841-20 
years before the U.S. civil war-when the great abolitionist, Lewis 
Tappann founded the Mercantile Agency to offer credit services 
to businesses. 

For over 175 years now, millions of businesses have relied on 
these credit services to pave their path to business success.

Earlier bureaus were small and community 
based. Co-operative credit bureaus were 
known in some countries from the early 
1860s. They were originally organized 
to facilitate the exchange of credit 
information among merchants. These early 
credit reporting companies represented 
cooperatives efforts among creditors in a 
specific region and were operated solely for 
the benefit of its members. They typically 
limited their credit-related reporting to 
negative or “derogatory” information 
(e.g. delinquencies or defaults). They just 
maintained the list of customers who were 
considered by the merchants to be poor 
risks. For example, a group of retailers in 
a small town might have agreed to form a 
cooperative that kept track of customers 
who were considered delinquent by any 
member of the group. The individual 
merchants would then use this information 
in managing their own credit relationships 
with prospective and current customers.

1860-1930

Flashback: Origin
To help American merchants in their decision-
making, an enterprising businessman 
named Lewis Tappan began, in 1841, to 
establish a network of correspondents 
that would function as a source of reliable, 
consistent and objective credit information. 
His Mercantile Agency, located in New York 
City, was one of the first organizations 
formed for the sole purpose of providing 
business information to customers. In 1841, 
Abraham Lincoln joined the Mercantile 
Agency as the first credit correspondent. 
…………………………Rest is the History.
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1930-1965 1965-1990
The industry experienced rapid growth only after 
World War I. The people became more mobile 
and the credit bureaus expanded to serve a wider 
audience of dispersed merchants. The bureaus 
started collecting the information in a structured 
way. In addition to capturing name, address, and 
some loan information, the bureaus started scouring 
local newspapers for notices of arrests, promotions, 
marriages, and deaths. These notices would then be 
clipped and attached to a consumer's paper credit 
report. Requests or "inquiries" from creditors to see 
a particular consumer's information would also be 
noted in the report. These inquiries would indicate 
that a consumer was requesting credit. After World 
War I, the credit reporting business became industry 
specific in its focus. As such, bank-, retailer-, or 
finance company sponsored “bureaus” did not share 
loan or inquiry information with each other. This kept 
banks from knowing about loans or inquiries made 
by finance companies or retailers and vice versa. The 
situation limited any creditor's ability to understand a 
potential customer's entire debt situation.

The rapid development of computing and 
communications technology in 1960s & 1970s 
became central to the rapid growth of Credit Bureau 
industry. Apart from the technology, the political 
and market pressure that exerted themselves on the 
credit reporting industry played an important role in 
shaping the modern-day credit reporting industry. 
During the period, the industry harnessed the power 
of computers and databases to process, organize, and 
report on credit data. Those bureaus that adopted 
computer technology realized operating efficiencies 
that allowed them to move data faster and attract 
more business. This, along with the costs associated 
with migrating to computer-based systems, compelled 
smaller operations that were not yet automated to 
sell their files and exit the industry. As a result of this 
consolidation and in order to meet the demands of an 
exploding unsecured lending market, credit reporting 
companies started including lending activity from 
banks, finance companies, and retailers from wider 
geographic areas. 

1990-2010
The further innovation in computer technology and 
the development of various types of advanced office 
systems helped to fully computerize data-collection 
operations, providing the ability to link and analyze 
categories of information in entirely new ways, and 
to deliver information to customers faster and more 
economically. The high speed computers, digital 
networking and communications, powerful data base 
and storage systems, world-wide web, internet, email 
& messaging systems etc all changed the landscape 
of credit bureau business. The content, storage, and 
processing of credit reports changed dramatically 
during the period. More accurate information was 
electronically stored and the histories that were once 
read over the phone to an inquiring business were now 
transmitted electronically in a most secured medium. 
Overall, computer technology, market forces, and 
the supporting Regulations provided credit reporting 
companies with the impetus to transform themselves 
from "local associations" or “bureaus” to "efficient 
integrated systems” serving an entire society.

2010+
To say that technology has changed the world in just 
a few short years is something of an understatement. 
Technology is changing our world at an astonishing 
pace. Rapid advancement in machine learning, 
artificial intelligence and cloud computing in the last 
few years has opened up new vectors for the credit 
bureau development that completely foreshadows 
the technology base being used today. Cloud 
computing for the credit bureau industry is growing 
rapidly by providing highly effective Saas, PaaS and 
IaaS platforms to the bureaus. The Iaas platform 
is gaining popularity since the advent of hardware 
virtualization which has taken the technology world 
by storm. It has reduced the number of servers 
needed in a datacenter by having the ability to 
run multiple instances of Windows or Linux or any 
operating system on a single machine. VMware came 
out in front of this revolution and growing majority 
of datacenters use virtualization in production for 
not only servers but work stations as well. This reality 
that server or work station instance is simply a file on 
storage revolutionized how we think about computing 
and computing resources. According to Gartner 
study conducted in 2018 January, nearly 43% of the 
credit bureaus all across the globe have migrated to 
cloud environment and many are on the process of 
migration
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Top Row: Winner of the National Best Presented Account Award 2009
Middle Row: Winner of the National Best Presented Account Award 2010
Middle Row: Winner of the National Best Presented Account Award 2017
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Top Row: Winner of the National Best Presented Account Award 2011 [1st Runner Up]
Middle Row: Winner of the National Best Presented Account Award 2010 [2nd Runner Up]

South Asian Federation of Accountants Best Presented Accounts Award 2010 [2nd Runner Up] to Karja Suchana Kendra Limited
CEO Mr. Anil Chandra Adhikari receiving the award from Mr. Faruk Khan, Commerce Minister of Bangladesh, at Bang Bandhu 
International Conference Center in Dhaka.
First Nepali Company to win the Regional Award.
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Karja Suchana Kendra was established in 14 May, 1989 with the sole objective 
of improving the functionality of the country’s financial system. With an 
alarming proportion of the Non Performing Assets (NPAs) in the economy, 
it became imperative to arrest accretion of the fresh NPAs in the banking 
sector through an efficient system of credit information on borrowers as a 
first step in controlling NPAs. In this context the requirement of an adequate, 
comprehensive and reliable information system on the borrowers through 
an  efficient data base was felt by the Nepal Rastra Bank, Nepal Government, 
Credit Institutions and other players in the banking and financial sector of the 
country. The answer took shape when Karja Suchana Kendra was incorporated 
under Nepal Bankers Association in 1989 as a non-profit organization to 
provide vital credit information service to its member institutions, in order to 
allow them to make informed and objective credit decisions.

Kendra’s operation was initially guided by the NRB directive which was 
insufficient. Many litigation cases followed against Kendra that challenged its 
very existence and its legality for blacklisting and disclosure of information. 
Legal challenges, poor compliance, and inadequate enforcement led to 
strengthen its regulatory framework. NRB came out with new amendments 
to consolidate the functioning of Kendra and gave a legal framework for its 
operation through Nepal Rastra Bank Act 2002, Section 88. It was reorganized 
as a public company in order to strengthen its autonomy and increase its 
operational efficiency. It was renamed as Karja Suchana Kendra Limited and 
got registered as the Company in September, 2004 under the Company Act 
1997 and started its operation as an independent and autonomous entity 
from March 2005.

Brief about 
Karja Suchana Kendra Limited 

(Credit Information Bureau)

Karja Suchana Kendra Limited a.k.a Credit Information Bureau Limited (CIBL) in English is 
referred interchangeably as “Bureau” or “Company” further in this document. 
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Historical Milestones

20041989 2002

2004 2005 2007

2010 2011 2012

2013 2014

2016 2017

Established the Credit Information 
Bureau as a Non Profit Organization 
under Nepal Bankers Association

NRB Act 2002 (B.S 2058), Section 88 
and subsequent NRB Bylaws related 
with the Credit Bureau promulgated 
in 2003 provided the legal framework 
for its operation. 

Registered as the Limited Company 
under Company Act 1997 of the 
country.

21 Commercial Banks; 4 Development 
Banks and 45 Finance Companies 
joined the Bureau as its founder 
shareholders.

Started its Operation as an 
independent company. Data 
Collection and Credit Report 
Dissemination were all manual.

Started collecting the borrowers’ 
records online. (Phase I)

Automated the whole credit 
bureau system. Implemented the 
indigenously developed on-line web 
based system for data collection and 
credit report dissemination. (Phase 
II)

Bureau’s modernization project 
initiated. Singed an agreement with 
World Bank for its consulting support 
in the modernization of the Bureau.

Bureau awarded the contract to 
Messrs. Dun & Bradstreet Information 
services for the development of 
Application Software for Commercial 
& Microfinance Credit Bureau 
System.

Bureau got the Grant from 
Asian Development Bank for the 
procurement of Infrastructure 
(Hardware, system software & other 
logistics) for the implementation of 
Microfinance Bureau system.

The Ministry of Finance empowered 
CIB to implement Secured Transaction 
Registry Service. 

STR regulation prepared and 
promulgated by the Ministry of 
Finance.

Launched new commercial Credit 
Bureau System (Silverblade), 
Microfinance Bureau System and 
Secured Transaction Registry System.

Karja Suchana Kendra Limited a.k.a Credit Information Bureau Limited (CIBL) in English is referred interchangeably 
as “Bureau” or “Company” further in this document. 
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Legal & Regulatory Framework

• Operates through Provisions made in Section 88, NRB Act 2002.

• Pursuant to Section 88(2) and exercising the power granted under Section 110(2) of NRB Act 2002, “Nepal Rastra 
Bank Credit Information Bylaws 2003” were issued.

• Pursuant to Section 88, NRB Act 2002 and exercising the power granted under NRB Act Section 79 and Credit 
Information Bylaws 2003(7), NRB Directives No 12 was initially issued for the effective regulation of Credit 
Information Bureau relating with credit information management and Blacklisting.

Some Provisions of the Act

• Mandatory requirement for all members to receive credit reports before any new credit extension, renewal, 
restructuring, and/or rescheduling of NRs1million or above facility.

• Credit Reports only to members, central bank or to any institutes as recommended by the Central Bank.

• Mandatory requirement for all members to report to CIB in prescribed formats within stipulated time for any 
credits of NRs1million or above facility.
 

• Mandates the bureau to inspect and supervise the member Banks & Financial institutions to check their credit 
reporting to the bureau.

    
• Maintain a list of borrowers referred to as the Blacklist. CIB lists the borrowers in blacklist only upon the 

recommendation of Banks and Financial Institutions.

• Penalties for not reporting data or reporting false/inaccurate data.

Karja Suchana Kendra Limited a.k.a Credit Information Bureau Limited (CIBL) in English is referred interchangeably 
as “Bureau” or “Company” further in this document. 
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Initial Shareholding Structure during the time of Bureau Formation

• Shareholding structure as per the Articles of Association of the company:  

Commercial Banks: 65%; Development Banks: 10%; Finance Companies: 15% and Nepal Rastra Bank: 10%. 

Entities Numbers Total Stake

Commercial Banks 21 65%

Development Banks 4 10%

Finance Companies 45 15%

Nepal Rastra Bank 1 10%

Total Shareholders 71 100%

Shareholding Structure as of 074/075

The number of shareholders has been reduced in the recent years because of the mergers of various financial 
institutions in the country. This has resulted in the change of shareholding structure as well. As of the end of the year 
074/075, the shareholding structure and the number of shareholders are as follows.    

Entities Numbers Total Stake

Commercial Banks 24 76.17%

Development Banks 5 5.53%

Finance Companies 19 8.27%

Nepal Rastra Bank 1 10.03%

Total Shareholders 49 100%
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CIBL Shareholders by the type of Financial Institutions

Central Bank

Commercial Banks

National Development  Banks

Nepal Rastra Bank

Rastriya Banijya Bank Everest Bank Ltd.Nepal Bank Limited

Kumari Bank Ltd. Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd.NIC Asia Bank Ltd.

Laxmi Bank Ltd. Agriculture Development Bank Ltd.Machhapuchhre Bank Ltd.

Prabhu Bank Ltd. Himalayan Bank Ltd.Siddhartha Bank Ltd.

NABIL Bank Ltd. Century Bank Ltd.NMB Bank Ltd.

Civil Bank Ltd. Citizens Bank International LimitedBank of Kathmandu Ltd.

Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. Nepal Credit & Commerce Bank Ltd.Nepal SBI Bank Ltd.

Janata Bank Ltd. Sunrise Bank Ltd.Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.

Finance Companies

Srijana Finance Ltd. Himalayan Finance & Saving Co. Ltd.United Finance Ltd.

Shree Investment & Finance Ltd. Nepal Finance Ltd.Central Finance Ltd.

Lalitpur Finance Ltd.Multipurpose Finance Ltd.

Guheswori Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd.Crystal Finance Ltd.

Synergy Finance Ltd. World Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd.Best Finance Ltd.

Gurkhas Finance Ltd. Nepal Share Markets & Finance Ltd.Progressive Finance Ltd.

Goodwill Finance Ltd. Capital Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd.Samjhana Finance Ltd.

Om Development Bank Ltd. Kailash Bikas Bank Ltd.Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd.

Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Ltd.Dev Bikas Bank Ltd.

(Please refer to page number 111 for the share details of shareholders)
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Vision
• …….Develop Kendra as a world class bureau in terms of Products, Services & Standards and establish it as a 

change agent and major catalyst in the growth of country’s credit market.

Mission
• Enhance the functionality and stability of country’s financial system by helping the member banks and financial 

institutions to make the informed, objective and faster credit decisions.

• Maintain a high quality data bank by adopting highest standards of technical infrastructure and security 
mechanisms thus measuring up to the international standard of excellence in credit information reporting. 

• Enhance the credibility in operations by adopting a moral and ethical data handling standards and protecting 
every borrower’s credit profiles.

• Consistently offer innovative solutions in credit information reporting by being responsive towards the market 
demands and changing customer needs.

Fundamental Operating Principles 

• Adhere to the principle of Neutrality & Non discrimination 
 (Equal Treatment; Facts Only)

• Focus on Accuracy, Currency and Completeness of the Information
 (Correct, Complete and Current Data)

• Security and Confidentiality of the Data
 (Secured Environment; Authorized Usage)

• Principle of Reciprocity in data sharing
 (Fair Information Trading Principle; Provide Data = Access Data)

• Efficient and Fair Dispute Handling
 (Right to review Credit Report and raise alerts for any inaccuracies or errors) 

• Build Trust & Credibility in Operation
 (Build Trust through reliability and consistency in Services)  
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Core Functions

An Organization that:  

i) Collects and Collates credit and financial information on borrowers of high tier lending institutions 
(Commercial Banks, Development Banks and Finance Companies) and lower tier Microfinance Institutions. 
(Microfinance Institutions & Financial Intermediaries regulated by Central Bank and the Co-operatives) 

ii) Compiles the information in the form of Credit Report and makes them available to the member institutions 
on request and to the borrowers to whom such information relate to.

iii) Operates as a filing office of secured transactions that register the security interests created on movable 
assets with a view to facilitate the distribution of credit to all sectors of economy and to the informal sector 
in particular.  

Other Functions & Responsibilities

• Implement and operate an advanced Credit Bureau System, Microfinance Bureau System and Secured 
Transaction Registry System using a state of the art technology and build a repository of high quality “credit 
information” data received from both formal and informal sector.
 

• Enhance the credibility in operation by installing a highly secured technical and physical infrastructure providing 
a user friendly and superior information availability service to the users.

• Adopt a moral and ethical data handling standards and practices to maintain the accuracy, integrity and 
confidentiality of the data.
  

• Facilitate member banks and financial institutions and microfinance institutions to make informed, objective 
and faster credit decisions thus helping contain the NPL level and improving credit grantor’s portfolio quality.

• Bring all the lending made against the movable assets by the informal sector into the formal sector through the 
use of Secured Transactions Registry and facilitate the SMEs, Micro-enterprises, Corporate and individuals to 
make the lending and create priority charges on them.  

• Promote a culture of information sharing and information based lending.

• Promote the public to strive for good credit reputation and build reputation collateral. 

• Increase the confidence of investors in the banking and finance sector which is vital for the development of the 
economy and for the well-being of society.

• Provide an efficient and effective credit information service and other value added services to the member 
institutions and consistently offer various innovative solutions in credit information reporting by being responsive 
towards the changing market needs.  

• Focus on good corporate culture, governance and practices.

• Invest in talent and develop the workforce that continuously strives hard to provide cutting edge solutions and 
services to the users.
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The Bureau will thus….

• Supplement credit growth without increasing risk exposures of credit grantors.

• Improves Access to Credit.

• Empower credit grantors to make more informed lending decisions

• Reduce costs to serve

• Facilitate in reduction of total non performing loans over a period of time

• Facilitate better credit terms for financially responsible borrowers

• Facilitate Regulators to manage consumer and business indebtedness, and ensure economic stability

• Create a healthy credit culture

Though the Kendra collects the data only from the financial institutions at present, Kendra intends to collect the 
data from the various other sources as mentioned below in the coming years to enrich its database.

Credit Bureau

Private Domain

*Commercial Banks,  
  Development Banks & Finance  
  Companies
*Leasing Companies
*Credit Card Issuers
*Firms providing Loans
*Retail & Merchants
*Public Utilities

Public Domain

*Courts & Immigration Authority
*Chamber of Commerce &            
  Industry
*Commercial Registry
*Law enforcement agencies
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Highlights of the Year 074/075

Rs.321,405,766
Operating IncomeRs.191,286,861

Operating Profit
Rs.200,129,988

Net Profit

59.5%
Operating Profit Margin

Rs.1,064,803,674
Total Assets62.3%

Net Profit Margin

Rs. 800,827,861
Shareholders Equity

25%
Return on EquityRs.709,100,000

Total Investments

18.8%
Return on Assets

Rs.344
Net Assets/shareRs.86

Earning/share

Rs.86
Earning/share

675,028
Borrowers in Database
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Key Performance Indicators

Particulars 070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075

Operating Income (Rs.) 140,554,040 170,464,648 207,386,390 229,899,182 321,405,766

Operating Expenses (Rs.) 18,347,248 19,309,758 46,395,553 49,929,323 130,118,905

Operating Profit (Rs.) 122,206,792 151,154,890 160,990,837 179,969,859 191,286,861

Net Profit (Rs.) 95,752,135 115,642,845 124,115,919 144,175,505 200,129,988

Total Assets 565,922,892 665,786,114 774,802,401 917,175,051 1,064,803,674

Total Liabilities 249,007,138 253,909,115 254,320,683 278,369,828 263,975,813

Investments 262,800,000 362,900,000 415,800,000 561,800,000 709,100,000

Share Capital 103,408,000 103,408,000 103,408,000 155,112,000 232,668,000

Reserve & Surplus 213,507,754 308,468,999 417,073,718 483,693,223 568,159,861

Total Equity 316,915,754 411,876,999 520,481,718 638,805,223 800,827,861

Ratios

Cost to Income Ratio 13% 11.33% 22.37% 21.72% 40.5%

Operating Profit Margin Ratio 87% 88.67% 77.63% 78.28% 59.5%

Net Profit Margin Ratio 68.12% 67.8% 59.85% 62.7% 62.3%

Net Profit Growth 25.3% 20.8% 7.3% 16.2% 38.8%

Return on Equity 30.2% 28% 23.8% 22.6% 25%

Earning/share (Rs.) 92.6 111.8 120 93 86

Return on Assets 16.9% 17.4% 16% 15.7% 18.8%

Net Assets/share (Rs.) 306.5 398.3 503.3 411.8 344

Credit reports 482,667 579,925 742,302 837,177 1,105,964

Total Borrowers in Database 193,915 276,367 360,017 445,614 675,028

Shareholders 64 62 60 51 49

Members 171 165 143 109 93

Staffs 23 22 21 22 21 
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Five Year Financial Summary (Year Ended 31st Asar/15th July)

Particulars 070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075

Assets

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 89,112,618 91,097,658 91,957,783 90,835,386 76,233,967

Intangible Assets 179,279,455 183,654,516 183,705,398 183,917,808 233,992,168

Deferred Tax Asset 1,006,004 1,002,215 1088,808 364,157 1,820,034

Total Non Current Assets 269,398,077 275,754,389 276,751,989 275,117,351 312,046,168

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 3916287 4,187,265 35,463,046 25,682,370 18,955,633

Trade Receivables 10139130 10,139,222 9,872,303 18,078,596 20,339,054

Prepaid Expenses & Advances 18,669,398 11,805,238 35,915,063 35,496,734 2,468,619

Financial Assets measured as amortized 
costs (FD)

262,800,000 362,900,000 415,800,000 561,800,000 709,100,000

Financial Assets held at fair value through 
profit & loss (Shares)

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,894,200

Total Current Assets 296,524,815 390,031,725 498,050,412 642,057,700 752,757,506

Total Assets 565,922,892 665,786,114 774,802,401 917,175,051 1,064,803,674

Equity & Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities

Retirement benefit obligation 2041665 1,909,055 1909,054 1,998,312 2,158,632

Trade & Other Payables 13,496.743 29,973,058

Deferred Grant/Fund from ADB 231,369,813 231,369,813 231,369,813 231,369,813 185,095,850

Deferred Tax Liability

Total Non Current Liabilities 233,411,478 233,278,868 233,278,867 246,864,868 217,227,540

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 15,595,660 20,630,247 21,041,816 31,504,960 46,748,273

Total Current Liabilities 15,595,660 20,630,247 21,041,816 31,504,960 46,748,273

Total Liabilities 249,007,138 253,909,115 254,320,683 278,369,828 263,975,813

Equity

Share Capital 103,408,000 103,408,000 103,408,000 155,112,000 232,668,000

Reserve & Surplus 213,507,754 308,468,999 417,073,718 483,693,223 568,159,861

Total Equity 316,915,754 411,876,999 520,481,718 638,805,223 800,827,861

Total Equity & Liabilities 565,922,892 665,786,114 774,802,401 917,175,051 1,064,803,674
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Five Year Income Statement Summary (Year Ended 31st Asar/15th July)

Particulars 070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075

Income from Operations

Service Charge 140,554,040 170,464,648 207,386,390 229,899,182 321,405,766

Total Operating Income 140,554,040 170,464,648 207,386,390 229,899,182 321,405,766

Operating Expenses

Staff Cost 10,222,564 10,667,795 13,122,757 14,434,572 18,929,391

General Administration Expenses 6,619,345 7,409,057 30,997,548 33,076,247 34,028,807

Depreciation and amortization 1,505,339 1,232,906 2,275,248 2,418,504 77,160,707

Total Operating Expenses 18,347,248 19,309,758 46,395,553 49,929,323 130,118,905

Operating Profit 122,206,792 151,154,890 160,990,837 179,969,859 191,286,861

Other Incomes

Finance Income 18,535,221 18,713,967 21,458,854 32,358,307 59,111,135

Dividend Income 100,000 150,000

ADB Grant Income 46,273,963

Loss on sale of assets 354,420 55,962 2,205

Profit before Income Tax 140,742,013 169,868,857 182,095,271 212,372,204 296,819,754

Staff Bonus 12,794,729 15,442,623 16,554,116 19,306,564 29,681,975

Taxation 32,195,149 38,783,389 41,425,236 48,890,135 67,007,791

Current Income Tax 32,278,490 38,779,600 41,511,830 48,165,484 68,687,218

Deferred Tax (Income/Expenses) (83,341) 3,789 (86,593) 724,651 (1,679,427)

Profit for the Year 95,752,135 115,642,845 124,115,919 144,175,505 200,129,988

The company remained a consistent performer all through out the five years period. The operating income 
increased from 140.55 million in 070/071 to 321.4million in 074/075 with a CAGR (cumulative average growth 
rate) of 23% where as net profit grew from Rs95.75million in 070/071 to Rs200.1million in 074/075 with a CAGR 
of 20%. In spite of the surge in operating expenses in later parts of the five years period because of the AMC 
and Depreciation expenses, the bureau maintained its net profit growth at the satisfactory level because of the 
additional revenue generated from the STR service and growth in interest income earned from the investments. 
Since microfinance bureau is still in the Pilot Run period, no revenue is earned so far from it. Apart from this, there 
were the reciprocal increases in the company’s assets, share capital, equity, investments that further strengthened 
the financial positioning of the company. The assets, equity and investments maintained the CAGR of 17%, 26% and 
28% respectively during the period.     
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Operating Income (in millions) Operating Profit (in millions)

Operating Profit Margin Ratio Cost to Income Ratio

Assets (in millions) Shareholders Funds (in millions)

Net Profit (in million) Net Profit Margin Ratio
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Return on Assets Return on Equity

Earning per share (Rs.) Net Assets per Share (Rs.)
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Performance Chart (in millions)

Net Profit Growth (in millions)
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Five Year Operational Highlights
•	 The major focus of the bureau throughout the period was to launch the three systems (commercial credit bureau, 

microfinance bureau and secured transaction registry) and establish them on the firm operational footing. The Secured 
Transaction Registry was launched at the end of the fiscal year 073/074 where as Silverblade and MF bureau systems 
were launched at the beginning of the year 074/075. All three systems were launched very successfully without any 
major technical or operational issues. The systems delivered the desired outputs and performance thus consolidating the 
bureau’s positioning as the provider of high quality credit information and registry services to the member institutions. 

•	 The Registry service was opened for all market segments thus enabling them to register their notices and create charges 
on the movable assets. The system was made very simple and user friendly so that any one with limited understanding 
of the computer can access the system and register the notices. Since it is a public registry, the information contained 
in the registry is kept minimal with limited information about the secured party, debtor and collateral. It takes only few 
minutes for the users to fill up the information and register the notices. Since the registry service was launched late in 
the year 073/074, only 33,180 notices were registered during the two months period out of which 96% of the notices 
were related with the prior transactions where as 4% were related with new notices. The year 074/075 saw 57,202 
number of notices registered in the Registry. 

073/074 074/075
Total notices registered 33,180 57,202

Increments 24,022

•	 “Credit Reports Issued” increased from 482,667 reports in 070/071 to 1,105,964 reports in 074/075 achieving the growth 
of 129% and CAGR of 23%. Despite the inconsistencies in annual growth with “increase” followed by “decrease” in each 
consecutive year during the period, the average growth remained quiet good and satisfactory. There was the big surge in 
credit reports generation in the year 074/075 because of the launch of the new credit bureau service that brought many 
advantages to the users that helped in the growth. Easy and faster access, user friendly system, improved credit report 
quality, increased borrowers’ records, increased number of Hit reports, growing banking business and lending volumes 
all contributed to the increase in credit reports.

070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075
Total Queries/ “Hits” 482,667 579,925 742,302 837,177 1,105,964

Increments 114,619 97,258 162,377 94,875 268,787
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•	 The number of borrowers’ records had an average growth during the period till the year 074/075 when it increased 
sharply by nearly 51% to 675,028 records. The reason for this massive inflow of borrowers’ records in 074/075 was 
because of the implementation of the Silverblade system that provided very secured and functional platform for the 
banks and financial institutions to upload their data to the bureau. The upload process was made effective by the use 
of FTP server that could seamlessly collect the data from the member institutions and Polling engine that would parse 
the collected data (file) and convert it into Silverblade format to load into database. Apart from the new records, the 
member banks also sent many pending (that were not yet sent to the bureau) records through the new IFF (input file 
format) that helped to increase the numbers.

Registered borrowers in Bureau’s Database
Year 070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075
Total borrowers 193,915 276,367 360,017 445,614 675,028

Yearly increments 56,141 82,452 83,650 85,597 229,414

•	 Microfinance Bureau which was launched together with new Commercial Bureau system in the beginning of 074/075 
saw a slow start during the period with only 51 microfinance institutions joining the bureau. The poor readiness 
level of many MFIs was the primary reason for their poor participation in the bureau. Approximately one million 
membership records and 0.8million credit facilities were registered and nearly 4,730 credit reports were generated 
during the period.

•	 The collection of all data and their quality remained the key concern of the bureau throughout the period. Prior to 
the launch of the Silverblade system, the bureau put all its efforts in collecting the data through its legacy system and 
implemented various control measures to check the sanity of the data before loading them into the database. The 
introduction of the Silverblade system eased the process of data collection and data sanity checks by the use of highly 
advanced software machines embedded into the system. The banks and financial institutions could upload their data 
to the bureau through FTP server which would be polled immediately thereafter by the validation engine for their 
sanity checks.   

•	 During the period, the bureau put all its efforts in improving its Help Desk service and addressing the various issues 
of the banks and financial institutions related with the services of the bureau. The issues dealt were related with the 
credit reports, information searching, billing and invoices, data uploads and the quality of the data. In order improve 
efficiency, the bureau implemented the multi-tired trouble shooting module that had the tracking capabilities of all 
the incoming issues raised by the users and deployed various tools and techniques to resolve them. The Help Desk was 
further strengthened by effective messaging and emailing component which brought huge efficiency in addressing the 
issues. 

•	 The bureau made major changes in its organization structure in order to bring efficiency and effectiveness in its 
operation. The bureau adopted a small and flat structure with few management layers and minor degrees of verticality. 
Fewer layers means fewer approvals in decision making, so decisions can be made faster and the company can respond 
more quickly to new ideas. It leads to better and more frequent communication among all the employees resulting 
in better understanding of company’s operational goals and issues. Employees are empowered and are expected to 
take responsibility for a range of decisions in their daily routines. Being an IT driven company with major functions 
revolving around the data analytics and application systems, the organization structure has been designed across 
strategic capabilities to maximize the organizational performance at the lowest cost.

•	 The bureau was equally focused on providing the regular trainings to the users about the new systems and services so 
as to make them familiar with their operations and functionalities and equip them with required knowledge and skill 
sets to access the service, upload the data, search the information, maintain the data quality, understand and analyze 
the credit report, raise disputes etc. The bureau also provided regular trainings to the Registry users about registry 
system and services, STR Act and Regulation and the contribution of registry service in the growth of the credit market 
and the economy.  
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Five Year ICT Highlights

Last five years had been quite productive for the bureau in terms of launching of the three major financial infrastructure 
systems of the country. It was a long way coming for the bureau from the manual system to indigenously developed 
online system to the highly advanced Silverblade system providing the services to all the financial and microfinance 
institutions of the country. The Secured Transaction Registry together with the Commercial and MF bureaus thus 
will be covering the entire credit market including both banking and non banking sector and will lead to develop the 
bureau as the repository of largest credit data in the country. The sharing of the information through these three 
systems will contribute immensely in addressing the sector specific problems such as information asymmetries, 
multiple lending, delinquent loans of the lending institutions servicing both the upstream and down stream credit 
market. 

071-072
•	 Development & Customization 

of the Silverblade application 
software for the commercial 
and microfinance bureau. 

•	 Development of the functional 
framework for the Secured 
Transaction Registry System.

•	 Strengthening of the legacy 
system on system security, file 
processing, data sanitization 
and response cycle time. 

•	 Further improvements on the 
physical and system security in 
both Primary & DR site.

073-074
•	 Preparation of STR regulation and its 

promulgation.

•	 Launch of the Secured Transaction 
Registry Service.

•	 Data Collection through new IFF 
(Silverblade) for both commercial 
and microfinance bureau.  

•	 Completion of all the customization 
activities for both the bureaus.

•	 Completion of UAT of Silverblade 
system.

•	 Parallel running of the legacy system.

075
•	 Launch of the New Commercial 

Bureau System. (Silverblade)

•	 Launch of the Microfinance Bureau 
System.

•	 Close down of the legacy system.

•	 Massive push on data collection and 
data sanity checks.  

•	 Corporate Restructuring
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New Ventures

New Ventures    Commercial Bureau    Credit Score (In process)
    Microfinance Bureau
    Secured Transaction Registry
    (All the above systems are already launched)

ICT
Systems   Credit Bureau (Web based online)  Credit Bureau (Silverblade) 

          Microfinance Bureau

  Secured Transaction Registry

Response Cycle Time  5secs (Average)     4secs (Average) 

Data Upload   Online             Online FTP server with Pooling Engine

Data Quality   Poor       Good  

System Security  Secured            Highly Secured (Layered Security)

Online Dispute Handling No      Yes 

Operations
No. of Credit Reports     482,667   1,105,964 

No. of Borrowers’ Records    193,915   675,028

Invoice Bills Collection     12.5 days   13.1 days

Account Receivables     3.4%    3.6%

Corporate Structure     Hierarchical   Flat

Number of staffs     23    21 

Summary of 5 year Performance
Year 070/071 Year 074/075

Financials
Operating Revenue     140.5million   321.4million 

Operating Profit     122.2million   191.3million 

Net Profit      95.7million   200.1million

Investments      26.3million   709.1million

Shareholders Funds     316.9million   800.8million

Total Assets      565.9million   1064.1million
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Bureau’s System Platform

The bureau, at present, operates three systems in parallel but independent of each using the converged infrastructure 
platform and provides high quality commercial credit bureau services and microfinance bureau services to the 
member institutions. Apart from this, the bureau also provides secured transaction registry services to the banks 
and financial institutions, SMEs, micro enterprises, corporate, individual lenders etc to register their notices of 
lending made against the movable assets and create charges on them.    

Micro Finance 
Credit Bureau

Commercial
Credit Bureau

Secured Transaction
Registry

Credit Information
Bureau

REGISTERED

The system employs a converged infrastructure where all three systems use the same infrastructure. The converged 
infrastructure centralizes the management of IT resources, consolidates systems, increases resource utilization rates 
and lowers costs of operation. Converged infrastructure fosters these objectives by implementing of computers, 
storage and networking resources that can be shared by multiple applications and managed in a collective manner 
using policy driven processes.

Silver Blade System rests upon converged infrastructure that provides services to 
Commercial Bureau, Microfinance Bureau and Secured Transaction Registry.

Silver Blade: Technical Platform 

Very Robust System with 
multiple layers of System 

Security  

Short turnaround time – Fast 
Data Processing 

Smart User Interfaces

Strong Business Intelligence 
Capabilities

Modular framework catering 
future products integration

Global Configurations

Powerful Data Validation & 
Matching Engines

Powerful Product & Pricing 
Engines

Very efficient & effective 
Admin Modules
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Data from Member Institutions

CIBL System Diagram

Commercial Banks

Microfinance Institutions

Secured Transactions Registry

Report/Data
Extraction Mechanism

Information Loading, Validating, Matching &
Identification Mechanisms

Credit Reports are disseminated on requests to members to help them evaluate 
their loan applications
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Every person is key to the success of this company 
and it is our collective passion that drives us to 

achieve the best. 

CIB FAMILY
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Silverblade System Engines

Polling: Polling is a windows service which runs in server 24x7. Poller engine keeps track of the 
FTP server on a scheduled basis and converts the submitted input files to the Silverblade format 
and moves them to the internal web/app server. 

Loading: This service handles the stage where the input files provided by the Data Providers 
are loaded into a Staging server.  An email will then be sent to the Data Provider providing 
the status of the Input File received by the Silverblade. The data loading process sends an 
acknowledgement mail to the data provider, uploads data into staging database and sends a 
status mail to the data provider.

Data Validation: The Validation Engine will verify the validity of the data in the Input Files 
submitted by the data provider to the Silverblade, based on predefined validation rules. 
Validation Rules are exhaustive Business Rules that are defined in the Silverblade Application for 
a specific Input File Configuration.  

Data Inference: This engine assigns a unique identifier called as Root Id for all records based 
on data provider identification number, data provider branch identification number and credit 
facility account number.  

Matching: The data loaded to the staging server will go for a match process before getting into 
the production servers.  The Matching Engine does this match and updates the existing records 
incase additional information are available through the new records. he matching  engine  
identifies  the  match  between  subjects  based  on  the  details submitted by Data Providers. 
The Matching engine  is robust and has multiple  levels including  Previous  Submission,  ID,  
Name  and  Address  and  Surrogates  (such  as Gender, Place of Birth etc.). This rigor in matching 
will help ensure the optimal “Hit Rate” to combine two or more records pertaining to the same 
entity. 

Major processes of the Silverblade System
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Business Architecture of the Silverblade System

Secured Transaction Registry



30 Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED 31Annual Report

KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Ms. Neelam Dhungana Timsina has over twenty years of experience working in the Central Bank of Nepal and 
currently holds the post of Executive Director in the Internal Audit Department of the Bank. She joined Nepal Rastra 
Bank in December 1997 as the Assistant Director and rose to the ranks very fast holding various portfolios in bank 
during the period. At the early phase of her career, she had the brief stint of six years in the Foreign Exchange 
Management and Bank Supervision Departments before moving to Research Department where she spent nearly 
10 years of her career developing strong conceptual and empirical fundamentals along with econometric tools 
and models that helped the Bank in making various policies and practices in strengthening monetary and financial 
stability in the country. Further, the experience of managing the district level office (Pokhara) of Nepal Rastra Bank, 
as the Office Chief, enriched her dynamic role in the Bank. 

Though a Central Banker by profession, she is an academician by her interest and has published many research 
papers related with the economic policy, economic growth, financial stability, liquidity management and various 
other subjects. Prior to joining the Nepal Rastra Bank, she was the Assistant Lecturer in Tribhuvan University for 
nearly two years and taught accountancy and finance to the post graduate students in the University. 

She holds the Master Degree in Business Administration from Tribhuvan University and Master in Economics from 
the University of Wollongong, Australia and is currently pursuing Ph.D from Mewar University, India. She has 
undergone professional trainings on various subjects in Nepal and overseas and has attended many national and 
international seminars and conferences representing the Nepal Rastra Bank during her tenure.

Neelam Dhungana Timsina
Chairperson 

Board of Directors
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Message from the Chairperson

I am pleased to present the Annual Report and audited financial statements of the Karja Suchana Kendra Limited (Bureau) for 
the fiscal year 2074/75. The year remained very productive and fruitful for the Bureau in terms of its both operational and 
financial performance where all three new services delivered the desired operational excellence and the bureau made the 
substantial net profit gain of 38.9 percent, the highest in the last five years. 

The Bureau offers multiple benefits at every level of the country’s economy which fuels economic growth, increases consumer 
access to essential resources and enables more efficient allocation of risk, costs and financial reserves. It helps consumers 
and small businesses obtain financing by offering timely, credible, and objective information on borrowers, allowing financial 
institutions reduce loan processing time and cost, while equally cutting default rates and credit risks.  These savings mean 
lower interest rates, making credit more affordable and available to those who need. The Bureau over the last many years has 
helped decrease the information asymmetry between borrowers and lenders, increase access to credit for a larger segment of 
population and reduce the general over-indebtedness in the economy. It has helped member banks and financial institutions 
make more objective lending decisions and reduce their portfolio risk, transaction costs and expand their lending business. All 
these activities help the Bureau to achieve its sole objective of improving the functionality of the country’s financial system and 
ultimately maintaining financial stability in the country. 

Introduced a year back, the bureau’s Silverblade system is a unique mix of advanced technology and application system that has 
been customized as per the local needs of the country’s banking sector. Equipped with dazzling engine cockpit and powerful 
business intelligence capabilities, it can process millions of data in a minute and generate highly inclusive credit report with both 
positive and negative data in it that not only provides more balanced and holistic assessment of the borrower’s credit history 
but also helps the lenders to tailor their products and services as per the needs of the borrowers. It helps the lenders to identify 
credit stress or over committal at much earlier stage, potentially restraining the growth of delinquencies and bad debts. Going 
beyond the traditional scope of the product portfolio and services, the new system is capable of offering value added products 
like credit scoring, alerts, fraud prevention and portfolio analysis to members whilst making it possible to expand services to a 
wider customer base including SMEs (Small & Medium Enterprises), insurance providers, retailers and trade creditors, which 
the bureau plans to roll out in future.

The strength of the Silverblade system lies on its converged application system which can be shared with the Microfinance 
Bureau (MFB). The MFB will be using the same Silverblade platform and application system to provide the credit bureau service 
to microfinance institutions. Both the bureaus will be running under the principle of reciprocity but independently of each other 
with separate functional parameters, data and credit report. The use of the same platform helps to optimize operating costs 
making it economically viable for the Bureau’s long term sustenance and growth. Though the microfinance bureau is still to pick 
up its momentum because of slower growth in number of microfinance institutions joining the bureau, it has huge potential 
to grow in the future with massive impacts on the economy. It can play an integral role in promoting financial inclusion in the 
country and can be a critical link to bridging the informal and formal financial sector. Against the backdrop of increasing multiple 
lending, over indebtedness, non repayment of loans in the sector, the bureau can help address such negative outcomes and 
help increase potential scale and depth of outreach and access to finance.

Secured Transaction Registry (STR) reform is slowly making its impact on the credit market of the country. Banks have been 
lending extensively against the movable assets and their total lending till the fiscal year end 2074/75 exceeded hundred of 
billions rupees. The MSMEs (Medium to Small Enterprises) and the Micro enterprises were the major beneficiaries and received 
nearly 90 percent of the total credits extended by the banks during the period. It was found that movable assets typically 
comprised a large percentage of assets of MSMEs which were left unused or remained “dead” so far until the STR reform was 
implemented in the country. STR provided the legal framework for the borrowers to obtain the loans against the movable 
assets as collateral, and for lenders to secure the loans and speedily repossess and sell them in case of any default. As a matter 
of fact, STR reform is not a magic panacea that is expected to grow an economy overnight of the country, but it certainly is an 
effective instrument that can promote economic growth overtime. Its full impact on economy can only be realized if it reaches 
to all target market segments that are in extreme need of credits. The bureau will be putting lot of efforts in the coming years 
to penetrate all the market segments and extend the service of the registry all through out the country. 
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Thus there is huge responsibility on the bureau to run three major financial infrastructures of the country which will have the 
critical role to play in the financial stability and economic development of the country. We understand the responsibility on 
our part and are committed to it. We are always focused to develop the company as a world class bureau in terms of products, 
services and standards and establish it as a change agent and major catalyst in the growth of country’s credit market. The 
bureau is about to emerge into an institution with the largest repository of credit data in the country. All the credit extended to 
the economy will be captured by the Bureau. With the volume of the data available with it, it can come out with various kinds 
of value added products and services that will drive the growth of credit market further. The bureau can turn into a one window 
solution provider for diverse areas of banking business in the country. 

Operation wise, in spite of liquidity crunch that severely affected the banking industry of the country during the period, the 
credit report growth shoot up by 32 percent from 0.83million reports in 073/074 to 1.1million reports in 2074/75. Similarly, the 
number of borrowers’ records increased by 51.5% from 0.45million records in 073/074 to 0.68million records in 2074/75. The 
Microfinance Bureau (MFB) generated 4,730.reports where as Secured Transaction Registry (STR) pulled out 57,202 reports. 
The MFB and STR services are slowly gaining its momentum and are expected to perform better in the coming years once 
the number of microfinance institutions joining the Bureau increases and the penetration of STR services among the target 
segments grows across the country.

With regard to financial performance, the company’s performance remained quite remarkable. The year saw the substantial 
growth in revenue from the core services (sale of the credit reports). Since the MFB was put on a pilot run, no revenue was earned 
from its operations. STR service earned the marginal revenue during the period. In spite of increasing operating costs because 
of AMC (Annual Maintenance Contract) expenses and Depreciation expenses of the new systems, the company managed to 
earn a good growth in its net profit which increased by 38.8 percent from Rs144.2million in 2073/74 to Rs.200.1million in 
2074/75. Looking at the fairly good performance of the bureau, I am pleased to announce that the Board has proposed issuance 
of bonus shares of 50% (1 share for every 2 shares held) in addition to a cash dividend of Rs. 25 per share (25%) for FY 2074/75.

Though all three systems have been successfully launched and running, there are lot more challenges ahead for the Bureau 
to establish them on a firm operational footing and meet all our operational targets. The penetration of MFB service and STR 
service all across the country is the major challenge that needs consistent efforts and planning. Nonetheless, the Bureau is 
prepared for the same and has developed the required plans and strategies to achieve the targets. We assure you of our deep 
commitments to meet all your expectations and develop this Bureau as a major catalyst in the economic development of the 
country.
 
Meanwhile I would like to thank all our member institutions, Nepal Rastra Bank, Ministry of Finance and other government 
agencies for their continued support to the Bureau. I also take this opportunity to thank all the Board Directors for their 
necessary guidance to the bureau during the year. I would also like to thank the members of the outgoing Board of Directors for 
their valuable contributions during their tenor. Their contributions, efforts and friendship will always remain with us.  

On behalf of the Board, I would also like to thank the Management and staff members of the Bureau for their dedication, 
determination and hard work that has helped this company to grow further each year. 

Lastly, I look forward to your continued feedback, cooperation, guidance and support in helping the Bureau to achieve its goals 
in the coming years.

Thank you.

Neelam Dhungana Timsina
Chairperson
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The bureau is governed by seven-person Board of Directors. The Board comprises a team of highly 
professional Bankers and Legal executives from banking sector who plays an instrumental role in helping 
guide and propelling bureau forward as we seek to create a world class bureau in terms of service and 
standards.

Mr. Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Chief – Legal, Shares & Company Secretary
KUMARI Bank Ltd.

Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha
Director

Head, Legal Department
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.

Mr. Swayambhu Shakya
Director

Company Secretary 
Goodwill Finance Ltd.

Neelam Dhungana Timsina
Chairperson

Mr. Subhakanta Kanungo  
Director

Deputy CEO
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd.

Sagar Sharma
Director

Senior Deputy CEO
Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Ltd.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khanal  
Director

Chief Business Officer
NABIL Bank Ltd.

Board of Directors
…… Steering the Organization to a sustainable Future
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Foreword from CEO

For Karja suchana Kendra Limited (Bureau), the year 2074/75 was a year of impact where all our efforts came to fruition 
with the successful launch and operation of three major financial infrastructure systems of the country. It was also one of 
our busiest years that kept us preoccupied addressing and resolving all the post implementation issues that emerged on 
the systems. With the introduction of the three systems, we are quite successful in our strategy of building out specialized 
businesses in vertical markets. At the Bureau, it is the sense of duty that fuels its engine. Year 2074/75 was no different as 
the bureau reaffirmed its commitment to creating a responsible and credit worthy society. 

The launch of the Silverblade system strengthened the bureau’s operational capabilities and provided robust, modular 
and flexible technical framework for its future growth. The new system has brought massive improvements in system 
performances such as response cycle time, data processing time, match and merge efficiency, validation and data 
sanitization efficiency etc. The quality of the credit report has been improved with both positive and negative data that 
displays the complete profile of the borrowers’ payment behaviors for the last two years. Access to both positive and 
negative information gives member institutions a more complete picture of a client’s financial commitments so they can 
make more informed decisions about extending credit. This will in turn reduce the default rate in the financial sector and 
also influence the reduction in the percentage of nonperforming loans. The Silverblade provides sound building block 
upon which the bureau can build various product portfolios required by the market in the future. Silverblade’s impact on 
bureau’s performance was observed in the number of the credit reports generated by the system which increased by 32% 
and exceeded more than 1.1million reports during the period. Similarly the borrowers’ records increased by 51.5% to the 
total of 0.68million by the end of the year. 

The microfinance bureau, which uses the same Silverblade application platform for its operation, grew slowly during the 
period with only fifty one MF institutions registered as members of the bureau. The reason for this slow growth was poor 
readiness level of many MF institutions to join the bureau because of their poor IT system, data quality, IT workforce and 
resources. The total number of membership records and consumer subject records increased to one million and 0.8million 
records respectively where as the credit reports generated were only 4,730 reports Against the backdrop of increasing 
delinquencies, multiple lending and over-indebtedness in the microfinance sector, MF bureau can play a significant role 
in addressing the above problems and promoting the financial inclusion in the country. Introducing an MF bureau will not 
produce all these benefits in a short period of time, nor will it be a ‘quick fix” for all the credit risks, but over time a bureau 
will help increase transparency, remove a degree of uncertainty among microfinance institutions, and provide the basis for 
improved assessment of credit risk. 

The Secured Transaction Registry delivered the high quality service during the period. Total of 57,202 reports were registered 
with the average registrations of 4,800 reports per month. Out of the total registrations made, 67% were in the SME sector 
where as 16% were each on individual and corporate sector. Though the service was opened for all (SMEs, MSMs, Micro, 
Corporate, individuals) to register their notices, major users of the service were commercial banks who registered more 
than 95% of the total registrations. Constrained access to finance has so far remained one of the major reasons for the slow 
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growth the SMEs in the country. Thus establishment of this Registry can have a strong positive impact on SME finance, by 
building greater transparency in the financial system, enhancing the rights of the creditors and debtors and providing for 
certainty in the priority scheme against 3rd parties, hence giving financial institutions greater confidence to lend against 
movable asset of SMEs. Thus with the three major financial infrastructures running in parallel and contributing its services 
to both upstream and downstream of vertical markets of the financial sector of the country, the bureau’s contribution 
to the financial sector cannot be overemphasized. It will play a huge role in facilitating financial inclusion by making way 
for people to move up in pyramid and enter the main stream credit market, in turn augmenting growth opportunities for 
entire economy. 

The bureau’s financial performance remained very good with 40.2% growth in its net profit as compared to the previous 
year. This is the best performance of the last five years. The reasons for the remarkable growth were the increased number 
of borrowers’ records, improved data quality which gave more Hit reports and increased lending of the banks. The bureau 
also made substantial income from its investments which increased by 26.2% to Rs.709million. The average interest rate 
in the fixed deposit accounts of the banks and financial institutions was very high during the period which resulted in high 
“interest income”. The bureau made the revenue of Rs29.9million from STR service which was distributed for five years 
as per the provisions of the STR Act. Since the Microfinance Bureau was put on a Pilot Run during the period, no revenue 
was earned from its service.

The operating expense (including depreciation) increased by nearly 160% this year because of the AMC, depreciation 
& amortization expenses which constituted nearly 78.2 % of the total operating expenses. The bonus and tax expenses 
increased by 39.76% to Rs.26.98million.and by 38.44% to 67.68million respectively as compared to previous year leading 
to the increase in Net Profit by 40.2% to Rs202.15million.

Since the legacy system was put in service till the year end to facilitate the users to cross verify the data of Silverblade 
system with that of legacy system, the bureau had the additional burden of running and maintaining the legacy system. 
The bureau ensured that the legacy system was maintained at the best level and delivered the desired outputs through 
out the year. The internal control system was also reviewed regularly. The control system was effective in identifying risks, 
detecting and preventing frauds and safeguarding the company’s properties both tangible and intangible. Because of strict 
performance measures applied all across the operation, no incidents of system outage, system inaccessibility, security 
breaches, data inaccuracies, wrong identifications, credit report errors were observed during the period.

During the period, the bureau was equally focused on providing the required trainings to the users of the banks and 
financial institutions on the systems and services. Trainings were organized on a regular basis all through out the year on 
a cyclical format. The objective was to equip the users with required knowledge and skills so that they can operate the 
Silverblade and Registry system with ease and without problems.

The bureau still has a long way to go. Though the systems have been launched, there are many challenges ahead for 
the bureau. One of the major challenges is to extend and expand the services of the microfinance bureau and secured 
transaction registry all across the country. The bureau’s good system & services will not be enough in this case which 
requires effective regulation from the Central Bank to put required thrust on the MF institutions to join the bureau. Apart 
from this, appropriate tariff, affordable service, trainings and technical supports are the few other areas that are equally 
important and need to be looked into as well. Similarly successful implementation of Secured Transaction Registry service 
requires a lot of awareness programs to be conducted all across the country in order to make people aware about the 
system and its benefits. Until and unless the service reaches to the target market segments (private lenders, micro, small 
and medium size enterprises), its benefits can not be derived and the purpose of introducing this service will be defeated. 
The successful operation of Silverblade system is no less a challenge for the bureau. Without collection of quality data at 
regular intervals, its full potential in delivering high quality reports and services cannot be realized. The bureau may lose 
the trust of the users if its credit report does not match with the quality standards as desired by them.

At the end, I would like to thank to all the member banks and financial institutions for their continued support to the Bureau 
and for their regular suggestions and feedbacks on our services. This always helps us to improve further on our services 
and provide better quality services to them. I also extend my deep appreciation to the company’s Board of Directors for 
their guidance and support to us all the time during the period. At the end, I would like to thank all my colleagues of this 
company who supported me all throughout the years to take this company to new heights. 

CEO
Anil Chandra Adhikari
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTED BY THE CHAIRMAN
AT 14th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

REVIEW OF YEAR 074/075 
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the company, I would like to welcome you all to this 
14th Annual General Meeting of Karja Suchana Kendra Limited (Credit Information Bureau or 
bureau in short).

Please let me have this opportunity to take over this floor to brief you about the operational 
and financial performance of the company in the year 074/075, its operational activities, 
accomplishments and various other issues related with the delivery of credit bureau services 
and registry service to the member institutions. 
  
The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the Fiscal Year 074/075 
and report of the Board of Directors are hereby presented to you for your discussions and 
approval.

During the period under review, the bureau remained very much preoccupied in maintaining 
the three newly launched systems (new commercial bureau system, microfinance bureau 
system and secured transactions registry) at best operational conditions and resolving all the 
technical issues that emerged on the systems post launch period. The bureau was equally 
focused on collecting the data from the member institutions through the new Silverblade 
system and sanitizing them before subjecting them to the various engines for the further 
processing.

The bureau also maintained its legacy system at its best level and put it into service through 
out the year together with Silverblade system in order to facilitate the users to cross verify the 
Silverblade data with the legacy system data. The legacy system was shut down at the end of 
the year after all the blacklist data were migrated to the new System. The bureau implemented 
various new measures to ensure that the data were properly secured and all the security 
protocols and bench marks were met. Both the system security and physical security were 
maintained at the best level. 

Bureau also implemented new Help Desk system that facilitated the member institutions 
to raise the technical and operational issues through online web based system. Against the 
backdrop of the increasing scope of activities of the bureau, the bureau reworked on the 
various issues related with the organizational structure, human resource management, staff’s 
welfare etc to strengthen its operations and attract and retain talents in the company. 
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1. Summary of the Operational Activities

To put it in an encapsulated form, the major operational highlights of the year were as follows:

•	 The Silverblade system 
(Commercial Bureau) which was 
launched at the beginning of 
the year met with some initial 
technical hiccups which took 
time for it to get resolved. The 
bureau worked relentlessly to 
address all the technical issues 
and make the system stable. 
Both the Silverblade system and 
legacy system were put in use 
for the users to help them cross 
verify both the reports before 
making any lending decisions. 
Since there were many data 
yet to be transferred from 
legacy system to the Silverblade 
system, the verification of both 
the reports were necessary to 
confirm the borrowers’ total 
credit exposures. The legacy 
system was shut down at the 
end of the year after all the data 
from the legacy system were 
transferred to the Silverblade 
system. The bureau made 
massive improvements on 
various functionalities such as 
information searching, data 
transfer, security protocols, data 
quality etc during the period.

•	 Secured Transaction Registry 
system performed well during 
the period. The system remained 
very stable and delivered the 
best performance without any 
errors or interruptions. The 
registry office kept on monitoring 
the system and ensured that 
all the security measures were 
in place to prevent any bogus 
registrations. The service was 
opened for the registration of 
both prior transactions notices 
and new notices with the initial 
three months allocated only for 
the prior transactions. Though 
the total number of notices 
registered during the period 
defied all our earlier projection, 

it is expected to increase in the 
coming years. During the period, 
the bureau worked together 
with the Ministry of Finance on 
the various issues related with 
the operation of the registry and 
on the amendments to be made 
on the Act and the Regulation.   

•	 Microfinance bureau which is 
based on the same technical 
platform as that of Silverblade 
system met with similar technical 
issues in the beginning which 
were resolved later. Though the 
system performed well, the lack 
of quality data in its database 
restrained its growth. Only fifty 
one MF institutions joined the 
bureau and shared the data 
with it thus limiting the bureau’s 
scope of delivering the high 
quality services. Poor readiness 
level of many MF institutions in 
terms of their lack of IT system, 
skilled IT people and quality data 
restrained them from joining the 
bureau. The bureau put all its 
efforts in training MF institutions 
about the system and helped 
them in upgrading their system 
and data.

•	 One of the major activities 
during the period revolved 
around the migration of the 
blacklist data from the legacy 
system to the Silverblade system. 
The data migration process 
consumed plenty of time and 
efforts and took more than six 
months to complete and make 
the Silverblade system fully 
functional with all the blacklist 
data. The poor quality of data 
in the legacy system and the 
recurring application issues with 
the Silverblade system delayed 
the migration process. Nearly 
fifty thousands blacklist records 
were migrated from the legacy 

system to the new system during 
the period.   

•	 Apart from the data migration, 
the bureau was equally focused 
on collecting the data from 
the financial institutions. The 
timely collection of the data 
always remained a major issue 
and a matter of concern for 
the bureau which affected 
the bureau’s operation and 
quality of its credit reports. 
Though the bureau was very 
much constrained by the lack 
of effective legal and regulatory 
provisions regarding the matter, 
the bureau made consistent 
efforts on its own to collect the 
data from the data providers. 
The bureau had set up a separate 
team dedicated for the purchase 
that constantly kept tab on the 
data providers and monitored 
their data uploads intervals on 
a regular basis. The data upload 
process was made much easier 
and simpler by installing the FTP 
server which facilitated the data 
providers to transmit the large 
data files in an efficient way. 
The year saw the massive inflow 
of data that helped the bureau 
in populating its database and 
improving the quality of credit 
reports.

•	 Since the security of the data 
always remained the prime 
concern for the bureau, it 
implemented a very stringent 
security measures to cocoon the 
data from the external threats. 
The security measures were 
reviewed on a regular basis to 
ensure that they were up to date 
and effective. The whole system 
was properly updated and all the 
security applications deployed 
were only as good as their most 
recent update. Because of this, 
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no cases of security breaches in 
data access, transmission and 
storage were reported during the 
period. Apart from this, it was 
ensured that failover systems 
were functional all the time 
and data were mirrored on DR 
site on real mode. The physical 
security of the Data Center was 
also given the highest priority 
and was monitored constantly 
to prevent any unauthorized 
access to the Data Center. Data 
Center was put on the round the 
clock surveillance mode.

•	 The security was further 
enhanced by effective 
supervision and monitoring of 
all the activities through system 
logs. Any change in events such 
as configuration updates, system 
crashes, security profile changes 
and any/all security related 
events were monitored through 
audit logs generated by the 
system.  Every activity performed 
by a user was logged into the 
database. Whenever a user 
was logged to the application, 
all the user’s operations within 
the system including changes 
in the database, transactions 
and configuration details were 
logged.

•	 During the period, the Bureau 
put its consistent efforts to 
ensure that data quality was 
maintained at its highest 
level. Very effective system 
mechanisms were deployed in 
Silverblade system to effectively 
monitor the incoming data and 
check its sanity. The incoming 
data were subjected to various 
system engines that worked as 
layers of filters that filtered the 
errors and passed the correct 
data to the database. Apart from 
this, the bureau put relentless 
efforts in educating the data 
providers to cross verify the data 
several times before uploading 
to the bureau. This includes 

verifying whether all the critical 
information such as name, 
citizenship number and its 
issued date & district and three 
generation information were 
correctly filled up. The objective 
was to prevent the errors at 
the “Source” and save time for 
the sanity checks and avoid the 
unnecessary “system load” to 
the engines.

•	 Apart from the quality of credit 
report, the Response Cycle Time 
(RCT) is always considered a 
major benchmark for “service 
quality” of the bureau. Any 
compromise with it or higher 
RCT will lead to right out 
rejection of service by the users. 
Though the bureau faced some 
problems with RCT during the 
initial phase of Silverblade 
launch, it got improved later and 
stabilized with RCT of less than 
5seconds. The bureau along 
with D&B put consistent efforts 
in improving the “search logics” 
that helped reduce the RCT. The 
logic thus developed was very 
fast in processing the results 
and delivered 100% correct 
identification of the borrowers. 
No instances of misidentification 
of borrowers or incorrect 
overlaps of loan profiles were 
reported during the period.

•	 Since the legacy system was 
made to run in parallel with that 
of Silverblade system because of 
the data issues, the bureau had to 
maintain the legacy system at its 
best level till the end of the year. 
All the hardware and software 
installed in the Primary and DR 
site were regularly monitored 
and legacy database and servers 
were routinely checked in real 
time to ensure that all of them 
were operating perfectly. The 
bureau maintained the system 
logs which captured any changes 
in events such as configuration 
updates, errors, bugs, system 

crashes, security breaches, 
security profile changes etc. 
Every activity performed by the 
user in the legacy system was 
logged into the database.

•	 The bureau conducted many 
trainings and interaction 
programs with the banks and 
financial institutions during 
the period. The trainings were 
focused on various technical 
and operational issues related 
with the new commercial 
bureau, microfinance bureau 
and secured transaction registry 
systems. The objective was to 
make the users familiar with the 
systems and services and enable 
them to effectively work on data 
quality and data uploads. The 
trainings were conducted on a 
regular and rotational basis so 
that all the banks and financial 
institutions were covered for the 
trainings.  

•	 The House Keeping of Data 
Center is as important as the 
up-keeping of Data Center 
equipments. Maintaining a 
clean Data Center is critical 
to its long term success and 
continued uptime. The bureau 
remained very particular on 
the issue and ensured that the 
hygiene of the Data Center 
was always maintained at 
the highest level. During the 
period, the bureau maintained 
the typical surface areas such 
as exterior of the equipment, 
cabinets and racks, ceiling 
plenum, floor spaces, sub floor 
plenum, top of floors, stringer/
pedestal system and interior of 
the computers, servers, tape 
libraries etc clean. It was also 
ensured that cooling systems 
were working properly and sub-
floor airspace was maintained to 
deliver pressurized cool clean air 
to IT equipments. Unauthorized 
access was strictly prohibited. 
The storage, placement and 
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installation of the equipments 
along with its cabling were 
properly done. Data related 
house keeping was done on 
regular basis that included 
records deletion, updates, 
add-ons, storing logs and data 
files in specific folders, setting 
changes etc. There were no any 
operational incidents reported 
during the period in Data Center 
that affected the delivery 
of the services. Meticulous 
documentation of domain 
credentials was done regularly 
in order to track inconsistencies 
that hindered agility. 

•	 The Help Desk of the bureau 
worked efficiently and effectively 
during the period resolving all 
the technical issues raised by the 
users. The Bureau established 
a single centralized Help Desk 
system that addressed the 

service issues of the users and 
settled the disputes raised by the 
borrower related with the credit 
report. The Help Desk/Dispute 
Resolution software module 
which was integrated into 
Silverblade system organized 
information, streamlined 
workflows, and eliminated many 
manual processes. The system 
has the tracking capabilities 
of all the incoming problems 
and has deployed escalation 
matrix to resolve the issues. The 
module has adopted a multi tired 
approach to resolve the service 
issues with highly trained and 
experienced staffs manning the 
Desk. The users can submit the 
tickets indicating their problems 
through customized web based 
form which is received by the 
system and processed. The 
system then logs and assigns 
issues to appropriate Help 

Desk technicians automatically, 
making the process more 
convenient to all parties.

•	 The bureau worked on the various 
issues related with Staff’s bylaws 
that included organization 
development, organization 
structure, compensation and 
benefits, succession planning 
etc and made changes on them. 
Since the bureau has grown in 
its scope of activities, number 
of services, subscriber base and 
financial strength, there was 
the reciprocal need to look into 
the various provisions of the 
bylaws that was related with 
the institutional development 
and capacity building of the 
company. This was done in order 
to strengthen the company 
further and retain and attract 
the best talents in the company.
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2. Registered Members 

The number of registered members dropped sharply in the year because of mergers of many financial institutions 
during the period. Three NDBs merged with CBs where as two merged with each other thus reducing the total 
number of NDBs to eleven. Similarly three RDBs merged with CBs, three merged with NDBs and the two merged 
with each other thus reducing the total number of RDBs to twenty two. In the case of finance companies, four FCs 
merged with CBs where as one merged with NDBs thus reducing the total number of FCs to twenty five.    

Registered Members

CBs NDBs RDBs FCs MFIs Total

074/075 28 11 22 25 7 93

073/074 28 15 29 30 7 109

3. Statistics of the Credit Reports

The number of credit reports generated (Hits/number of searches) by the system increased by nearly 32% this 
year. The increased inflow of borrowers’ records from the member institutions, improved quality of credit reports, 
increasing business opportunities, growing banking business all contributed to the growth of the credit reports 
during the period.  

The table below shows the month wise subscriptions of the credit reports by the member institutions during the 
period. 

Total "Hits” Sawan Bhadra Asoj Kartik Mngsir Poush Magh Falgun Chaitra Baisakh Jesth Asar

074/075 67986 93395 80525 95058 96554 105063 86788 77969 92178 93915 127042 89491

073/074 69793 75673 72587 62033 82391 78928 59245 51987 69111 62617 84316 68496

CB: Commercial Bank; NDB: National Development Bank; RDB: Regional Development Bank; FC: Finance Company

Total Searches
074/075

1,105,964
Total Searches

073/074

837,177

The two graphs (074/075 vs.073/074) are identical in terms of their movements through out the year. The information 
searching by the member institutions in both the years follow a set pattern and move in an identical fashion except 
in the months of Kartik and Poush where some deviations are observed. From the month of Poush onward, the 
two graphs move virtually in parallel with each other except in Jestha where sudden surge in information searching 
is observed. The average monthly sales of credit reports increased from 69,765 in 073/074 to 92,164 reports in 
074/075 leading to average monthly increment of 22,399 reports.

The Commercial Banks generated highest number of credit reports followed by National Development Banks, 
Regional Development Banks and Finance Companies. Co-operatives and others were the lowest users of the service 
and generated least number of reports.  The Commercial Banks generated nearly 75.48% of the total Credit Reports 
where as National Development Banks, Regional Development Banks and Finance Companies generated 15.74%, 
4.11% and 4.33% respectively. Co-operatives and others generated only 0.34% of the total. All the regulated “D 
class” entities that are engaged in wholesale lending are termed as “Co-operatives and others”
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Categories of lending institutions
 Credit Reports Percentage of 

the Total074/075

Commercial Banks (CB) 834,731 75.48%

Development Banks/National (NDB) 174,052 15.74%

Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 45,490 4.11%

Finance Companies (FC) 47,918 4.33%

Co-operatives and others (CO) 3,773 .34%

Total Credit Reports 1,105,964 100%

Categories of lending institutions
Number of Credit Reports

Increments % Increments %  of the Total 
Increments074/075 073/074

Commercial Banks (CB) 834,731 607,388 227,343 37.43% 84.6%

Development Banks/National (NDB) 174,052 139,016 35,036 25.2% 13%

Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 45,490 56,309 -10,819 -19.2% -4%

Finance Companies (FC) 47,918 31,522 16,396 52% 6.1%

Co-operatives and others (CO) 3,773 2,942 831 28.25% .3%

Total Credit Reports 1,105,964 837,177 268,787 32.1% 100%

The number of credit reports generated by CBs, NDBs, FCs and COs in the year 074/075 increased by 37.43%, 25.2%, 
52% and 28.25% respectively where as the reports generated by RDBs decreased by 19.2% as compared to that of 
the year 073/074. Since seven RDBs merged with CBs and NDBs during the period, it led to the drop in the reports 
generated by RDBs.

Similarly, out of the total increments, the Commercial Banks occupied the largest share (+84.6%) followed by 
National Development Banks (+13%) and Finance companies (+6.1%). 

It was observed that credit reports generated by different types of lending institutions varied quite widely. Some 
CBs performed poorly in comparison to some NDBs where as some RDBs performed quite well in comparison to 
some NDBs. Similarly some FCs performed better both in comparison to some NDBs and RDBs. The Hits of all types 
of lending institutions were examined and plotted. If “Hits” patterns are any indication of the lending volumes and 
business of the financial institutions, it shows very interesting patterns as shown and discussed below.
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(Credit Reports generated by the Commercial Banks/ Total number of Banks 28)

Among the NDBs, the generation of credit reports also varied quite widely between 100 reports to 26,000 reports. 
There were five NDBs that generated more than 15,000 reports, six NDBs generated between 10,000 reports to 
15,000 reports where as two NDBs generated less than 10,000 reports including the one which generated lowest 
100 reports.  

(Credit Reports generated by National Development Banks; Total number of NDB 13)

The graph shows that the number of credit reports (Hits) generated by the commercial banks varied widely between 
8,500 reports to nearly 80,000 reports. There were six banks that generated more than 40,000 reports including 
the one that generated nearly 80,000 reports. Similarly sixteen banks generated between 20,000 credit reports to 
40,000 credit reports where as six banks generated less that 20,000 reports including the one which generated the 
lowest 8,500 reports. The average number of reports generated by CBs in the year was 29,812 reports.   

The distribution of credit reports in case of RDBs was even more uneven. Some RDBs generated nearly 6,000 
reports where as some generated none or very few. Twelve RDBs generated more than two thousand reports, three 
generated between 1,000 reports to 2,000 reports and the rest eleven RDBs generated less than 1,000 reports, out 
of which three RDBs could not cross over even three digit marks.   

(Credit Reports generated by Regional Development Banks; Total number of RDB 26)



44 Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED 45Annual Report

KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Some Finance companies generated as high as 6,500 reports where as some could not cross over even two digits. 
Eleven FCs generated more than 2,000 reports out of which three crossed over 5000 reports, one crossed over 
4,000 reports and the rest seven generated between 2,000 reports and 4,000 reports. Similarly two generated 
between 1,000 reports and 2.000 reports and the rest fifteen generated less than 1,000 reports out of which eight 
generated less than ten reports, two generated between 10 reports to 100 reports,  three generated between 100 
and 500 reports and the rest two generated more between 500 reports and 1,000 reports.  

(Credit Reports generated by Finance Companies; Total number of FC 28)

The graph below encapsulates all the above graphs and compares the credit reports generated by all four categories 
of banks and financial institutions.

The graph clearly shows that commercial banks are way ahead in report generation as compared to other categories 
of financial institutions. The graph also shows there is quite variation in report generation among the same category 
of financial institutions. Some have pulled large number of reports where as some could not cross even two digits. 
As said earlier, if these statistics are any indications of their lending volumes, many financial institutions are seemed 
to be facing difficulties in their business. 
There has been steady growth of credit report generation since the last couple of years. The graph below shows the 
yearly statistics of the increments.

074/075 073/074 072/073 071/072 070/071 069/070 068/069 067/068

Total Queries/ “Hits” 1,105,964 837,177 742,302 579.925 482,667 368,048 262,238 177,596

Yearly Increments 268,787 94,875 162,377 97,258 114,619 105,810 84,642 54,360

(Annual increment of the Credit Report Generation)
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3. Statistics of the Borrowers’ Records

The borrowers’ records which indicate the total number of the borrowers who were extended the loans by the 
banks and financial institutions increased by 51.5% from 0.45million records in the year 073/074 to 0.675million 
records in the year 074/075. The surge in borrowers’ records was because of the implementation of the Silverblade 
system that provided the banks and financial institutions an easy and effective platform to transfer the data from 
their system to the bureau’s system. There was the massive inflow of both old and new records through the system 
during the period.  

Year 074/075 073/074 072/073 071/072 070/071 069/070 068/069 067/068

Total borrowers 675,028 445,614 360,017 276,367 193,915 137,774 98,425 83,449

Yearly increments 229,414 85,597 83,650 82,452 56,141 39,349 14,976 19,072

Borrowers’ records distribution shows similar pattern as that of credit reports generation. As per the statistics 
available till the year end, Commercial banks registered largest number of borrowers’ records in the bureau followed 
by RDBs, NDBs and FCs. 

Categories of lending institutions Number of 
Records

Percentage of 
the Total

Commercial Banks (CB) 608,016 90.1%

Development Banks/National (NDB) 17,053 2.5%

Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 31,791 4.7%

Finance Companies (FC) 18,168 2.7%

Total Borrowers’ Records 675,028 100%

Commercial Banks registered 90% of the total records where as 
National Development Banks, Regional Development Banks and 
Finance Companies registered 2.5%, 4.7% and 2.7% of the total 
records respectively. Since nine financial institutions (3NDBs, 3RDBs, 
3FCs) merged with CBs during the period, all the records were 
transferred to CBs thus increasing its share of total records. 

Total borrower records included both individual (consumer) as well as institutional (commercial) records. Till the 
year end 073/074, the total numbers of individual and institutional records registered in bureau were 287,681 
records and 157,933 records respectively which increased to 396,128 records (individual) and 278,900 records 
(institutional) by the end of the year 074/075. 

Thus there was the increment of 37.7% in individual records and nearly 76.6% in the institutional records leading to 
the total increment of 51.5% in the total borrowers’ records. 
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Categories of the Financial Institutions Borrowers’ Records

Individual
(Consumer)

Institutional
(Commercial)

Total

Commercial Banks 345,796 262,220 608,016

National Development Banks 11,242 5,811 17,053

Regional Development Banks 23,907 7,884 31,791

Finance Companies 15,183 2,985 18,168

Total 396,128 278,900 675,028

Commercial Banks had the largest increment of records (+257,704) 
followed by National Development Banks (+4107) where as there had 
been substantial decrease in the records of RDBs (-31,210) and FCs 
(-1,187). The year saw the mergers of many NDBs, RDBs and FCs with 
CBs leading to the massive increase in CBs records and decrease in the 
records of RDBs and FCs.  

Out of the total increments, CBs occupied 112.33% of the total where as 
National Development Banks, Regional Development Banks and Finance 
companies occupied 1.79%, -13.6%% and -0.52% respectively of the total 
increments.  

Categories of lending institutions
Number of Records Total

Increments
% Increase/

decrease
% of total 

Increments074/075 073/074

Commercial Banks (CB) 608,016 350,312 257,704 73.6% 112.33%

Development Banks/National (NDB) 17,053 12,946 4,107 31.7% 1.79%

Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 31,791 63,001 -31,210 -49.5% -13.6%

Finance Companies (FC) 18,168 19,355 -1,187 -6.1% -0.52%

Total Borrowers Records 675,028 445,614 229,414 51.5% 100%

It was observed that the borrowers’ records submitted by different banks and financial institutions till the year end 
varied quite widely. Some banks uploaded large number of records where as some uploaded only few hundred. 
Similar is the case with NDBs, RDBs and FCs. Just as in the case of credit reports, there is the large variation in 
borrowers’ records distribution among the same category as well as different categories of financial institutions.
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a) Distribution of the Borrowers’ records – Commercial Banks
 
 The graph shows the submission of borrowers’ records by various commercial banks to the bureau till the 

year end. Some banks have uploaded as many as 57,000 records where as some have uploaded only 5,000 
records to the bureau.

Total number of Borrowers Records uploaded by Commercial Banks till the year end 074/075 = 608,106

Most of the banks fall in the range between ten thousand records to thirty thousand records. Seven banks 
have uploaded more than thirty thousands records; five banks have uploaded between twenty thousand 
records to thirty thousand records; eleven banks have uploaded between ten thousand to twenty thousand 
records where as five banks have uploaded below ten thousand records. 

b) Distribution of the Borrowers’ records – National Development Banks

NDBs have only 2.5% contribution on the total borrowers’ records. Out of eleven NDBs, two have uploaded 
more than 4,000 records where as the other two have uploaded nearly 2,600 records and 1,800 records 
respectively. The rest seven NDBs have uploaded less than one thousand records. 

c) Distribution of the Borrowers’ records – Regional Development Banks

Total number of Borrowers Records uploaded by National Development Banks till the year end 074/075 = 17,053

Total number of Borrowers Records uploaded by Regional Development Banks till the year end 074/075 = 31,791

It can be seen that three NDBs have submitted more than four thousand records to the bureau, out of which 
one has submitted 7,200 records and other one has submitted nearly 6,800 records. Similarly two NDBs have 
submitted between 2,000 records to 3,000 records. Three NDBs have submitted slightly more than 1,000 
records and the rest seventeen NDBs have submitted less than 1,000 records. 
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d) Distribution of the Borrowers’ records – Finance Companies
 The numbers of borrowers’ records uploaded by many FCs are very low. Nearly seventeen FCs have submitted 

less than 500 records out of two FCs have submitted less than ten records. Only six FCs have submitted more 
than 1000 records. FCs have only 2.7% contribution on the total borrowers’ records.

Total number of Borrowers Records uploaded by Finance Companies till the year end 074/075 = 18,168

The graph below encapsulates all the above graphs and compares the borrowers’ records submitted by all 
four categories of banks and financial institutions.

It can be seen that there is the wide variation in data submission not only among different categories of 
financial institutions but also among the same category of financial institutions.

There has been steady growth of borrowers’ records in bureau’s database since the last couple of years. The 
graph below shows the yearly statistics of the records.



48 Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED 49Annual Report

KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

4. Statistics of the Blacklisted Borrowers

The year saw the increase of only 994 borrowers in the blacklist. Total of 1335 borrowers were added where as 341 
borrowers were de-listed from the blacklist giving rise to the total of 6,241 borrowers in the blacklist by the year 
end.

Statistics of the Blacklisted Borrowers

Till 066/067 068/069 069/070 070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075

Added in Blacklist 2,415 353 690 738 930 833 834 1,335

Removed from Blacklist 131 121 147 188 279 308 372 341

Total borrowers in Blacklist at the end of 
fiscal year

2,284 2,516 3,059 3,609 4260 4785 5,247 6241

(Number of Blacklist borrowers in CIB database)

The increase of 994 borrowers into the Blacklist increased the bad debt amount by Rs.288crore from Rs5,852crore 
in 073/074 to Rs6,140crore in 074/075.

Listed 1335

De-listed 341
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5. Statistics of the Secured Transaction Registry Service

Total of 57,202 notices including the notices related with prior transactions were registered during the period. Out 
of the total registered notices, nearly 66.5% were related with the SME and Micro lending where as 16.5% and 17% 
were related with the corporate and individual lending.

Sector-wise Distribution of Registrations Total 
Registrations

Percentage of 
the Total

SME & Micro 38,058 66.5%

Corporate 9,433 16.5%

Individual 9,711 17%

Total 57,202 100%

Though the registration was opened for all market segments including the 
banking sector, it was observed that only the banks registered the notices 
during the period. The registrations made by various banks are presented 
here. 

The graph shows that some banks have registered nearly 8,000 notice where as some have registered less than 100 
notices. Some banks have made aggressive lending against the movable assets where as some have made very few.

The STR system did not encounter heavy load on its search engine during the period because of the limited number 
of searches made by the public. The total number of searches generated by the system was 129,116 out of which 
banks and financial institutions made 123,942 numbers of searches where as public and the bureau made 5,159 
and 15 searches on the system respectively. Similarly, banks and financial institutions pulled out 292 numbers of 
certified reports (duly signed online generated certified reports) where as public and other segments pulled out no 
reports. Apart from the new registrations, nearly five thousands registered notices were amended and corrected 
whereas two thousands notices were terminated during the period. 

S. No Public Search Client Search Admin Search Certified Search (Certified Reports)

1. 5,159 123,942 15 292

2. Total Number of Searches = 129,408
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6. Microfinance Bureau Service

The microfinance bureau service is still to gain its momentum. Fifty one microfinance institutions were registered as 
members and approximately one million membership records and 0.8million credit facilities were uploaded to MF 
bureau database during the period. But the number of credit reports generated was very less and was only 4730 
reports. 

Total Number of Microfinance Institutions registered as members in the Bureau = 51
Total number of MFI Membership records = 1063,787
Total number of MFI borrowers having credit facility in Production = 790,067
Total number of credit reports generated during the period (074/075) = 4,730 

Out of 51 microfinance institutions (MFIs) registered as members, only 26 MFIs have sent the consumer records to 
the bureau. The records uploaded by MFIs have been presented here.

The two leading information providers are Nirdhan Utthan Bank and Chhimek Microfinance Development Bank. 
Apart from the leading two, four MFIs have submitted above fifty thousand records where as remaining MFIs have 
submitted less than fifty thousands. 

7. Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is the system of rules, practices and processes by which businesses are directed and 
controlled. Good corporate governance is a key factor in underpinning the integrity and efficiency of the company. 
The bureau realizes that adhering to the principles of good corporate governance is the key factor in maintaining 
corporate sustainability, boosting the company’s values and ultimately increasing the values to shareholders and 
stakeholders. The bureau seeks to ensure that corporate governance is not only a formulaic exercise, but rather 
a dynamic framework that can accommodate the demands of a rapidly changing business environment while 
remaining responsive to the priorities of its shareholders and other stakeholders.    
 
The bureau operates under the four core principles of corporate governance; fairness, accountability, responsibility 
and transparency. The bureau ensures that all shareholders know the company’s vision, mission, values, short and 
long term strategic goals and the roles that they should play in helping the company accomplish them. The company 
always ensures to communicate to all the shareholders, at regular intervals, a fair, balanced and understandable 
assessment of how the company is achieving its business purpose and meeting its other responsibilities. It strives 
hard to maintain highest standard of ethics and integrity in its relationships with the company’s Board of Directors, 
shareholders and other constituents, and in its business conduct, consistent with company’s values, and in 
compliance with both the letter and spirit of all applicable laws and regulations.  

The governing body of the company, the Board of Directors is typically central to the corporate governance and is 
elected by the shareholders from the Annual General Meeting of the company.  The Board is responsible for overseeing 
the management of the business, affairs of the company, appointing the Chief Executive Officer and monitoring the 
performance of the company. The Board has the ultimate decision making authority and is empowered to set the 
policy, objectives and overall direction of the company. The Board possesses the dual mandate of advisory and 
oversight. The Board also has the power to appoint independent legal, financial, or other advisors as Board deems 
necessary from time to time. The Board regularly reviews developments in corporate governance and updates 
corporate governance guidelines and other governance materials as it deems necessary and appropriate.
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8. Organization Structure

To be effective, overall organization design must be aligned with the size of the company, the business it does, its’ 
core competency, business strategy and the market environment in which the business operates. The company must 
have the right business controls, the right flexibility, the right incentives, the right people, and the right resources.

The bureau is an IT driven company with its two major functions revolving around Data Analytics and Application 
Systems. Technology pervades almost all aspects of current business operations of the bureau and has contributed 
immensely in its growth. It has helped in reducing the cost of the operation and contributed in new product 
development, new market creation, adaptation to changes in scale and format, improved customer service and 
reorganizing administrative operations. Given the increasingly critical role data & technology plays in competitive 
positioning of the company, bureau has developed itself as a “capability driven” company - one that understands 
the skills and capabilities needed by the business to drive growth, flexibility and innovation while still running at 
appropriate cost. 

Recruitment Committee

Audit Committee

Promoter Shareholders

Chairman & Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Technical Division Operations Division

9. HR Management

A flat organization structure in bureau 
gives rise to more direct, succinct lines 
of communication between various 
departments. This has benefited HR in 
many ways, one being the precipitant 
nature in which information is 
conveyed and disseminated, due 
to their being less proxies and 
less barriers for information to be 
transmitted through. Another way 
is that organizational solidarity is 

bolstered from the closer forms 
of communication and interaction 
between subordinates and 
management, as well as feeling 
or having a greater impact on an 
organization and its direction.

Since vertical boundaries are 
removed to flatten the hierarchy and 
horizontal boundaries are removed to 
replace functional departments with 

cross functional teams and organize 
activities around processes, the 
carrier path is no longer about moving 
up but going across. HR focuses on 
developing the pool of talents that 
can move across the divisions (IT & 
Operations), gain expertise and make 
decisions. The employees understand 
that their progression will be marked 
by the number of experiences, skills 
and projects that they have under 

Having only two strategic divisions, it has adopted a small and flat organization structure with few management layers 
and minor degrees of verticality. The objective is to build an adaptive, innovation-friendly organization, establishing 
an inspiring culture and empowering employees. Flat structure has a short chain of command and a wide span 
of managerial control. Few management layers means fewer approvals in decision making, which means faster 
decisions and can respond more quickly to new opportunities or threats. This structure empowers the employees 
to take charge, help make decisions and feel responsible for the company’s success. Chain of command becomes 
short and span of control becomes wide. Fewer layer means less staffs means lower costs. 

The structure facilitates a greater level of communication between employee and management and tends to be 
more democratic and offer greater level of innovation. This also results in better understanding of company goals 
for staffers and better understanding of daily operational issues by the managers. The structure offers higher level 
of flexibility which means decisions are made faster and on an “as needed” basis. When employees are more 
responsible for operations, they take more pride in company’s success. The structure puts greater emphasis on 
team work and empowerment. 
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their belts – any compensations 
and pay raises commensurate with 
those achievements – rather than 
promotions. The company values 
employees who have demonstrated 
agility and want to have exposure 
to a broad set of experiences. It 
emphasizes on hiring people who 
are independent but creative, have 
manager’s mentality but a producer’s 
work ethic and are motivated to 
work in creative and challenging 
environments.

Since there are few layers and few 
people in the bureau’s flat structure, 
the bureau places significant 
importance in hiring the right people 
having the matching experience, 
competencies and capabilities. Rapid 
changes in technology, processes 
and procedures require the people 
who are knowledgeable, flexible, 
focused and the adaptive to the 
future technologies. They must be in a 
position to comprehend the emerging 
technologies and analyze how it is 
going to affect the bureau’s business. 

HRM focuses on recruiting talented 
people and creating a competent and 
motivated workforce that delivers. 
The company follows a conscientious 
recruiting policy where it takes 
adequate care to bring effective 
balance between workload and 
workforce.  HRM strives hard to create 
safe, healthy and happy workplace 
where employees feel comfortable 
to spend time and share thoughts, 
engage in brainstorming sessions and 
make decisions. The collaborative 
culture of the company brings 
synergy in work, increases innovation, 
creativity, productivity and helps build 
more engaged workforce. 
 
A big part of bureau’s culture is 
an internal sense of transparency 
between management and 
employees. The employees know 
what is happening and why. They feel 
more involved and end up feeling 
part of something, instead of cog in a 
machine. This leads to an environment 
where communication is direct and 
decision making is transparent. The 

bureau motivates its employees to 
perform at their best and create a true 
pay-for – performance culture through 
winning performance management 
and smarter compensation. It puts 
employee performance at the center 
of strategy to give the employees the 
direction, feedback and recognition 
they need to perform at their best. 
The bureau has employed a very 
transparent and fair evaluation system 
with cross functional and 360 degree 
performance feedback systems. 
Such comprehensive feedbacks 
empower employees to determine 
their performance gaps and improve 
accordingly. The bureau regularly 
maps employees’ competency gaps, 
identifies areas of improvement and 
provides the right training programs 
for them. The Bureau arranges regular 
trainings for the employees to make 
them familiar with the systems and 
the operations. 

10. Management

CEO is appointed by the Board and 
is the highest ranking management 
executive in the company. Being a 
full time leader and company’s top 
decision maker, CEO makes major 
corporate decisions, manages overall 
company’s operations, establishes 
strategic processes, overseas progress 
toward meeting corporate objectives 
and instructs other executives to take 
appropriate actions to keep business 
moving in the right direction. CEO 
is held accountable by the Board of 

Directors and is expected to follow 
board direction and implement 
board decisions. The CEO acts as a 
direct liaison between the Board 
and management and communicates 
to the Board on behalf of the 
management. Apart from this, the 
CEO also communicates on behalf 
of the company to shareholders, 
government authorities, other 
stakeholders and the public and 
ensures the integrity of all public 
disclosures by the company.

The CEO is supported by the team 
of senior executives that include 
chiefs of operations, technical and 
finance departments and other senior 
officers. Being a flat structure, all the 
executives work in a team and are in 
direct touch with CEO and support 
CEO in making major decisions and 
moving the bureau forward.

11. Board and the Committees 

Pursuant to Bureau’s Corporate 
Bylaws, the governance of the 
company falls to the Board of 
Directors, its Chairman, and the 
various executive committees 
formed by the Board. The bureau 
has seven members in its Board 
who are elected by the shareholders 
through the Annual General 

Meeting of the company in every 
four years. A Board’s mandate is 
to establish policies for corporate 
management and oversight, making 
decisions on major company 
issues. The Board of Directors’ key 
purpose is to ensure the company’s 
prosperity by collectively directing 
the company’s affairs, whilst 

meeting the appropriate interests of 
its shareholders and stakeholders. 

The tenure of the Director is for four 
years. Out of seven members, four 
are elected from commercial banks, 
and one each from the Development 
Banks, Finance Companies and 
Nepal Rastra Bank.  The number 
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Board’s Committees

The Committees as formed by the Board are charged with the task of supporting the Board with consultative 
and advisory functions on the matters of the competence. The Board has established two standing committees 
to assist in the execution of its responsibilities: the Audit Committee; and HR Committee. These two committees 
focus on specific areas and take informed decisions within the framework of delegated authority and make specific 
recommendations to the Board on the matters in the areas of their purview. 

a) Audit Committee 

The audit committee is the central pillar of effective corporate governance and assists the Board in the financial 
oversight responsibilities relating to i) the integrity of the company’s financial reporting and financial disclosures ii) 
the monitoring of the accounting policies and practices iii) compliance with accounting standards iv) the effectiveness 
of internal control and risk management v) adequacy of internal and external audits vi) compliances with legal and 
regulatory requirements vii) the appointment and removal of internal and external auditor and fixation of the audit 
fees.   

Board appoints two Directors as the member of the committee; one of them is designated as the Chairman. The 
Board also assigns one staff from the management as the Secretary of the committee. The Directors will serve the 
committee at the pleasure of the Board and for such terms as Board may determine. The committee shall meet at 
least quarterly and otherwise as the members of the committee deem appropriate. The Board ensures that all the 
members thus appointed have relevant experience and expertise in the field and have competency and capability 
to lead the committee.     

b) HR Committee

HR committee is a Sub Committee of the Board to which Board delegates responsibility for the oversight of the 
bureau’s HR policies and practices. The purpose of the committee is to consider, monitor, oversee and make 
recommendations to the Board related with the organizational structure, HR management, HR strategy and 
planning, workforce engagement, physical working conditions, succession planning and compensation policies of 
the employees.

The Board appoints two members in the Committee, one of whom shall be the Coordinator as appointed by the 
Board. The Head of the Human Resource Department of the bureau is appointed as the Secretary of the committee. 
The committee shall meet at least four times a year and otherwise as necessary. However, the Coordinator will have 
the right to call any number of meetings as deemed necessary.

of representations in the Board 
from each category is based on the 
total shareholding of each category 
of financial institutions. As per 
company’s By-laws, Commercial 
Banks holds 65% stake and has 
four representations, Development 
Banks holds 10% stake and has one 
representation, Finance Companies 
holds 15% stake and has one 

representation and Nepal Rastra 
Bank holds 10% stake and has one 
representation.

Board members, during the period, 
acted honestly, in good faith in the 
exercise of their duties, for the 
best interest of the company and 
performed their duties impartially, 
uninfluenced by fear or favor. No 

members took improper advantage 
of the position and allowed 
personal interest to conflict with 
the interests of the bureau. The 
members exercised the degree 
of duty of care and diligence in 
fulfilling the functions of the office 
and demonstrated high level of 
professionalism in conducting the 
meeting and making decisions.  
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12. Board and Committees’ Meetings 

a) Board meeting

There were altogether ten (10) Board meetings held during the period out of which two (2) Board meetings were 
conducted by the outgoing Board under the Chairmanship of Mr. Sashin Joshi where as eight (8) Board meetings 
were conducted by the new Board under the Chairmanship of Mr. Bhuban Kadel. The outgoing Board completed its 
tenure of four years and left the Board. The new Board was formed by the election of new members through the 
13th AGM of the company held on 24th Kartik 2074. The new Board elected Mr. Bhuban Kadel unanimously as the 
Chairman of the Board.

The numbers of the attendance of the Board members in the Board meetings were as follows:

Name Representation from
No. of  meetings held 

during Tenure
Meetings 
attended

% of 
attendance

Outgoing Board 

1. Mr. Sashin Joshi, Chairman Nabil Bank Ltd. 2 2 100%

2. Mr. Bhuban Kadel Nepal Rastra Bank 2 2 100%

3. Mr. Anukool Bhatnagar Nepal SBI Bank Limited 2 2 100%

4. Mr. Jyoti Prakash Pandey Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 2 2 100%

5. Mr. Ajay Shrestha Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 2 2 100%

6. Mr. Raj Kumar Rai Gurkhas Finance Ltd. 2 2 100%

After 13th AGM, the following new members were inducted in the Board

1. Mr. Bhuban Kadel, Chairman Nepal Rastra Bank 8 8 100%

2. Mr. Anil Kumar Khanal Nabil Bank 8 3 37.5%

3. Mr. Subhakanta Kanungo Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 8 7 87.5%

4. Mr. Sagar Sharma Mahalaxmi Dev. Bank 8 7 87.5%

5. Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 8 8 100%

6. Mr. Naredra Prasad Chhatkuli Kumari Bank Ltd 8 8 100%

7. Mr. Swayambhu Shakya Goodwill Finance Ltd. 8 8 100%

b) Audit Committee meetings

There were altogether five (5) audit committee meetings conducted during the period. The two meetings were held 
by the outgoing audit committee under the Chairmanship of Raj Kumar Rai where as three meetings were held by 
the new audit committee under the chairmanship of Mr. Anil Khanal. Audit committee met each quarter to discuss 
on the audit reports submitted by the internal auditors. There were four internal audit reports submitted to the 
audit committee. 

Name
Number of meetings 
held during the tenure

Number of meetings 
attended

% of 
attendance

Outgoing Audit Committee

1. Raj Kumar Rai, Chairman 2 2 100%

New Audit Committee formed by new Board

1. Anil Khanal, Chairman 3 3 100

2. Sagar  Sharma 3 2 66.6%
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c) HR Committee meetings

The new Board set up a HR committee to oversee the company’s HR issues and policies. There were altogether six 
(6) HR committee meetings conducted during the period. The committed submitted various reports related with the 
organization structure, salary structure and HR issues to the Board for its approval during the period.

Name
Number of meetings held during 
the tenure

Number of meetings 
attended

% of 
attendance

1. Deepak Kumar Shrestha, 
Chairman

6 6 100%

2. Subhakanta Kanungo 6 6 100%

3. Omkar Lal Shrestha, Secretary of the Committee 6 6 100%

d) Expenses incurred on committees

Committee Number of meetings
Expenses on Committees

Meeting Allowance Other Expenses Total

1. Board Meetings 10 290,000 19,278

2. Audit Committee Meetings 5 33,000 -------

3 HR Committee meetings 6 60,000 --------

Total 383,000 19,278 402,278
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Silverblade System’s Security Framework 



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Risk Factors Disclosures
The risk factor disclosure is an 
important component of the Annual 
Report that is meant to inform 
the investors about the various 
kinds of risks that the company 
is exposed to in its operation and 
business. It involves a discussion 
of circumstances, trends or 
issues that may affect company’s 
business, prospects, operating 
results, or financial condition. 

Creating transparency about risks 
in annual report is vital for the well 
functioning of the company. The 
careful crafting of the pertinent risk 
factors can provide leeway for more 
robust discussion on business plans 
and future operations. In the light of 
changing technology, banking sector 
business & economic and financial 
landscape of the country, the bureau 
takes a careful look at its current 

risk profiles and discusses various 
measures taken to address the risks. 
The improved understanding of the 
risks by investors shall lead to better 
stewardship of the company and 
efficient allocation of the resources. 
The disclosures can provide more 
understandings on the bureau’s 
risk susceptibility and its resilience 
to withstand them in case of any 
eventualities in the future 

Technological Risks

The bureau has come to rely on technology to help support its business processes and handle massive 
amounts of critical data. Given the importance of technology and the impact that it has on the bureau, it is 
vital that the bureau places technology risk management at the top of the corporate agenda. The bureau 
is constantly under pressure to innovate, work smarter and keep up with a continuously moving target of 
threats to its bottom line. Despite the positive implications of embracing technological advancement, the 
decision to infuse the bureau’s business with technology is not without its risks. With data privacy breaches 
on the up – indeed, seemingly not a week goes by without reference to a breach somewhere – the time for 
the bureau to factor technology into its wider risk management strategies has been important.  As the bureau 
grows in terms of increasing number of various systems under its umbrella, it becomes more crucial for it 
to ever become more alert on IT risks and apply various strategies to assess monitor, manage and mitigate 
them. Any failure to address the technological risk may lead to serious consequences and tarnish the image 
of the bureau, impact its profitability and expose it to expensive, lengthy and embarrassing litigation.  

Problems Solutions
Cyber Security

“The Equifax, one of the leading credit 
reporting agencies of USA, witnessed a 
major cyber security breach of its system 
on April 2017 when the hackers gained 
access of the sensitive personal data of 143 
million Americans stored in its database by 
exploiting the vulnerability on its website. 
The hackers seized names, social security 
numbers, birth dates, addresses and even 
driver license information of the clients. 
Equifax now faces numerous lawsuits, a 
huge stock price hit and several state and 
federal investigations”.

“The Internet of things’ will have an 
increasing influence on the world in 
which we live and businesses operate. As 
technology and digital connectivity evolve, 
companies globally face menacing threats 
every day. New technologies create new 

To counter the evolving cyber threat facing the bureau 
today, the bureau has implemented an integrated 
approach to cyber security tailored to the bureau’s 
business and risk profile, addressing not only technical 
aspects of the defense, but also the people and the 
organizational element. The bureau identifies the most 
critical assets, gathers intelligence on cyber threats, 
assesses and evaluates the bureau’s vulnerabilities, 
builds a resilient system and plans for the breach. The 
security process revolves around best practices in cyber 
security such as monitoring applications, creating specific 
access controls, collecting detailed logs, maintaining 
security patches, monitoring user activities, creating a 
data breach response plan, maintaining compliance and 
educating and training technical staffs.   

The bureau has an effective cyber risk management 
strategy that includes a deep understanding of the 
range of persistent cyber threats, a robust assessment 
of their potential impacts, plans for both cyber risk 
prevention and response, and management approach 
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vulnerabilities which increase in linear 
fashion. Tools and methods for hacking have 
increased as the internet has grown. It is a 
vicious cycle; as technology advances, the 
risk for new, sophisticated attacks increases. 
Estimates suggest that more than trillion 
devices will be connected in the internet by 
the year 2020 which provides larger surface 
area for the hackers to attack on. Not only 
will cyber criminals get into our systems – 
in many instances, they are already there, 
assessing which data is of value to them 
and waiting to act. While innovations in 
technology power new strategic initiatives, 
it also opens new doors for cyber criminals.

The old image of the thrill seeking hacker 
breaking into protected systems for fun 
seems almost quaint today. Cyber crime 
has gone professional, with organized crime 
sponsoring cyber attacks on everything from 
sensitive government data to institution’s 
intellectual property. The hackers share 
strategies and tools and can combine 
forces to launch coordinated attacks. With 
cyber risks, the company faces active 
adversaries who are constantly changing 
their attack strategy. Cyber criminals are 
smart, highly innovative, and persistent 
lawbreakers. They always improve their 
tactics, techniques and procedures to the 
point where they have become difficult 
to detect and challenging to investigate 
and remediate. Determined attackers are 
extremely persistent and demonstrate 
increasing ingenuity in achieving their 
objectives. They are always staying on top 
of the newest updates, to overcome the 
latest defenses. 

In an ongoing cycle, as old sources of cyber 
threat fade, new sources are increasingly 
emerging to take their place. The cyber 
criminal needs to find only one weak 
point in a system’s defenses, while the 
protectors need to defend all vulnerable 
points forever. The internet was built in a 
way that favored resiliency over security. 
The trade off between strong security and 
a more open, easy to access environment 
is echoed in the dilemma facing many 
technical organizations these days.

that reflects the role of employees – from the boardroom 
to the backroom – in implementing cyber defenses. It has 
adopted tiered data security strategy that employs and 
aligns multiple layers of defenses, from simple to more 
complicated, to counter application threats and stop the 
cyber attacks on different levels, so they never reach the 
core of the system. Multiple layers can isolate and protect 
data should one of layers be compromised from external 
and internal threats. The approach revolves around the 
concept of “protecting crown jewel” – a concentric circle 
view of the layered security focused on protecting the 
important data at the center through successive layers 
of defenses such as application, network (internal and 
external perimeter) and physical controls.      

The bureau deploys active defenses to uncover attacks 
proactively and continuously tests incidence response 
across data functions. Through proactive exercises such as 
penetration and threat modeling, the bureau runs cross 
functional measures to improve the bureau’s agility to 
respond to data breaches in real time. The bureau has in 
place a robust threat prevention program that can quickly 
turn unknown attacks into known threats. It regularly 
monitors its cyber security platforms and performs top 
down risk assessment around the security process in 
order to ensure that the security measures implemented 
are able to thwart any external threats on the system. 

The bureau regularly monitors the system devices that 
are exposed to external networks to reduce network 
vulnerabilities, implements network segmentation and 
apply network level security to each segment to restrict 
unwanted access, uses secure remote access methods for 
the encrypted flow of data, establishes role based access 
controls and implement system logging for tracking 
network intrusions, uses complex passwords to prevent 
unauthorized login, implements patches and updates 
on regular intervals to plug loopholes in data security, 
develops and enforces policies on the use of mobile 
devices (laptops, tablets, smart phones etc.) in the 
workplace, regularly conducts employee cyber security 
trainings and updates cyber security incident response 
plans.
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Problems Solutions
Data Center Security

In today’s connected world, data security 
is a big concern. Physical security is often 
a second thought when it comes to 
information security and is overlooked in 
the debate over cyber security. However 
many breaches – often some of the most 
damaging ones – are caused by the 
people with physical access to critical IT 
equipment. With the average cost of data 
breach in the millions, it is critical to ensure 
that the physical security of the data center 
extends beyond encryption, firewalls 
and standard card access programs with 
biometric authentication and monitoring. 
The physical security controls are often just 
as important as its cyber security controls. 
Physical access to the Data Center’s secure 
areas, equipments or materials containing 
sensitive data make it easier for a malicious 
insider to commit a crime. The challenges 
of implementing physical security are much 
more problematic now than in previous 
decades. These days, any body having the 
access to the data center can steal the data 
by using the portable devices like laptops, 
USB drives, tablets, flash drives and smart 
phones. With the emerging scenario of 
massive volume of data with the Data 
Center and the easiness with which it can 
be stolen with portable devices makes the 
Data Center more vulnerable to the attacks 
by the criminals.

The bureau has adopted “Defense in depth” methodology 
to secure assets through multiples layers of security. 
It has employed perimeter based concentric security 
system layered on each other so that any one trying to 
access the “core” has to pass through multiple checks and 
controls in each layer. Layering creates depth in physical 
protection, helping to confirm failure of one element 
in a system will not create vulnerability in the whole 
system and provides comprehensive and integrated 
protection starting from perimeter controls to facility 
controls, computer room controls and cabinet controls 
(core). Each layer is equipped with CCTV cameras, 
security breach alarms, biometrics and various kinds of 
monitoring & intelligent access control devices in order 
to restrict any unauthorized entries. All the monitoring 
and surveillance devices are connected via networks to 
the “network recorder” which is processed and analyzed 
via analytics software to identify events, attributes or 
patterns in behaviors that may pose security risk and 
trigger the alarm. In order to restrict any malicious entry 
into secured areas through tailgating, hacking into access 
control smart cards or breaking in through doors, the 
bureau has installed physical intrusion detection system, 
alarm system and man traps. 

Any possibility of thefts of laptops, USB drives and tablets 
inside the data center are prevented by using RFID systems 
and cable locks. Apart from this, all the server room 
equipments are stacked into the cabinet with lock up 
facilities to prevent any physical access. The data center is 
staffed with trained security guards 24x7x365, providing 
on site incidence management and protection to mission 
critical system operations. Thus the implementation of 
effective access control strategy inside the data center, 
one that provides the complete trail of the employees’ 
activities has helped to monitor suspicious or irregular 
behavior, giving the security team the opportunity to 
preempt security breaches and act upon the situation.

In order to provide continuous operation under all 
foreseeable circumstances and prevent any loss of data, 
the failover mechanisms are in place that immediately 
take over and prevent any breakdowns. The data center 
is equipped with back up generators, batteries, UPS, fire 
detection and suppression systems, lightning protection 
system, moisture detection system, facilities monitoring 
devices and central monitoring of all the components 
of the data center to warn of threats to computing 
environment and prevent any outages and loss of data. 
Apart from this, the bureau has Disaster Recovery Site in 
National Information Technology Center in Singh Durbar 
to provide uninterrupted service in case of any system 
breakdowns in Primary site.
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Problems Solutions
Data Security (IT Staffs)

The bureau has grown to be the largest 
repository of credit information in the 
country with millions of data files in 
its database. Against this backdrop, 
the complexity involved in managing 
the security of data has increased 
proportionately with the increase in data 
and simultaneous increase in number of IT 
staffs in the data center. The more are the 
number of IT staffs, the more will be risk of 
data loss unless the bureau comes out with 
the diligent IT administration and effective 
data management policies to prevent the 
same. The data loss can be because of both 
intentional and unintentional reasons.

Unintentional Loss of Data by IT staffs

Accidents happen. Human are not infallible 
and commit many mistakes unknowingly 
leading to grave consequences and 
sometimes even putting the company into 
tailspin. Human error has consistently been 
ranked as the biggest area of concern for 
the organizations when it comes to data 
loss. It accounts for nearly 26% of data loss 
incidents, according to research statistics. 
In virtualized environment, the human 
error rate rises to staggering 65%. The top 
causes of data loss due to human error are 
i) failure to back up effectively ii) failure 
to document and execute established 
IT, retention and backup procedures (iii) 
failure to adhere to and maintain relevant 
security policies (iv) failure to keep OS and 
security controls up to date and (v) deleting 
data that is still in active use etc.

Intentional Data loss by IT staffs 

With the percentage of business data being 
created and stored digitally approaching 
100%, the most important assets of a 
company are easier than ever to steal. Data 
by nature are portable, easy to copy and 
more prone to theft than paper documents 
by employees. This fact not only applies to 
the ease with which electronic documents 
are stolen, but also to the sheer quantity 

First and foremost, the best way to avoid unintentional 
losses of data is through education. An IT system is as 
strong as its weakest link; and the weak point should 
not be the employees. Educating and training IT staffs 
in their job roles will help to improve overall workplace 
competency, reducing the likelihood of human error. The 
bureau data center is manned by highly competent IT 
professional who have many years of experience in data 
center operation and are certified security professionals. 
They always keep themselves updated with key security 
issues, policy fundamentals, compliance standards, new 
security practices and procedures for minimizing security 
incidences. The bureau documents the system, setting 
up a two step protocol that requires confirmation of 
file deletion, and developing a recovery plan for future 
data loses and breaches. The bureau’s recovery plan, 
the process document to identify and mitigate risks, 
has helped to put all the IT staffs on the same page 
with regards to quickly addressing or preventing human 
error. The recovery plans are regularly tested by the IT 
staffs by making them run through simulated tests to 
ensure its efficiency and effectiveness and to ensure that 
employees handling the system understand the plan and 
are able to address the risks in case of any eventualities. 
Apart from this, the bureau encourages for e-learning 
courses to increase staff’s security awareness: through 
real life scenarios, tips and questions, that helps the 
staffs understand the critical issues and compliance 
requirements mandated by the international standards.

All the mission critical data are reserved for the access 
to the few well trained employees. Reducing the access 
to the system will reduce the likelihood of data theft. 
The bureau has deployed security controls such as 
managing and monitoring end user privileges, conducting 
background checks on the employee’s online activities 
before granting privilege access, monitoring network 
segregation for better control and security. Apart from 
this, the bureau does thorough background checks on 
new staffs, rotates staffs on the critical jobs, have a fraud 
action plan which sets out structured response in the 
event of worst happening.

The bureau has taken fundamental precautions such 
as (i) assessing which data needs to be protected most 
(ii) enforcing data privacy controls inside and out (iii) 
deploying security controls, using automated safeguards 
such as cryptography, password management, identity 
and access management, two factor authentication, 
network access rules and automatic standby locks (iv) 
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taken. The reasons an employee takes 
confidential information vary from being 
benign and misguided to intentional for 
the purpose of personal gain.  Technology 
affords many methods for an employee to 
take data electronically from the company. 
The portable devices such as USB and 
smart phones which are ready to use, can 
hold vast amounts of data and can easily 
be concealed are used to steal the data. 
Email is also another efficient way to take 
confidential data. Most email services 
provide users with a website for email 
access and generous storage quota. The 
employees can easily email large amounts of 
data to personal accounts and then access it 
from any where in the world. Furthermore 
the data can be leaked through messenger 
services and social networking sites. 

restricting the movement of information (v) guarding 
against social engineering (vi) implementing social media 
policies (vii) keeping track of IT staff’s personal devices 
(viii) keeping software and operating systems up to date 
by installing patches and antivirus (ix) verifying security 
controls of third parties before working with them (x) 
properly disposing of sensitive data to prevent data theft..

Problems Solutions
Intellectual Property Protection

Intellectual property is a growing threat – 
especially with the rise of digital technology 
and internet file sharing networks. The 
personal code of ethics that used to be 
there has been replaced by impersonal 
data driven world that has little respect 
for intellectual property rights. Since the 
bureau’s data center hosts various kinds 
of system software, application software 
and other proprietary technologies 
manufactured by global technology 
companies, the bureau runs the risk of 
losing the intellectual properties of the 
companies if not properly safeguarded. 
Any failure to safeguard the IPs may lead to 
severe problem and subject the bureau to 
face litigation charges from the companies. 
The lack of adequate IP law and regulation 
in the country has further aggravated the 
situation and has given more room for the 
criminals to get engaged into IP thefts. In a 
digital world, IP thieves can operate from 
any where in relative anonymity, making 
the pool of possible suspects both wide and 
deep. IP theft can be a primary motive – or 
an opportunistic exploit. When corporate 
data can more easily be stolen, the odds 
increase that nuggets of IP can be found 
within broad swathes of data. 

The bureau has implemented an integrated and effective 
system for managing IP security that has helped bureau 
in protecting its important IP assets and proprietary 
information, and in protecting downsides of IP misuse, 
both within company and in its business chain (vendor 
and users). The bureau regularly takes stock of its critical 
IP assets and ensures that they all are safely protected 
as per the best security practices. The bureau has 
implemented a very effective incidence response plan 
to investigate and respond to security breach. It has 
employed a complex “identity and access management” 
system with “access tracking” and “detailed audit logs” 
facilities to control access to IP properties. To abort “Foil 
phishing” which is widely used by hackers to get into the 
system and steal the IP resources, the bureau employs 
a mix of spam filtering and latest antivirus to stop such 
incidents. Along with this, it employs advanced web 
filtering services to prevent employee from visiting 
malware-laced sites and anti virus software for blocking 
malware attacks. The bureau also ensures for the physical 
security of IP assets where the proprietary information, 
drawings, network design, packaging and other IP related 
items do not fall into hands of others.

62



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Problems Solutions
“Technology Change” Risk

Technological innovation is changing 
and will continue to change the way 
infrastructure is optimized and utilized. All 
the hardware (servers, switches, firewalls, 
load balancers etc) installed in the data 
center, though working perfectly now, are 
gracefully ageing towards obsolescence. 
But lurking below the surface of “perfectly 
now” lay the hidden risks that can result 
in very big problem in the future. Security 
risks are number one problem of older 
technology. They are more likely to be 
exploited by the bad guy hackers. This is 
especially true when the manufacturer is no 
longer producing the hardware or its spare 
parts or stops maintaining the support. If 
the software or firmware is not up to the 
date, the bureau is doubly at risk of a major 
security incident. Many hardware that were 
purchased few years back runs the risk of 
being obsolete in few years time with no 
replacement and spare parts.

Thus the old technology if not replaced may 
lead to i) inability to support business ii) 
security vulnerabilities iii) lower IT flexibility 
iv) Higher complexity v) lack of skills and 
support from vendors vi) Compliance issues. 
Apart from this, it will lead to increased 
operational costs, lower system reliability 
and data center agility. 

But the irony is that switch over to new 
hardware/software platform comes out to 
be very expensive for the Bureau.

The bureau’s data center has employed converged 
infrastructure and operates in virtual environment 
thus reducing the footprint of the infrastructure 
and eliminating redundant hardware. The reduced 
infrastructure minimizes the operational costs and 
improves the performance and reliability of the system 
thus making it to be cost effective, robust and agile. 
Usage of virtual environment leads to higher utilization, 
faster provisioning, lower capital expenses and operating 
costs to the bureau. Because of the lower footprint of the 
infrastructures deployed, the bureau will incur less costs 
in replacing the new hardware & software if required in 
the future. 

Nevertheless, the bureau is contemplating to move to 
the cloud environment to reduce the risks of evolving 
technology and the costs to replace them. The cloud data 
center will be pooling the resources of the computing, 
network and storage from several siloed data centers 
to create a central, more flexible resource that could be 
reallocated based on needs. Though, the bureau’s whole 
data center can be put into the cloud environment, it 
may not be a desirable solution at present looking at the 
security and sensitivity of the data that the bureau holds 
and its control on the data and the service quality. So the 
mix of “on premise” and “cloud” storage would be the best 
solution for the bureau now so that it could place most 
essential and critical data in the data center (borrowers’ 
credit records) and less confidential information (email, 
instant messaging etc)  on the cloud. But before moving 
to cloud environment, the bureau has to upgrade its 
system platform from existing 2008 to 2018 in order to 
easily integrate with the cloud infrastructures.  
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Operational Risks

Problems Solutions
Borrowers’ Identification

Though the large population of the country 
has the citizenship card as their personal 
identification, the citizenship number 
does not seem to be unique creating a lot 
of problems in correctly identifying the 
borrowers. A person may have multiple 
citizenship cards and the multiple persons 
may have same citizenship number 
making the identification process a very 
cumbersome and risky affair for the 
bureau. Having multiple citizenship cards 
and duplicate identities gives lot of avenues 
for the willful defaulters to take the loans 
from various banks and default on them.

Without correct identification, the bureau 
runs the risk of incorrect subject matching 
leading to wrong loan profiles being 
included in the person’s credit report. This 
will have serious impact on the credibility 
of the bureau and make the users 
apprehensive about using our reports for 
their lending decisions. Such incidents lead 
to quick and dramatic effect in reducing 
the number of users visiting our site thus 
affecting adversely in our earnings.

Though the citizenship number is not unique, the bureau 
has used this number along with citizenship issued 
date, issued district and borrowers’ three generation 
information to come out with an unique algorithm 
to correctly identify the borrower. This algorithm has 
remained very stable and reliable so far without any 
instances of wrong identification of borrowers or wrong 
matching of their loan profiles.

Since the volume of the borrowers’ records are increasing 
because of microfinance bureau and registry services, 
the bureau is contemplating to use biometric solution 
with KYC information and integrate the solution with 
the bureau’s database to come out with highly robust 
and reliable identification logic in the future. The bureau 
is also working with Ministry of Finance to develop the 
“National Identification Code” of the subjects under the 
“Financial Sector Development Program” initiated by the 
Ministry. 
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Problems Solutions
Data Quality

Data quality in credit bureau service is 
extremely important since the lenders 
completely rely on bureau’s data to make 
their lending decisions. The bureau always 
runs the risk of losing its credibility and 
reputation if it ever compromises on the 
quality of data which must be complete, 
correct, current and truthful. But since 
the data is collected from the banks and 
financial institutions; the accuracy of which 
bureau has least control over, maintaining 
them at the highest level is always a 
challenge, failing which the bureau runs the 
risk of losing users’ confidence and trust on 
the bureau. 

Maintaining a high standard of data quality is a priority 
for the bureau and a large amount of time and resources 
are devoted to data quality and cleansing. Additionally, 
the bureau performs regular data audits and data 
synchronization with data providers where it cleanses 
duplicate accounts and dormant accounts in the credit 
bureau data base. Ensuring that the bureau provides the 
data of highest quality begins with the data providers 
who submit the data and for this reason it is vital that 
they are fully aware and knowledgeable about the data 
submission, validation and cleansing process. The bureau 
regularly provides them the training on the subjects 
and ensures that they are familiar with the bureau’s 
requirements on the data quality.

All files need to be received in the standard format with 
complete data in all the data fields and must be sent at 
regular intervals. All the incoming data from the data 
providers are subjected to the sanity checks and are 
passed through validation engines where it goes through 
many layers of data purification process. The data that do 
not meet the quality standards are rejected and sent back 
to the data providers for the review and corrections and 
these cycles are repeated many times unless all data are 
completely purified and sent to the database.

Problems Solutions
Service Consistency

The bureau risks losing its business if its 
service is inconsistent and fails to meet 
the users’ expectations. The bureau must 
maintain its system at the best level and 
provide uninterrupted service without any 
service outages to the banks and financial 
institutions through out the year. Since the 
users (banks & financial institutions) can 
not make the lending decisions without the 
assessment of the borrowers’ credit report, 
any breakdown in service can cost them a lot 
in terms of lost lending opportunities. This 
may not only affect the bureau’s revenue 
since no credit reports will be generated 
during the period but also it loses the 
confidence of its users on its service.

Bureau has taken all the measures possible to run the 
system without any service interruption. In order to 
provide service under all foreseeable circumstances, the 
fail over mechanisms are in place and system is equipped 
with 1+1 redundancy that immediately takes over in case 
of any service breakdowns. The data center is equipped 
with back up generators, batteries, UPS, fire detection 
and suppression systems, lightning protection system, 
moisture detection system, facilities monitoring devices 
and central monitoring of all the components of the data 
center to prevent any service outages. In case of service 
breaks down in Primary Site due to power or some other 
Force Majeure reasons, Bureau can provide its service 
through its Disaster Recovery Site (DR Site) located in 
National Information Technology Center in Singh Durbar. 
The system is in warm-stand by mode and can be put into 
service immediately.
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Problems Solutions
Confidentiality of Data (User’s end)  

The bureau’s data is accessed by the users 
of the banks and financial institutions 
for the lending purposes. There are most 
likely chances that the data may be leaked 
intentionally or unintentionally by the users 
or the users may be using the credit reports 
for ulterior purposes other than specified 
thus exposing the bureau to grave data 
confidentiality risk. 

Though the bureau has least control over the users of 
the banks and financial institutions, the bureau’s service 
is restrictive and is only allowed to the authorized users 
of the banks and financial institutions. Only few “user 
accesses” are granted to each bank and each user can 
access the service only through username and password. 
The concerned banks have to be responsible for any 
misuse of data or the breach of confidentiality of the data 
by their users. As per NRB directive, the credit reports can 
be used only for the permissible purposes. Any misuse 
of the bureau’s information is considered a serious 
offence and is punishable by the regulation. The bureau 
can immediately debar the service of the bank if found 
engaged in misuse of data.

Problems Solutions

The bureau strives hard to foster a work environment 
that is positive and conducive to productivity and helps 
in attracting and retaining best talents in the company. 
Bureau hires the right people and retains them by 
cultivating a positive corporate culture where the 
wellbeing and performance based on the principles of 
commitment, trust and achievement subsists. In order 
to recruit and retain the best employees, it promotes 
a culture of trust and recognition, gives employees 
independence and the freedom to soar, promotes the 
employees from within, encourages positive work life 
balance, provides access to new technologies, invests 
in training and education, gives praise and acknowledge 
contributions, and provides a competitive compensation 
packages that is commensurate with employee’s 
contribution to the company. The management keeps 
its door open for direct communication with the staffs 
where they can share their ideas without any fear and 
inhibitions and provides a supportive platform where 
they can unleash their passions, challenge their intellects 
and engage their creativities.

Retention of IT talents

Talent shortages are very common in IT, 
and they are getting only worse these 
days. They are less in supply and more in 
demand. Today’s IT workers are in more 
control than ever before, and they have 
plenty of options to choose from. They are 
more selective about where they work and 
often bring with them lot of wish lists as 
a precondition to join the company. Apart 
from this, the rising trend of many talented 
IT engineers migrating for jobs abroad 
in droves are making the situation more 
difficult. Against this backdrop, recruiting 
and retaining top IT talents is not so easy 
and cut & dried but a very uphill task. 

As a matter of fact, attracting, developing 
and retaining IT talents is amongst the 
most formidable challenges the bureau 
faces today. Being an IT driven company 
engaged in providing online credit bureau 
and registry services to the users, the 
bureau needs IT talents that are expert 
in processing massive amounts of data, 
have analytical skills to develop various 
products, are capable of countering latest 
cyber security threats and are capable of 
delivering exceptional customer service. 
The people with these capabilities and 
talents do not come cheap. The bureau may 
face huge risk if it can not recruit and retain 
the talented staffs to man its operations 
effectively. 
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Problems Solutions
Insurance Coverage

The plants, equipment and machinery are 
exposed to number of risks inherent in 
their operations in addition to exposure to 
natural calamities. There is always the risk 
of loss or damage to the facility because 
of fire, earthquake and other natural 
calamities that may closedown the bureau’s 
operations.

All the data center equipments and infrastructures have 
been safeguarded with adequate insurance coverage.

Business Risks

Problems Solutions
Revenue Risk

The business of the bureau largely depends 
upon the business of the banks and financial 
institutions. Banks are the sole clients or 
buyers of the bureau’s services. As the 
banking business grows and the lending 
increases, so grows the credit information 
enquiries leading to the increase in the 
revenue. Similarly the slump in the banking 
business reduces the number of enquiries 
and thus its revenue. Any factor that affects 
the banking business has the reciprocal 
effect on the bureau’s business as well. Such 
reliance on a single client and its business 
make the bureau vulnerable to the business 
risk and make it difficult for the bureau to 
forecast its future cash flows and earning 
potential. 

It is expected that the Secured Transaction Registry 
service and Microfinance Bureau service will start 
generating substantial revenue in the coming years thus 
absorbing all the fluctuations in the commercial bureau 
revenue by the movement of banking sector business. 
Apart from this, the “Credit Bureau Score” which bureau 
plans to implement soon will generate additional revenue 
that will add up to the total revenue thus decreasing the 
impact of the banking sector downturns in revenue.

The bureau also plans to extend its coverage to the 
utilities and other sectors to collect the data of the serious 
defaulters from them and enrich its database. This will 
help to generate highly inclusive and comprehensive 
credit report and other products that will earn the 
additional revenue for the bureau.    
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Problems Solutions
Strategic Risk

The changes in the industry landscape such 
as the entry of new operator, technological 
shift or entry of substitute product may 
risk the bureau lose its competitive 
positioning in the market affecting its 
potential growth. Any failure of the bureau 
to develop the strategies to address those 
possible eventualities may have the serious 
consequences on the bureau’s business.

Entry of new operator

The bureau has the competitive edge in terms of the 
best ownership structure where banks and financial 
institutions along with the Nepal Rastra Bank hold equity 
and are the shareholders of the bureau. When creditors 
own the bureau, they are less likely to use the services of 
other bureaus thus increasing the entry barrier to other 
bureaus interested to gain entry into the market. Apart 
from this, the banks and financial institutions will be less 
willing to share the data with the private credit bureaus 
because of the security and confidentiality reasons. 
Against this backdrop, there is least likely chance that any 
new bureau will enter the market and be a threat to the 
bureau. On top of that, the existing bureau has already 
reaped the first mover advantage with its nation wide 
coverage and huge penetration thus establishing its firm 
foothold in the market. This will be another deterrent to 
the new entrants.

Technological changes

As discussed earlier, the virtual environment, converged 
infrastructure, lower footprint of the infrastructure 
deployed makes the bureau less risky to the technologies 
changes. Its planned migration to the cloud environment 
further reduces the risks of changes. 
Threat of substitution

The bureau faces low risk from threat of substitution 
since there are no apparent products that could replace 
the bureau products which are based on factual data 
colleted from the lenders. Nonetheless, the bureau 
has put focus on the product price, product quality, 
product performance and its user friendliness in order to 
remain competitive in the market in the face of any new 
substitution.
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Financial Risks

Problems Solutions
Compliance and Regulation

The bureau is regulated by Central Bank 
and operates under the NRB Act, associated 
by-laws and Directives. Any changes in 
regulations by NRB on data collection, 
data types and formats, blacklist criterions, 
mandatory provisions may have serious 
repercussions on the bureau’s business. 
These changes entail massive changes in 
application software which costs time and 
resources for the bureau to develop and 
implement. The bureau may face regulatory 
actions if its fails to comply with the new 
regulations.  

The bureau has made its application software flexible 
enough so that it can make appropriate adjustments 
in its system to comply with the new regulations. The 
data fields and credit report formats can be updated 
as required. The bureau has set in place a risk based 
compliance monitoring system which will assist in 
identifying, monitoring and managing the compliance 
risks. It prioritizes activities, makes alerts and updates 
actionable. The compliance risk management begins 
with designing workflows that connects the relationships 
between the compliance policies and the business 
processes, resources and regulatory standards. These 
relationships then used are to generate and track tasks 
when regulatory changes take place. 

Problems Solutions
Financial Liabilities Risk

Risks that may arise because of financial 
liabilities of the company in terms of debts, 
credits, trade and other payables.

The bureau’s financial position is very strong and sound 
at present. It does not carry any debts, credits or financial 
liabilities that may affect its business. The bureau has 
financial assets, trade and other receivables, cash and 
bank balance, short term deposits that arrive directly 
from its operations. The implementation of Silver Blade 
system and Secured Transaction Registry system was 
financed by the bureau’s own resources where as the 
microfinance bureau was financed through ADB Grant. 
Thus the bureau does not bear any financial liabilities so 
far and does not seem have so in the foreseeable future 
as well. It has the enough resources to expand its business 
on its own.    

Problems Solutions
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises when the value of an 
investment will rise or fall by the movement 
of the market interest rates. When the 
interest rate rise, the value of investments 
fall where as when interest rate fall, the 
value of the investment rise. When rates 
fall, the future investments have to be 
reinvested at lower interest rates.

Interest rate risk may not pose serious problem for the 
bureau since interest income is not the main income and 
has only marginal contribution on bureau’s total income. 
Thus any fluctuation in interest rate will have minimum 
impact on the bureau’s total earning.
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Problems Solutions

Problems Solutions
Credit Risk

The risk that counterparties will not meet 
its obligations under a financial instrument 
or customer contract which will lead to 
financial losses.

Since the customers of the Bureau are all banks & financial 
institutions, there is the minimum threat of credit risk.

Reputational Risks

Corporate reputation is best defined as 
the perception of the company in the 
minds of its stakeholders; those vital to 
the success of the business – employees, 
customers, partners, lenders, regulators, 
communities and so on. It is no wonder 
that reputation is commonly referred to 
as a company’s most valuable asset. It is at 
the heart of everything the company does. 
But it is very fragile. Where it takes decades 
to build the reputation, it takes only few 
days to destroy it. The biggest problem 
with reputational risk is that it can literally 
erupt out of nowhere. Being in service 
sector operating three major national level 
financial infrastructure services, bureau 
always runs the risk of losing its reputation 
if it fails to deliver the products and services 
as per the expectation of the stakeholders. 
Poor quality report, poor service, poor data 
security and confidentiality, decreasing 
revenue or net profit, poor financial 
indicators, lower dividend payout, poor 
management, errant employees and their 
turnover are few factors to say the least 
that may affect the bureau’s image and 
reputation.

Managing and measuring reputational risk is more 
elusive than managing technical or operational risk since 
it is not based on the facts and figures. Nonetheless, the 
bureau follows a continuing process for detection and 
management of issues that can affect reputation. It has 
the organizational resiliency to respond to the crisis when 
threatening events occur; has strong control environment 
that consists of the standards, processes, structures 
and technologies; has integrated the reputational 
risk into strategy setting and business planning; has 
strong corporate values and positive culture regarding 
compliance with laws and regulations; focuses on positive 
interactions with key stake holders and maintains quality 
public reporting. Through strategic and cultural alignment, 
a commitment to quality, a strong operational focus and 
increased resiliency, the bureau lays the foundation 
for building and sustaining strong reputation. It is this 
persistent attention that helps reducing reputation risk to 
an acceptable level.
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Employee Benefit Risks

Problems Solutions

Employees are becoming recognized as a 
critical asset in today’s knowledge based 
economy. Providing an attractive benefits 
package to highly talented employees is 
of growing importance to the company. 
Talent retention and recruitment is a 
growing challenge today, placing greater 
pressure on employee benefit packages. 
They must be robust if they are to stand a 
chance of attracting and retaining talent. 
But providing a comprehensive benefit 
packages comes with many risk and huge 
price tag. Administering employee benefit 
programs can give rise to risk of lawsuits 
for errors and omissions, not only from the 
employee members but, quite possibly, 
from their relatives as well. Employee 
benefits related lawsuits are expensive and 
time consuming which takes many years to 
resolve by the court. 

Being a small company, the scope of the bureau’s 
employees’ benefits schemes is not large enough that 
makes the bureau susceptible to the risks. The bureau has 
two benefit funds namely Gratuity Fund and Leave Fund. 
A gratuity fund is part of the total lump sum an employee 
receives from the bureau for the service rendered by the 
employee to the bureau. The amount payable as gratuity 
is equivalent to certain days/months of salary (as per the 
provisions) per year multiplied by number of years of 
service multiplied by the last salary drawn in office. 

Similarly the leave fund which is another component of 
the benefit scheme is accumulated unused home and 
sick leave that will be paid to the employee at the time 
of the retirement. The home leave can be accumulated 
for maximum of ninety days where as sick leave can be 
accumulated for maximum of forty five days during the 
total period of the service of the employee. The gross 
obligation of the company for sick leave encashment is 
calculated considering the last drawn salary multiplied 
by ninety days where as for home leave, it is last drawn 
salary multiplied by sixty days. Since the funds have 
been created, there are least likely chances that bureau 
defaults on the payment and may risk facing any legal 
challenges in the future.

In order to reduce any chances of employees’ litigations, 
the bureau takes preventive measures such as educating 
the staffs about benefit packages offered by the bureau, 
apprising them about the benefits policies and practices, 
documenting employee concerns, complaints and claims 
regarding the issues and addressing them in an amicable 
fashion to their satisfaction. 
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Issues and Problems affecting the service of the Bureau

Issues & Problems Solution Strategies
Data Quality

Data quality is a basic building block of an 
effective credit reporting environment. 
Quality of Data implies that it must be 
correct, truthful, current and complete. 
Another characteristic of data quality is its 
sufficiency and adequacy. That is, it must 
capture relevant detail information, gather 
both positive and negative information 
about credit profiles and be sufficient in 
terms of period over which observations 
are made.

But since data is collected from the banks and 
financial institutions where the bureau has 
absolutely no control, collecting the quality 
data at the regular intervals from them has 
been quite difficult and cumbersome for 
the bureau. It has to put consistent efforts 
all the time in data collection which puts 
huge operational toll on the bureau. There 
are no any strong and effective regulatory 
provisions that mandate the banks and 
financial institutions to send the data on 
time. The data providers send the data at 
their convenience making the bureau quite 
susceptible to poor quality credit report.

The bureau has been focusing on three major areas to 
address this data collection and data quality issue.

Regulation: 

As per the best international practice, one of the 
most effective ways to collect the data is through the 
implementation of “Principle of Reciprocity”. It is the set 
of guidelines governing the sharing of credit information 
and related data via the closed user groups (banks & 
financial institutions) at the credit bureau. It works under 
the principle that only those institutions that share the 
data with the bureau are entitled to receive the data 
from it. Those who fail to share the data on time will 
be precluded from receiving any information from the 
bureau. The bureau has been requesting Central Bank to 
consider this universal rule of “Principle of Reciprocity” 
in data sharing and help make necessary provisions for 
the same.

System

The bureau’s new system Silverblade embodies very 
advanced processes and procedures to check the quality 
of data. All incoming data comes in a predefined file 
format (IFF) and are subjected to validation engines 
for the sanity checks. Only those data that meet the 
set quality standards are absorbed by the system. Poor 
data are subjected to iteration cycles and are sent to 
data providers for the corrections and rectifications and 
this process continues till all the data are cleansed and 
absorbed by the system.    

Awareness

The bureau conducts regular training and awareness 
programs to the users of the member institutions to 
educate them about the importance of maintaining data 
quality and how it is going to help them in having high 
quality credit reports and various other value added 
products and services that helps them in making better 
lending decisions. Since bureau only cleanse the data 
based on predefined business rules installed in the 
validation engine, it can hardly do anything if the accuracy 
of information is compromised at the source. Thus the 
bureau puts more focus on awareness and education 
which is highly effective in maintaining data quality.
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Issues & Problems Solution Strategies

Issues & Problems Solution Strategies

Data Collection threshold

The collection of the borrowers’ records 
of only Rs.1million and above facilities as 
set by the Central Bank’s regulations has 
restricted the bureau from collecting the 
loan profiles of small borrowers who have 
borrowed less than Rs. 1million. This has 
prevented the bureau from being more 
inclusive in its data collection. The bureau 
will lose its purpose and objective if it 
cannot collect and store the information 
of all the credits, big or small, extended by 
the banks and financial institutions in the 
economy. 

Though the Central Bank is very supportive on the issue 
and has addressed this in its monetary policy 073/074, it 
has yet to be reflected in the NRB Directive without which 
banks will not be obliged to send the information of the 
small loan facilities extended by them to the bureau.

Legal and Regulatory Framework

The existing legal and regulatory framework 
have failed to address various issues related 
with the effective operation of the bureau 
such as regulatory oversight, obligations of 
bureau and data providers, data quality, data 
security and confidentiality, data subjects’ 
privacy, data collection and data exchange 
rules, compliances rules, penalties and 
punitive actions, consumer rights, dispute 
resolution process, evolving trends in credit 
reporting, international best practices etc. It 
has also failed to address the issues such as 
data subjects’ rights to challenge accuracy 
of information about them, the right to 
access data, the right to be informed on 
the collection and distribution of data etc. 
The laws and regulations should allow 
the bureau to collect the data from the 
3rd party sources such as utilities, courts, 
tax departments etc in order to make its 
database more inclusive.

Most of the bureaus all across the world have their own 
Credit Bureau Act that empowers them with all the 
necessary regulatory provisions to operate the service 
effectively. There is the immediate need to have such Act 
for Nepal bureau as well that will strengthen its operation 
and makes it more effective in delivering its service.  

The Ministry of Finance has included the preparation of 
“Credit Bureau Act” in its Financial Sector Development 
Strategy (2073/74 – 2077/78) Document approved and 
endorsed by the Cabinet in 2073/09/22. The bureau is 
working together with Ministry of Finance and Donor 
Agencies (World Bank/DFID) to prepare the Act.
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New Systems and their Operational Challenges

Though all three systems (Silver Blade, Microfinance Bureau and Secured Transaction Registry) have been launched, 
the services are still to go on a full swing and reach to its target market segments.  There are many challenges on the 
way and bureau has to develop required strategies to address those challenges and move ahead. 

Challenges Solution Strategies
Secured Transaction Registry Service

Though the bureau completely focused on 
the banks and financial institutions during 
the initial period of its launch of the service 
because of the regulatory provision related 
with the prior transaction registrations, 
the major challenge exists to penetrate 
the service in other sectors other than 
banks and financial institutions. Since many 
users, apart from the banks and financial 
institutions, are still unaware about the STR 
service, its wide spread use may take years 
before it starts making serious impact on 
the credit market of the economy.

The target group extends beyond the 
banking sector to the SMEs, corporate 
houses, lending agencies, government 
entities (courts, ministries etc), private 
businesses and consumers who will be prime 
users of the service in the future. Unless 
the service reaches to those segments, 
its success can not be guaranteed and the 
whole purpose of introducing the Registry 
service will be defeated.

The bureau has developed two pronged strategies to 
target the segments.

i) Education and awareness programs

The bureau plans to roll out extensive series of education 
and awareness programs in the following years that 
will educate the people about the Registry and its 
benefits. Bureau will conduct workshops and use press 
and broadcast media or use media mix to conduct the 
awareness programs to reach to different target groups.

The bureau will work together with Ministry of Finance 
and other funding agencies to raise the awareness and 
promote the service all across the country.

ii) System Accessibility

In order to make the service successful, the system 
should be such that any one can access the system easily 
from any parts of the country where internet service is 
available and register the notices without any problems. 
In short, the system must be accessible and user friendly. 
At the same time, the information to be filled up must be 
kept as minimum as possible that takes only few minutes 
to register the notice.  

The bureau has developed very simple yet user friendly 
system that can be used by any one with simple computer 
skills and register the notices without any difficulties. 
The notice contains the minimum information about the 
borrower, debtor and collateral only. 

The bureau will keep on improving the system to make 
it more user friendly in the future as per the suggestions 
of the users. Apart from this, the bureau will keep on 
upgrading its system based on the changes in the STR 
Act and Regulation.
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Challenges Solution Strategies
Microfinance Bureau Service

The microfinance bureau service has 
been moving on a slow pace with only 
fifty one microfinance institutions joining 
the bureau till fiscal year end 2074. Many 
microfinance institutions suffer from sector 
specific problems such as inaccurate and 
incomplete data, poor IT infrastructures, 
unskilled IT staffs, poor management, lack 
of resources and awareness about the 
benefits of sharing the data. 

Apart from this, the existing legal and 
regulatory framework is not adequate 
enough for the effective operation of the 
bureau. The regulation fails to address the 
issues like duties and responsibilities of the 
bureau and data providers, data quality, 
data security and confidentiality, data 
collection and data sharing rules, consumer 
rights, penalties and regulatory actions 
in case of poor compliances etc. Without 
appropriate legislation, the microfinance 
credit bureau is for all practical purposes 
ineffective.          

The success of the MF bureau largely 
depends on the tariff since high tariff may 
discourage many MF institutions from 
joining the bureau. Low tariff may make the 
operation of the MF bureau unsustainable. 
Thus the challenge exists in setting up the 
tariff that is acceptable to both the MF 
institutions and the bureau.  Since the 
service is still on the Pilot run period, no 
fees have been charged for the service. 
Once the Pilot run period is over, the tariffs 
will be applicable. The Pilot Run period 
ends on Asar end, 2076.

Market Penetration 

Since there are large number of microfinance institutions 
with varying levels of strength, capability and readiness 
to join the bureau, the bureau will focus the microfinance 
institutions on a phase wise basis (top-down approach) 
with all the microfinance development banks and MF 
institutions regulated by Nepal Rastra Bank in the first 
phase followed by others in the later phases as indicated 
below:

Phase I: All microfinance development banks and MF 
institutions regulated by the Central Bank (Top Tier)

Phase II: All micro-credit institutions located in Kathmandu 
valley (Mid Tier)

Phase III: All micro-credit institutions located in regional 
centers and towns (Bottom/Low Tier)

Phase IV: All micro-credit institutions across the country  
(complete coverage)
 
Though the bureau targets the microfinance institutions 
on a phase wise basis, any microfinance institutions, big 
or small, may join the bureau if they are ready to be the 
member and share the data with the bureau.  
Thus the Bureau will be capable of collecting large 
portion of borrowers’ information available in the sector 
by focusing only on the top tier MF institutions regulated 
by NRB. Based on available data on the borrowers 
served, the top 20 MFIs of the country cover 89.4% of 
the total borrowers, 96% of the total disbursement and 
93% of the total outstanding loans. The RDBs has 25% of 
the total borrowers where as private MFDBs and other 
micro institutions occupy nearly 42% and 33% of the total 
borrowers’ base.   

Most of the top tier MFIs has relatively good data quality, 
MIS capability, skilled staffs and resources to upgrade 
their system and share the data with the bureau. 

Legal and Regulatory Framework

The Bureau is working with Central Bank to come out 
with the highly inclusive regulations that incorporates all 
the major issues including the “Principle of Reciprocity” 
in data sharing. This universally applicable rule is a highly 
effective tool in data collection that enforces the MF 
institutions to share the data with the bureau if they intend 
to have information from it. Only those information that 
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share the information with the bureau will be entitled to 
have the access to the bureau’s information.

  
Tariff

The bureau will be putting the MF bureau service on a 
Pilot Run till the end of 075/076 to study the Hit patterns 
(generation of credit reports) of the service in order to 
ascertain total number of Hits that will be used to set up 
the tariff.  

As per the NRB Directive, a committee comprising the 
members from MF associations, Central Bank, Ministry of 
Finance and the bureau will be formed to set up the tariff 
structure based on the bureau’s operating costs to run 
the service.    

Education and Awareness

The bureau has been conducting trainings and workshops 
regularly to train the users of the microfinance institutions 
about MF bureau system and service and educate them 
about the benefits of the bureau and how it is going 
to help them in addressing sector specific issues such 
as delinquent loans and multiple lending and over 
indebtedness. The bureau will keep on conducting such 
trainings through out the various phases targeting all big 
and small micro credit institutions all across the country.  

Challenges Solution Strategies
Silverblade System

Though the Silverblade system has been 
launched and is in operation, its success 
in the long run depends on its service 
quality and new products that it brings to 
the market. The quality of the data and the 
credit report, the efficiency and consistency 
of the service, effective help desk and 
dispute resolution mechanisms, security 
and confidentiality, fast response cycle time 
all will affect its success.

The bureau will be focusing on collecting all the borrowers’ 
records from the banks and financial institutions and 
improving its data quality in order to enrich its repository 
with high quality data. Though the existing service meets 
all the quality benchmarks, the bureau will keep on 
improving the system based on the feedbacks received 
from the member institutions and deploy latest software 
upgrades to make the system more functional and user 
friendly.

The bureau will keep constant vigil on the system security 
and ensure that the security is maintained at every level of 
the system architecture. All the latest security measures 
will be employed to thwart any attempt of unauthorized 
access to the system. The objective lies in insulating the 
whole system from external threats while allowing the 
information to be accessible all the time to the users. 
New versions of firewall, data encryption, passwords will 
be applied on a regular basis and infrastructures will be 
upgraded accordingly.

76



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Help Desk and Dispute Resolution is the most critical 
component of the Silverblade system which addresses the 
various concerns of the users on line by raising the tickets 
in a chronological order. The system will be updated on a 
regular basis to incorporate the suggestions of the users 
on the Dispute module.

The bureau is in the process of rolling out various value-
added products starting from the credit bureau score 
to other products on the phase wise basis soon. The 
Silverblade system will also be collecting the data from 
the 3rd party sources in order to make the credit report 
more inclusive and of high value. 
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MF Bureau Service Implementation Strategy
Legal and Regulatory Framework

•	 requirement for mandatory participation of MFIs in the Bureau.

•	 regulatory provisions incorporating the issues like roles and responsibilities 
of bureau and data providers, information reporting, data quality, 
consumer protection, and privacy & secrecy provisions, penalties & regulatory 
actions etc.

PUSH

PULL

PULL

PUSH

Education and Awareness Building (Phase I- Phase IV)

•	 focused campaign to increase awareness among the various tiers of 
microfinance institutions on the following areas:

i) MF bureau system and services
ii) benefits of MF Credit Bureau
iii) benefits of maintaining data quality
iv) benefits of sharing both positive and negative information at 
 regular intervals.

Tariff
•	 the tariff structure will be finalized by the end of Pilot Run Period 
 (Year end 075/076)

Principle of Reciprocity 
•	  Share the information = access the information  
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Action Plans for the Year 075/076

Though all three systems are in 
operation, the services are still 
to pick its momentum and pace. 
The objective of the bureau 
would be to constantly monitor 
their performances, bring the 
efficiency and effectiveness in 
their services and increase their 
growths. The collection of data, 
its sanitization and maturity, 
hardware system performances 
and improvements, security of 
the systems, confidentiality of 
the data, education and trainings, 
capacity building and institutional 
development of the bureau are few 
areas where the bureau will put its 
focus in the year 075/076.

•	 Though Silverblade system is 
stable by now and delivering the 
expected output, there are likely 
chances that it may encounter 
some bugs or system errors in 
the future. The bureau needs to 
continuously monitor the system 
performances and ensure that 
system delivers uninterrupted 
high quality service to its users 
all through out the year. Apart 
from this, since many banks are 
still lagging behind in sending 
their borrowers’ records to the 
bureau, the bureau will work 
with those banks to collect 
all their data and enrich the 
database.

•	 The year 074/075 saw only 
fifty one (51) microfinance 
institutions joining the bureau 
and sharing the data with 
it. The bureau will put all its 
efforts in increasing the number 
of microfinance institutions 
in its database in the year 
075/076. There are many large 
MF institutions regulated by 
Central Bank that are yet to 
join the bureau. Unless the top 
tier MF institutions join the 
bureau and share the data with 

it, the credit reports shall have 
limited information about the 
borrowers and fails to provide 
complete exposure about them. 
This will put lending institutions 
at grave credit risks.

•	 Though the bureau has been 
conducting the trainings and 
workshops on regular intervals, 
the bureau plans to increase 
their frequencies in order 
educate the BFIs and MFIs on 
the systems and services, the 
data quality, data submission, 
input file format, changes 
and updates on new systems, 
dispute resolution module & 
its usage etc. In the case of 
MFIs, the bureau has to put 
additional efforts in bringing 
awareness among the MFIs 
about the benefits of joining 
the bureau and how it is going 
to help solve the sector specific 
problems such as multiple 
lending, over indebtedness and 
delinquent loans. The bureau 
has to inculcate the importance 
of “information based lending” 
and use of it to address the 
above problems.

•	 The year 074/075 saw the slow 
growth of STR service. The major 
users were banks and financial 
institutions who registered their 
prior transaction notices along 
with the new notices. There 
were no notices registered by 
the SMEs, corporate, businesses 
and consumers during the 
period. Since the registry 
service was introduced to help 
these segments extend the 
credits against the movable 
assets and diversify their credit 
market, there is immediate 
need to generate awareness 
among these segments about 
the registry and its benefits. The 
bureau will carry out extensive 

awareness programs in the 
075/076 in the form of seminar, 
workshops, trainings etc in 
various parts of the country to 
educate the people about the 
same.

•	 The bureau will request the 
Central Bank to help develop 
and implement the required 
regulations for the commercial 
bureau and microfinance 
bureau that will help the 
bureau to operate the service 
efficiently and effectively as 
per the best international 
practices. The issues such as 
rights and responsibilities of 
data providers and the bureau, 
data quality, data submission 
and sharing rules, data security 
and confidentiality, borrowers’ 
rights etc need to be addressed 
in the Regulation.

•	 The bureau will start working 
on the implementation of 
Credit Bureau Score.  The credit 
score is a three digit number 
calculated based on the credit 
report information of the 
borrower. The higher the credit 
score, the better may be the 
borrower’s chances of availing 
loan or credit card faster and on 
favorable terms.

•	 The bureau will take new 
measures on the capacity 
building and institutional 
development of the 
company which includes risk 
management and control 
system; the recruitment and 
strengthening of the workforce; 
tools & incentives and trainings 
and education to the staffs; 
improvement in the business 
processes, structure, ethics and 
culture of the company etc.
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16. Long Term Action Plans

•	 Organize the Business and 
its Processes around a strong 
technology platform. Use 
technology all across the 
operations to increase efficiency 
in service delivery, reduce costs 
of operations, provide internal 
support system and manage 
changes fast etc.

•	 Enhance the scope of operation 
by collecting information from 
3rd Party sources such as utilities, 
leasing companies, insurance 
companies, investment funds 
and other lending institutions. 
Enrich the quality of the credit 
report by making it more 
inclusive and informative.

•	 Work closely with the Ministry 
of Finance to have a dedicated 
Charter Act for the bureau 
which will help it to collect 
the information from 3rd 

Party sources. The Ministry 
of Finance along with Donor 
Agencies has already initiated 
the preparation of Charter 
Act under the Financial sector 
Stability Program (FSSP).

•	 Roll out various kinds of value 
added products and services 
on a phase wise basis based on 
the borrowers’ data stored in 
the Database. This includes the 
simple products like credit score, 
and identification verification 
in the initial years followed by 
more complex products such 
as Fraud Prevention, Marketing 
Services, Basel II models and 
Behavioral Statistics in later 
years.

•	 Expand the service of 
microfinance bureau to reach to 
all the microfinance institutions 
all across the country within five 

years of the implementation of 
the service.

•	 Establish bureau as one 
window solutions provider 
for various kinds of credit risk 
assessment solutions to the 
banks and financial institutions 
of the country by building 
the largest credit information 
data bank and adopting world 
class technology, practices and 
solutions.

•	 Establish bureau at par with 
other credit bureau operators 
of the region in terms of the 
quality of service, scale and 
scope of operations.

•	 Build its own premise to house 
its office and Primary Data 
Center.

Short Term and Long Term Action Plans in Tabular form.

074/075

Close Legacy 
System

075/076 076/077 + Years

i)  Request NRB for the required regulation 
     (Regulation for data <1million facilities; Principle of Reciprocity)    
ii) Collect the data of less than 1million facilities
iii) Bring maturity in collected data
iv) Bring continual improvement in the quality of the credit report
iv) Expedite the implementation of credit bureau score

i) Searching
<1million facilitiesii)
ii) Launch credit bureau score 
iii) 3rd Party data collection
iv) Charter Act 
v) Bureau’s own Premise  
vi) Other value added products 

1. Commercial Bureau (Silver Blade)
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2. Microfinance Bureau

3. Secured Transaction Registry

074/075

074/075

Pilot Run

* Focus on BFIs
* Registration of
   prior transaction
  & new registrations

075/076
Pilot Run

075/076
Pilot Run

075/076
Pilot Run

Year 076/077 + Years

Year 076/077 +  Years

i) Increase the number of member institutions
ii) Collect the data and mature the database
iii) Resolve the tariff issue with MOF, NRB and MF  
iv) Work with NRB for the regulatory issues   
v) Focus on Awareness 

i)  Commercial use
ii) Bureau Service Penetration 
    all across the country

i) STR Service penetration
   across all target groups

* Focus on SMEs, Micro enterprises, corporate, Business 
* Focus on Public Awareness 
* Focus on Service Quality and System Upgrade
* Changes in STR regulation/Act if any

The following table outlines the activities undertaken during different phases of bureau’s operation. Phase I (066-
070) has been completed with outstanding performance. Phase II has also been completed except for collecting 
the information below Rs1million credit facilities which is still in process. Phase III aims to complete many projects 
including opening the search for loan disbursements of any amount irrespective of threshold, the credit bureau 
score, Charter Act and building the bureau’s own premise. 

66-70
(PHASE I)

71-75
(PHASE II)

76-80
(PHASE III)

*  Company introduced web 
based online system in 066.

*  Generation of Credit Reports 
increased by 332%.

*  Net Profit increased by 487%.

* Data Quality improved by 
employing better validation & 
matching techniques

*  Bring new Commercial Bureau 
System (Silverblade) into 
Operation  (Done)

*   Bring  Microfinance Bureau
 System into operation (Done)

*  Bring STR service into 
operation (Done)

*  Collect & Update all borrowers’ 
records below Rs 1million 
facilities available with BFIs. 
(In process)

*  Validate and Sanitize the data 
thus collected and mature the 
database. (In process)

*  Open the search for loan
 disbursements of any amount.

*  Credit Bureau Score

*  Highly inclusive CR

*  Identity Verification

*  Bureau’s own Premise

*  Charter Act
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Identity 
Verification

Application
Processing

Basel II
Models

Credit
Scoring

Fraud
Prevention

Marketing
Services

Highly
inclusive CR

Portfolio
Monitoring

Behavioral
Statistics

PR
OD

UC
TS

Bureau plans to roll out various kinds of value added products and services on a phase wise basis as follows:

2-5 Years 6-10 Years 11-15 Years

17. Growth Potential and future prospects of credit bureau in Nepal

Access to finance is a major 
challenge in Nepal. It is an 
essential component of economic 
development and job creation. The 
ability to access affordable credit is 
a critical element of private sector 
led growth, particularly for small 
businesses that often lack the initial 
capital to grow and expand their 
businesses. Despite the tremendous 
need, large population of the 
country including MSMEs does not 
have access to credit. 

It is recognized globally that a 
matured and developed financial 
sector must have efficient and 
effective financial systems to 
manage credit risks in order 
to sustain the financial needs 
of the government, industry 
and consumers. The increased 
competition in finance and banking 
sector usually lends to a number of 
unforeseen difficulties along with 
increased problems of borrowers 
over-indebtedness, reduced loan 
repayment incentives and growing 

arrears of financial institutions. 
Weakening performance of lending 
institutions in a competitive market 
is due in part to the absence of 
information sharing among the 
institutions which leads to increase 
the asymmetric information 
among them. The goal of the credit 
information bureau is to ease this 
fundamental problem of asymmetric 
information among lenders.

Credit Information Bureau is a 
critical element of the country’s 
financial infrastructure, and is 
essential to facilitating access to 
financial service. It plays a crucial 
role toward improving credit 
market performance and acts 
as the information brokers that 
increase the transparency of credit 
markets. The practical consequence 
is a better risk management, which 
enables banks and other financial 
institutions to increase their 
lending volume and extend credit 
to underserved segments of the 
population. The core purpose of the 

bureau is to facilitate information 
sharing by building transparent, 
reliable and dynamic information 
network for the benefit of the credit 
industry. Optimal and logical use 
of this information network fuels 
business growth while boosting 
credit penetration and macro 
development of the country.

With the help of information sharing, 
banks and financial Institutions can 
make better lending decisions, use 
risk-based pricing methods more 
effectively, manage credit lines, 
collect debt more successfully and 
reduce fraud. They can also benefit 
operationally through increased 
automation leading to lower costs 
and more consistent decisions. More 
reliable and confident decisions can 
be made based on robust data and 
objective analytics at every stage 
of customer life cycle. This results 
in improved process efficiencies, 
faster turn around times and more 
efficient risk management. Because 
of the overall level of consumer’s 
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indebtedness that can be 
calculated, it is easier to determine 
the probability of default and the 
potential loss, both aspects that 
helps in adherence with Basel II.

Being able to extend credit 
based on informed decisions can 
fuel economic growth, increase 
consumer access to essential 
resources and enable more efficient 
allocation of risk, costs and financial 
reserves. The bureau can also lead 
to greater inclusiveness of low 
income borrowers due to efficiency 
gains on the part of the lenders via 
the lowered default rates. It helps 
support the sound and fair extension 
of credit in a country’s economy 
as the foundation for the robust 
and competitive credit market. 
It helps ensure financial stability 
by enabling responsible access to 
finance and play an instrumental 
role in expanding access to credit 
and other services on credit to the 
underserved and un-banked.

In competitive markets, the benefits 
of credit reporting activities are 
passed on to the borrowers in the 
form of lower interest rate or lower 

cost of capital, which has a positive 
influence on productive investment 
spending. Improved information 
flows also provide the basis for fact 
based and quick credit assessment, 
thus facilitating access to credit 
and other financial products to 
a larger number of borrowers 
with good credit history (i.e. good 
repayment prospects). One of the 
most important functions of the 
bureau is to encourage reliance on 
“reputational collateral” as opposed 
to the physical collateral. Perhaps, 
most important, credit reporting 
allows borrowers to build credit 
history and to use this credit history 
as “reputational collateral” to access 
formal credit from the established 
lending institutions.

Credit information makes credit 
cycle more cost effective, which 
could eventually translate into 
borrowings at better terms for 
consumers. Without objective 
credit information, lenders set 
prices according to average risk 
levels or use subjective, less precise 
methods of evaluation.  This results 
in products that are excessively 
expensive for low-risk consumers 

and unfairly inexpensive for high-
risk consumers. By making the 
costs of extending credit lower, 
credit information enables lenders 
to extend credit to many extra 
customers, and at overall lower 
costs. This means that millions of 
Nepali borrowers can now benefit 
with lenders increasingly adopting 
the credit information as a crucial 
parameter in their credit decision-
making process.

The credit reporting also plays 
a significant role in supporting 
financial sector regulation and 
supervision, both from the micro-
prudential perspective as well as 
from a macro prudential angle. 
It supports financial regulator 
(Central Bank) in supervising 
regulated institutions in order to 
ensure that the latter remain safe 
and sound, minimizing systemic 
risk. The Central Bank can access 
all the necessary data from the 
credit bureau that will help them 
discharge its respective micro- and 
macro- prudential supervisory and 
regulatory responsibilities.   

CIB Impact Summary

Consumers SMEs Members (BFIs) Regulator (NRB)

*Faster & Easier Access 
to Credit

*Reduced Cost of 
Borrowing for good 
borrowers with 
demonstrated credit 
performance.

*Faster & easier access 
to credit

*Reduces SMEs high 
risk perception among 
lenders

*Reduces cost of 
borrowing

*Helps in development

*Increased market 
penetration

*Operating efficiency

*Shift to Information 
Based Banking

*Differential Pricing

*Comprehensive risk 
review of clients

*Reduces NPLs and 
default probability 
levels in economy

*Provides effective 
credit risk monitoring 
mechanism

*Facilitates credit 
expansion without 
increasing risk
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Growth Potential of Secured Transaction Registry

Nepal is an entrepreneurial economy 
with an estimated 350,000 cottage, 
small, micro and medium enterprises 
in the country, and their contribution 
to the economic growth and job 
creation is significant. There are also 
a large number of self employed 
entrepreneurs who support 
themselves and their families by 
supplying goods and services to the 
economy. Many of these businesses 
have the potential to become bigger 
and more prosperous, but their 
growth is restricted for a variety of 
reasons. Access to Finance has been 
singled out as a crucial prerequisite 
to the growth of these businesses.

Only missing link between the 
MSME sector and the financial 
institution is the “collateral” that 
could provide the necessary capital 
for them to grow. Smaller firms 
often lack the collateral required to 
access formal loans, such as land or 
fixed property making them risky 
clients in the eyes of the financial 
sector. This means formal lending is 
virtually inaccessible for these small 
businesses and entrepreneurs who 
instead rely on informal, unregulated 
and unpredictable credit in order to 
expand their operations.

To improve the access to finance 
and promote inclusive economic 
growth, the Credit Information 
Bureau, with the assistance of the 

Ministry of Finance, has established 
Secured Transaction Registry in the 
country. The secured transaction in 
movable assets regime will provide 
the institutional and regulatory 
framework needed to facilitate 
greater lending to MSMEs, even 
without access to land or buildings. 
It will provide the opportunity for 
many small businesses to grow 
their business through formal and 
more affordable financing. It could 
also provide a great opportunity 
for the financial sector, which could 
diversify its products and grow its 
lending portfolio to include more 
MSMEs.  

Generally, a secured transaction is a 
loan or a credit transaction in which 
the lender acquires security interest 
in movable collateral owned by the 
borrower and is entitled to foreclose 
on or repossess the collateral on 
the event of borrowers default. By 
enabling lenders to take security 
interest in collateral (that is the 
movable assets of debtor), the law 
of the secured transactions provides 
the lenders with assurance of legal 
relief in case of default by the 
borrower. The availability of such 
remedies encourages lenders to 
lend capital at lower interest rates, 
which in turn facilitates the free flow 
of credit and stimulates economic 
growth of the country. 

Thus the secured transaction reforms 
reduce the security aspect of risks 
to lenders, increase the number of 
eligible borrowers, and increase the 
range of borrowing instruments for 
accessing credit. It can have a strong 
positive impact on SME finance, by 
building greater transparency in 
the financial system, enhancing the 
rights of the creditors and debtors 
and providing for certainty in the 
priority scheme against 3rd parties, 
hence giving financial institutions 
greater confidence to lend against 
movable asset of SMEs. The lenders 
can seize the goods and sell them 
without first having to go through 
the courts. Thus the operation of 
Registry service shall contribute 
to the growth of private sector 
development by increasing the level 
of credit and decreasing the cost of 
credit in the country’s economy. 

Nonetheless, it is needed to be 
understood that secured transaction 
registry service is not a magic 
elixir that can grow an economy 
overnight, but it is certainly one 
the most important financial & 
legal infrastructures the country 
needs to have if it wishes to have 
a thriving economy. There is now 
sufficient data from a number of 
countries to demonstrate that it can 
have beneficial effects, especially as 
applied to MSMEs. 

STR Impact Summary

Increase Access to Credit reducing
the risk of Credit
- Underserved MSMEs
- Promotes risk management
- Promotes prudent lending       
  
Increase Market Competition
- Development of Industries
- NBFIs  

Promotes Credit Diversification
- Credit risk diversification:
   immovable & movable

Reduces the Cost of Credit
- Better interest rates
- move from informal to formal financing
- cost savings for businesses  
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Growth Potential of Microfinance Bureau

Over the past twenty years, the 
number of microfinance institutions 
has grown rapidly in the country, 
driven in part by the recognition 
of its value as a development 
tool, and in part by promotion 
by government, international 
development bodies, donors and 
socially oriented investors. With 
the increase in MF institutions, 
there has been the parallel 
increase in multiple lending, credit 
delinquencies and borrowers’ over 
indebtedness in the sector. Several 
factors have contributed to this 
deterioration, such as inadequate 
risk management systems and 
controls, internal organization 
weaknesses, excessive growth in 
narrow geographies, combined 
with unhealthy lending practices 
that affected borrower repayment 
incentives and behaviors.

The search for the solutions to this 
crisis highlighted the critical role 
that credit reporting can play in 
averting or reducing the risks of 
over indebtedness and borrower 
defaults prevalent in the sector. The 
MF credit bureau was established 
with the sole purpose of developing 
a culture of “information based 
lending” in the microfinance sector 
and to improve the abilities of 

micro-lenders to originate loans and 
manage credit risk effectively thus 
creating a powerful incentive for 
repayment among borrowers. 

The microfinance credit bureau 
would be a vital ingredient to restrain 
the growth of credit delinquencies 
and extend access to financial 
services to the poor. The bureau 
acts as an intermediary between 
lenders and borrowers and brings 
many benefits to both creditor and 
debtor, helping to create a credit-
conscious culture while reducing 
the number of delinquencies 
on loans. It will provide better 
methods for risk management as 
sharing credit information reduces 
a lender’s uncertainty about 
borrower’s exposure, and at the 
same time protects the borrower 
from becoming over indebted. 
From a broader perspective, a MF 
Bureau will encourage competition 
among lenders, reduce the cost 
of borrowing for good customers, 
enhance the compliance culture, 
and promote greater economic 
activity among the vast majority of 
Nepal’s population.

Those MFIs who are connected 
to the bureau can reduce their 
operational costs and can have 

a comparative advantage in the 
market; that is, they can drop their 
lending rates, offer more products, 
increase their market share, and 
achieve greater financial self-
sufficiency. Mobile banking (or 
branchless banking) which is taking 
its momentum now is likely to grow 
rapidly in Nepal and should enhance 
the need for and value of an MFCIB, 
since it will permit the deepening 
and broadening of the MFCIB data 
base.
 
To put it in an encapsulated form, the 
MF bureau has a huge potential to 
grow in the future. With the growing 
number of microfinance institutions 
and increasing subscriber base, 
it can play a meaningful role in 
supporting the microfinance 
institutions to mitigate various 
anomalies and risks associated 
with the credit expansion. It has 
the potential of overcoming sector 
specific weaknesses, extending 
the reach and benefits of the 
“microfinance” to the poor. It will 
extend outreach of the credit to low 
income families, mitigate poverty by 
expanding access to finance, reduce 
operational costs of MFIs and 
promote credit culture and more 
competition among the MFIs.  

MF Bureau Impact Summary

Enhances coordination & sharing 
of loan portfolio among MFIs

Increases potential scale and 
depth of outreach

Increases compliance with Basel 
I and II

Improves Portfolio management 
and diminishes credit risk

Reduction in Transaction Costs Increases access to Finance

Improves 
culture of 

Repayment

Reduces Risk 
of Client Over 
indebtedness
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International trends in Credit Bureau development and its impacts in Nepal Bureau

In the early days of credit bureaus 
local merchants were sharing 
information about local residents 
who might be bad credit risks, and 
it did not consist of much more 
than a list of people who had not 
paid off their debts. The early credit 
reporting companies represented 
cooperative efforts among creditors 
in specific region and were operated 
solely for the benefit of its members. 
They typically limited their credit 
related reporting to negative or 
“derogatory” information.    

The political, technological, and 
market pressure that exerted 
themselves on the credit reporting 
industry during 1970s played an 
important role in shaping the 
modern day credit reporting 
company. Also during this decade, 
the industry harnessed the power 
of computers and databases to 
process, organize, and report on 
credit data. Those agencies that 
adopted computer technology 
realized operating efficiencies that 
allowed them to move data faster 
and attract more business. 
By the start of 1980, the content, 
storage and processing of credit 
reports changed dramatically. 
More accurate information was 
electronically stored accompanied 
by loan enquiry and public record 
information. Overall, computer 
technology, market forces and 
the new legal and regulatory 
frameworks helped develop the 
integrated system of modern day 
credit bureau serving the entire 
society. Over the past few decades 
starting especially from 1990, there 
has been massive growth in the 
number of credit bureaus around 
the world with 196 credit bureaus 
in 109 countries till the end of 2017 
(IFC Updates).  There are 39 credit 
bureaus in Africa, 55 in Latin and 
North America, 44 in Asia and 58 in 
Europe.

A number of factors can be attributed 
to this proliferation of credit 
reporting, including spreading of 
market based economies, expansion 
of retail lending, and advancement 
in information technology combined 
with reductions in their cost. These 
factors accounted for the increased 
need for and the decreased costs of 
credit reporting services. In addition 
to these “organic drivers”, there has 
been increased attention on the 
positive economic and social impacts 
made by the credit reporting and 
private credit bureaus in particular. 
These impacts, in turn, have 
driven policy makers, regulators 
and development organizations to 
prioritize the development of credit 
information sharing. Today, market 
actors and policy makers view credit 
reporting as a key aspect of nation’s 
financial infrastructure.

The Asian financial crisis during 
the late 1990s led to an urgent 
call for credit information sharing 
among financial institutions in Asian 
economies. After the crisis, several 
local and foreign based credit 
bureaus were created, with the 
countries’ Central Banks being the 
key drivers. In fact, the bureaus in 
many Asian countries are partially 
or fully owned by governments. Five 
of the nine South Asian countries 
have public credit bureaus while 
four countries have private credit 
bureaus. The coverage of the credit 
information in these South Asian 
economies is not as impressive as 
compared to that of Asia Pacific 
economies such as Malaysia, Hong 
Kong and Singapore. Thus the 
average depth of credit information 
of Asian economies still lags behind 
other regions in the world. As said 
above, since there are 44 credit 
bureaus in Asia, their distribution 
region wise are as follows: North 
Asia 3; Eastern Asia 9; South East 

Asia 9; Austral 6; South Asia 8 and 
Western Asia 9.    

Africa credit markets are 
underdeveloped with the lowest 
credit penetration in the world. 
Middle East and North African 
countries have recently seen a 
growing interest in credit reporting, 
and Tunisia, Egypt and Morocco have 
successfully reformed their credit 
bureau recently. As for Sub Sahara 
Africa, with the exception of South 
Africa, only eight countries have 
private or public bureaus. However 
between 2002 -2007, important 
legal changes were made to enable 
private credit bureau operations 
in Ghana, Uganda, Tanzania and 
Zambia, and three private bureaus 
were established in Nigeria. Several 
countries including Mozambique, 
Angola, Madagascar and Mauritius 
have also recently established 
credit bureaus. A major challenge in 
developing credit bureau in Africa is 
the small size of the credit markets, 
as credit bureaus rely on economies 
of scale to cover their large upfront 
investment through sale of credit 
reports. Across Africa, we are seeing 
more and more countries drive 
implementation of the necessary 
regulatory framework to ensure 
greater financial inclusion that 
is underpinned by fair and equal 
access to credit information by 
consumers and businesses.

There are nearly 40 credit reporting 
agencies in the U.S. But just three 
of these credit bureaus dominate 
the market: Trans Union, Equifax 
and Experian. Originally, these 
companies only served regional 
markets in West, Midwest, South 
and East. However, they each 
acquired smaller credit bureaus 
until they become national in 
scope. At present all three report on 
people’s credit all over 50 states and 
dominate the US market. The quality 
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of Latin American credit bureaus 
varies by country, but scores high 
as a region, even when compared 
to U.S. credit bureaus. There are 34 
registered credit bureaus in Latin 
America; more than half have been 
in operation since 1990. The most 
sophisticated of these is in Brazil, 
where the interests of the central 
bank and chamber of commerce 

coincided long enough to build 
Seresa, the centralized registry that 
sells and shares data.

Most of the credit bureaus all over 
the world are either fully owned, 
partially owned or associated with 
leading Credit Reporting Service 
Providers (CRSPs) such as Experian, 
Trans Union, Equifax and Credit Info. 

These four CRSPs account for at least 
73 bureaus spread all across the 
globe. Apart from this, there are few 
small operators such as CRB Africa, 
Compuscan, Dun & Bradstreet, 
CRIF and Veda Advantage that are 
emerging strongly in the global 
market.  

Bureau Africa America Asia Europe Total

Experian 2 3 2 13 20

Trans Union 5 13 2 1 21

Credit Info 2 2 1 11 16

Equifax 11 1 4 16

CRB Africa 8 8

Compuscan 4 4

D&B 1 5 6

CRIF 3 1 4

XDS 3 3

Veda Advantage 2 2

Other 15 25 28 28 96

Total 39 55 44 58 196

Many of the credit bureaus 
originated as local operations in 
which majors have taken a share 
or bought outright. In terms of 
number of names at least 40% are 
independent local operators with a 
narrow country focus. In some cases, 
the majors have even sold certain 
national operations to locals (Trans 
Union sold its Brazilian operations 
to Boa Vista, before it bought CRB 
Africa).  

It has also been observed across 
the globe that the bureaus differ 
in their ownership structure. There 
are two extremes in this regard. 
On one extreme, one, two or a few 
very large data furnishers (typically 
lenders) own the majority of the 
private bureaus where as on the 
other independent/third parties 
own the bureau. Evidence suggests 
that bank ownership may not 
inhibit bureau development in the 
very early stages. Instead, bank 

ownership of the bureaus may help 
get data reported by banks that own 
the bureau. However concentrated 
majority ownership by banks 
appears to act as a drag beyond 
this initial stage by misaligning 
incentives. In these circumstances, 
credit bureau incentives to create 
value added service and products 
that serve all lending and non 
lending markets appear to be weak. 
And in the extreme, the bureau 
can become a tool to serve the 
narrower interests of the owners. 
Bank ownership has also been seen 
to fragment data sharing as one 
group of lenders owns a bureau and 
only reports to the bureau that they 
own, where as other lenders then 
establish their own bureau, and 
only report to it. The fragmented 
data inhibits value added service 
development and competitions as 
bureaus have different sets of data 
and do not compete directly in 
terms of price, value added service 

and data quality. As such private 
bureaus ownership by independent 
third parties (not data furnishers 
or data users) is seen as optimal 
owner configuration to enable long 
term bureau and credit information 
sharing development. 

On regulation and governance, 
there are no any discernible 
patterns that rule the credit bureau 
operations across the globe. Many 
economies are developing models 
of regulatory implementation and 
oversight based on their specific 
concerns, needs, and capacities. 
The legal and regulatory regimes 
have been customized to meet the 
idiosyncrasies of the local market 
with varying objectives (financial 
inclusion, economic development, 
privacy, consumer protection) 
and the capacities of the key 
stakeholders (regulators, judicial 
system, data providers, credit 
bureaus and end users). Many 
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regimes focuses on the balance that 
credit bureau must strike between 
making the lending markets more 
efficient by reducing information 
asymmetries and providing 
value added services that enable 
financial inclusion and reduce over 
indebtedness, on the one hand, and 
protecting consumers information 
rights, data privacy, misuse of data, 
including the inaccurate data from 
the other. Though the contents of 
the regulatory framework differs 
based on the economies, most 
of the countries have very strong 
legal and regulatory framework in 
place in the form of Statutory Act 
that empowers bureaus with all 
the regulatory provisions to deliver 
the effective bureau services to its 
users.         

SAARC region is also very much 
developed in terms of coverage 
of credit information services. All 
the countries have installed very 
advanced credit bureaus developed 
by leading Credit Reporting Service 

Providers. TransUnion/CIBIL is 
India’s leading credit information 
company and maintains one of the 
largest collections of consumer 
information globally and maintains 
credit record of 550million 
individuals and businesses. In 2017, 
TranUnion acquired 92.1% stake in 
CIBIL. Apart from CIBIL, there are 
Equifax, Experian and High Mark 
who have already established their 
footholds in the Indian market. 
Credit Information Bureau of Sri 
Lanka (CRIB) which was established 
in 1990 is a public private 
partnership company, with the 
Central Bank holding the majority of 
equity while the rest is held by the 
lending institutions regulated by the 
Central Bank. In Pakistan, apart from 
the credit bureau run by State Bank 
of Pakistan, it has four private credit 
bureaus in operation. Similarly, 
the Central Banks of Bangladesh, 
Bhutan and Maldives each have a 
credit bureau developed by CRIF, 
D&B and D&B respectively. 

The Nepal bureau has put in place 
highly advanced credit bureau 
system called “Silver Blade” which 
is technically more superior as 
compared to other bureaus of the 
region in terms evolving technology, 
system quality and services. Unlike 
the growing trend of private 
ownership of credit bureaus in 
various parts of the world, the 
Nepal bureau is owned by the banks 
and financial institutions (data 
providers) and the Central Bank of 
the country. This structure so far 
has remained very effective in the 
governance of the bureau. However, 
as compared to other countries, 
the bureau suffers from the lack 
of strong legal and regulatory 
framework that is vital for the 
growth of credit reporting system 
in the country. The lack of this has 
affected the bureau’s penetration 
of service in the economy and 
ultimately its contribution in the 
access to finance. 
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Shareholders    

Board always ensures that the shareholders are regularly informed and apprised about the company’s financial 
position, business potential, policies, market trends, issues and problems so that they can share their views and 
suggestions to the Board through the appropriate platform. Board aims to incorporate the suggestions made by the 
shareholders if they add value in company’s business and give it a competitive edge. The communication with the 
shareholders generally commences on annual general meeting where Board engages in extensive discussions with 
the shareholders on the company’s matters. Apart from this, shareholders are regularly communicated through 
annual reports, business reports, company’s web site, briefing sessions and personal meetings.    

Regulator & External agencies

Central Bank

The Kendra communicates with the Regulator (Nepal Rastra Bank) on the regular basis and brings to its notice various 
issues related with the operations of the bureau. It also brings to the notice the implications and effectiveness of 
various NRB regulations that have the direct bearings on the operation of the bureau. Regulator provides feedbacks 
and suggestions to the bureau as required.

Ministry of Finance

The Kendra works closely with Ministry of Finance regarding the Secured Transaction Registry service and holds 
regular interactions with the Registrar on the matters related with the operation of the Registry.

Bureau’s Relations with its Stakeholders 

The bureau’s relationship with 
stakeholders is crucial for the 
bureau’s success. The engagement 
of the stakeholders are important 
in helping the bureau express its 
values, carry out its mission, develop 
strategies, implement processes 
and improve relations on a continual 
basis. The good relationships 
helps build networks that develop 
credible, united voices about issues, 
products, and/or service that are 
important for the bureau’s growth. 
A chorus of voices and supporting 
hands of the stakeholders can 

harmoniously crescendo, reaching 
desired audience with the right 
message at the right time.  

Bureau has maintained very good 
relations with all its stakeholders 
and is committed to further 
strengthen its relations for the 
purpose of generating a mutual 
understanding of objectives, trust 
and confidence between the bureau 
and its shareholders. It endeavors 
to maintain candid and constructive 
relations with all its shareholders 
and ensures that they are always 

provided with ready, equal and 
timely access to balanced and 
understandable information about 
the company, its plans and policies 
and operational strategies.

The bureau’s common business 
stakeholders include users (all 
member banks and financial 
institutions), promoter 
shareholders, Regulators (Nepal 
Rastra Bank & Ministry of Finance) 
and Donor Agencies.

Users (All member banks)

Kendra encourages the member institutions to come forward with their problems and regularly seeks their 
suggestions in improving the services of the bureau. It holds regular meetings with them to make them aware 
about new technologies being introduced by the bureau and conduct trainings to make them familiar with these 
technologies. The bureau informs the members through emails and other mediums and keeps them at close 
proximity in sharing the relevant information about the bureau on time.  
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The bureau extends its helping hand to Daayitwa, Nepal which envisions a thriving Nepal where all citizens embrace 
their responsibilities to collectively transform societal challenges into innovative opportunities. The objective lies 
in building a movement of young leaders who are guided by shared values of collaborating, innovating and serving 
to create solutions to tackle systematic issues in Nepal. The bureau being one of the major financial infrastructures 
of the country supports all the endeavors that promotes inclusive and enterprise driven economic growth, fosters 
capability building among the youths so that they can bring about positive transformation for a resilient and thriving 
Nepal. This small contribution goes in helping Daayitwa in its endeavor to build a movement of young rural SME 
entrepreneurs who accelerate their innovations and nurture entrepreneurial communities for the new Nepal.

External Agencies

Kendra has maintained very cordial relations with donor agencies such as Asian Development Bank, World Bank, 
International Finance Corporation and has received financial as well as technical assistance from them time and 
again. It also has been getting good help and assistance from Nepal Bankers Association, Nepal Development Banks 
Association, Nepal Finance Companies Association and others to promote the causes of the bureau. The bureau 
holds formal and informal meetings regularly with the representatives of those institutions and briefs them about 
the current status of the bureau.

Corporate Social Responsibility

(Mr. Anil Chandra Adhikari, CEO of the Bureau, handing over the 
Cheque to Mr. Pukar Malla of Daayitwa)

90



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Financial Discussions

Statement of the Financial Position as at 32nd Asadh, 2075

Particulars 073/074 074/075

Assets

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 90,835,386 76,233,966

Intangible Assets 183,917,808 233,992,168

Deferred Tax Asset 364,157 1,820,034

Total Non Current Assets 275,117,351 312,046,168

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 25,682,370 18,955,633

Trade Receivables 18,078,596 20,339,054

Prepaid Expenses & Advances 35,496,734 2,468,619

Financial Assets measured as amortized 
costs (FD)

561,800,000 709,100,000

Financial Assets held at fair value through 
profit & loss (Shares)

1,000,000 1,894,200

Total Current Assets 642,057,700 752,757,506

Total Assets 917,175,051 1,064,803,674

Equity & Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities

Retirement benefit obligation 1,998,312 2,158,632

Trade & Other Payables 13,496.743 29,973,058

Deferred Grant/Fund from ADB 231,369,813 185,095,850

Deferred Tax Liability

Total Non Current Liabilities 246,864,868 217,227,540

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 31,504,960 46,748,273

Total Current Liabilities 31,504,960 46,728,273

Equity

Share Capital 155,112,000 232,668,000

Reserve & Surplus 483,693,223 568,159,861

Total Equity 638,805,223 800,827,861

Total Equity & Liabilities 917,175,051 1,064,803,674

Statement of Profit & Loss and other Comprehensive Income

Particulars 073/074 074/075

Income from Operations

Service Charge 229,899,182 321,405,766

Total Operating Income 229,899,182 321,405,766

Operating Expenses

Staff Cost 14,434,572 18,929,391

General Administration Expenses 33,076,247 34,028,807

Depreciation and amortization 2,418,504 77,160,707

Total Operating Expenses 49,929,323 130,118,905

Operating Profit 179,969,859 191,286,861

Other Incomes

Finance Income 32,358,307 59,111,135

Dividend Income 100,000 150,000

ADB Grant Income ------- 46,273,963

Loss on sale of assets 55,962 2,205

Profit before Income Tax 212,372,204 296,819,754

Staff Bonus 19,306,564 29,681,975

Taxation 48,890,135 67,007,791

Current Income Tax 48,165,484 68,687,218

Deferred Tax (Income/Expenses) 724,651 (1,679,427)

Profit for the Year 144,175,505 200,129,988

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) /Expenses

Net Gains/loss on available for 
sale investments

894,200

Less Tax expenses relating to 
components of OCI

(223,550)

Total OCI for the year 670,650

Attributable to:
Equity Shareholders

144,175,505 200,800,638

91



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Comparative Statement of Financial Position of Ashad End 2074 and Ashad End 2075
In millions

Particulars 074/075 073/074 Difference

ASSETS NRs
% of the total 

liabilities/assets
NRs

% of the total 
liabilities/assets

NRs %

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 76.23 7.16 90.84 9.90 -14.60 -16.08

Intangible Assets 233.99 21.98 183.92 20.05 50.07 27.23

Deferred Tax Asset 1.82 0.17 0.36 0.04 1.46 399.79

Total Non-Current Assets 312.05 29.31 275.12 30.00 36.93 13.42

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 18.96 1.78 25.68 2.80 -6.73 -26.19

Trade Receivables 20.34 1.91 18.08 1.97 2.26 12.50

Prepaid Expenses & Advances 2.47 0.23 35.50 3.87 -33.03 -93.05

Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost (FD) 709.10 66.59 561.80 61.25 147.30 26.22

Financial Assets held at fair value through Profit or Loss 
(Shares)

1.89 0.18 1.00 0.11 0.89 89.42

Total Current Assets 752.76 70.69 642.06 70.00 110.7 17.24%

Total Assets 1064.8 100 917.17 100 147.63 16.10

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

Retirement Benefit Obligations 2.16 0.20 1.998 0.22 0.16 8.02

Trade & Other Payables 29.97 2.81 13.45 1.47 16.48 122.00

Deferred Grant/Fund from Asian Development Bank 185.10 17.38 231.37 25.23 -46.27 -20

Deferred Tax Liability 0.00 - 0.00 - -

Total Non-Current Liabilities 217.23 20.40 246.86 26.92 -29.64 -12.01

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 46.75 4.39 31.50 3.43 15.24 48.38

Total Current Liabilities 46.75 4.39 31.50 3.43 15.24 48.38

Equity

Share Capital 232.67 21.85 155.11 16.91 77.56 50.00

Reserve and Surplus 568.16 53.36 483.69 52.74 84.47 17.46

Total Equity 800.23 75.21 638.80 69.65 162.02 25.36

Total Equity & Liabilities 1064.8 100 917.17 100 147.63 16.10
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Comparative Statement of Profit & Loss of  074/075 & 073/074
In millions

Particulars 074/075
% of total core 
income 

073/074
%of the to core 
income

Changes

Amount %

Income from Operations

Income from Service Charges 313.47 97.53% 229.53 99.84% 83.94 36.57%

Income From STR 7.93 2.47% 0.37 0.16% 7.56 2030%

Income from core service 321.4 100 229.90 100% 91.51 39.8%

Operating Expenses

Salary &Allowance  18.93 5.89 14.43 6.28% 4.49 31.14%

Administrative Expenses 34.03 10.59 33.08 14.39% 0.95 2.88%

Depreciation and Amortization 77.16 24.01 2.42 1.05% 74.74 3090.43%

Operating Expenses 130.12 40.44 49.93 21.72% 80.19 160.6%

Operating Profit 191.29 59.52 179.97 78.28% 11.32 6.29%

Interest Income 59.11 32.36 26.75

Dividend Income .15 0.10 .05

AGB Grant Income 46.27 46.27

Loss on Sale of Assets .0022 0.056 -0.054 -100%

Profit before Tax and Bonus 296.82 212.37 84.45 39.76%

Staff Bonus 29.68 9.24 19.31 8.4% 10.38 53.74%

Taxation 67.01 20.85 48.89 21.27% 18.12 37.06%

Current Income Tax 68.69 21.37 48.17 20.95% 20.52 42.61%

Deferred Tax (Income)/Exp. -1.68 -0.52 0.72 0.31% -2.4

Profit for the Year 200.13 62.27 144.17 62.71% 55.95 38.8%

Other Comprehensive Income/Expenses

Net Gains on Available for Sale Investments 0.89 0.89

Actual Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefits Plan - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income/Expenses 0.89 0.89

Less: Tax Expenses relating to components of OCI 0.22 0.22

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 0.67 0.67

Attributable to:
Equity Shareholders

200.89 62.50% 144.17 62.70% 56.72 39.34%
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Assets (Non Current)

•	 The total assets that included both current and non current assets increased by 16.1% from Rs.917million in 
073/074 to Rs1064.8million in 074/075. Apart from the property plant, equipment and deferred taxes assets, 
all the assets are taken as current assets unless disclosed otherwise.

The non current assets that consists of property & plant, intangibles and deferred tax assets increased by 13.4% 
to Rs.312million where as current assets that comprises of cash & cash equivalents, trade receivables, prepaid 
expenses & advances and current fixed deposits increased by 17.24% to Rs.752.76million. 

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 % Changes

Non Current Assets 275,117,351 312,046,168 13.42%

Current Assets 642,057,700 752,757,506 17.24%

Total Assets 917,175,051 1,064,803,674 16.1%

•	 All property, plant, and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The major cost in Property, 
Plant and Equipment (nearly 90% of the total Rs.90.8million) includes the cost associated with the infrastructure 
equipment installed in the Data Center to render the commercial bureau, microfinance bureau and secured 
transaction registry services to the users. It also includes computers, furniture & fixtures and vehicles. Some 
office equipment worth Rs.4.2million were purchased and some non usable assets worth Rs.2,205 were disposed 
off during the period. The total depreciation cost amounted to Rs.18.8Mn leading to the net book value of the 
tangible assets at the Asar end 2075 to be Rs.76.2 million. 

•	 Intangibles included the costs of all kinds of software installed in the Data Center. This included the costs associated 
with the oracle, Microsoft and other system software installed in the System. Since “Building, Structures and 
similar Works” are the types of assets that need to be amortized for their useful life, it has also been included 
in intangible assets. Similarly, the costs associated with the development of Silverblade system which was put in 
use from the beginning of the year has been added for the amortization. The total amortization cost amounted 
to Rs.58.36million leading to the net book value of the intangible assets at the Asar end to be Rs233.99million.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 90,835,386 76,233,966 -16%

Intangible Assets 183,917,808 233,992,168 27.2%

Deferred Tax Asset 364,157 1,820,034 399.8%

Total Non Current Asset 275,117,351 312,046,168 13.42%

The details of the movements and calculations of depreciation & amortizations expenses are given in the table.

Particulars
Opening 
Balance

(074/075)

Assets 
Added

Assets 
Disposed

Depreciable 
Assets value

Depreciation
Closing 
Balance

(074/075)

Tangible Assets
(Depreciation)

90,835,386 4,204,363 2,205 95,037,544 18,803,577 76,233,966

Intangible Assets
(Amortization)

183,917,808 108,431,490 ----- 292,349,298 58,357,130 233,992,168

Total 274,753,194 112,635,853 2,205 387,386,842 77,160,707 310,226,134

The Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the costs of the assets to their residual 
values over the estimated useful lives. The useful lives for Data Center, Vehicle, Furniture and fixtures, computer 
and office equipment, software are assumed as 10years, 5 years, 6 years 5 years and 5 years respectively. The 
useful life for leasehold improvement is over the life of the leased period.
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•	 The deferred tax asset arising due to temporary difference between tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements amounted to Rs1.8million as compared to 
Rs.0.36million in 073/074. Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will 
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Current and deferred tax relating to items 
which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged to equity and is subsequently recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss together with the current or deferred gain or loss. Since the investment made 
in ICRA has been measured at fair value this year, there have been some movements in deferred tax calculation 
as shown on the table which is reflected accordingly in Financial Statement & PL account.

Particulars Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary Difference

Property, Plant & Equipment 310,226,135 312,428,782 (2,202,647)

Defined Benefit Plan Provision 5,046,500 (5,175,570)

Performance Incentive 304,523 (304,523)

Lease Liability 491,593 (491,593)

Investment 1,894,200 1,000,000 894,200

Total (7,280,134)

Tax Rate @25% (1,820,034)

                                       Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) -31/03/2075
                                       Deferred Tax Expense/Income – 2074-75                                       
                                       Deferred Tax Liability/Asset -31-03-2074
                                       Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) – 074/075 P&L
                                       Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) – 2074-75 OCI  

(1,820,034)
(1,455,877)
(364,157)
(1,679,427)
223,550

Rs.

Rs.

Assets (Current)

•	 Cash and cash equivalents” that is classified as loans and receivables and subsequently measured at amortized 
costs has decreased by 26% to Rs.18.9million. The company always maintains a policy of maintaining right 
balance among cash in hand, investment opportunities and working capital. Excess cash may lead to lost 
investment opportunities and reduced return on assets where as inadequate cash may lead to deficiency in 
working capital.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 25,682,370 18,955,633 -26%

Trade Receivables 18,078,596 20,339,054 12.5%

Prepaid Expenses and Advances 35,496,734 2,468,619 -93%

Financial Assets measured at amortized costs (Fixed Deposits) 561,800,000 709,100,000 26.2%

Financial Assets held at fair value through Profit or Loss (Shares) 1,000,000 1,894,200 89.4%

Total Current Assets 642,057,700 752,757,506 17.24%

•	 “Trade receivables” that consists of “service charge receivables” and “interest accrued receivables” increased 
by 12.5% to Rs20.34million. The service charge receivable increased by 80% to Rs11.5million where as 
interest accrued receivable decreased by 24.7% to Rs8.7million. The bureau encountered some time lag in the 
adjustments of the Hits records duplications that resulted in some delay in the invoice generation and collection 
process of the last month (month of Asar) invoice bills leading to the high receivables. Some efficiency gain was 
achieved in the collection of interest income that resulted in its decrease by 24.7% as compared to the previous 
year.   

95



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 072/073 Changes

Trade Receivables

Service Charge Receivable 6,408,299 11,551,742 80%

Interest Accrued Receivable 11,670,297 8,787,312 -24.7%

Total Trade Receivables 18,078,596 20,339,054 12.5%

•	 Because of the increase in service charge receivable this year, the account receivable as a percentage of the 
total invoice bills has increased marginally to 3.6% as compared to 2.78% in 073/074. Average collection period 
of invoice bills has also increased from 10 days to 13days.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

067/068 068/69 069/070 070/071 071/072 072/073 073/074 074/075

Total  Invoice 64,378,968 8,2933,858 112,271,008 140,550,540 169,862,348 207,384,390 229,899,182 321,405,766

Service Charge Receivable 4,265,269 4,003,328 4,250,910 4,810,153 5,500,152 5,958,679 6,408,299 11,551,742

% Receivable  6.6% 4.8% 3.8% 3.4% 3.2% 2.8% 2.78% 3.6%

•	 Prepaid Expenses decreased by nearly 93% because of the massive reduction in “advance taxes” and “other 
receivables and advances” components.  The bureau took a cautious measure to pay the taxes based on the 
expected revenue thus reducing the advanced tax paid by nearly 64% as compared to the year 073/074. 
Similarly the advance payments made by the bureau to the D&B as per the contractual terms and conditions 
were recorded as expenses after the launch of the Silverblade service thus reducing the “other receivables and 
advances” amount substantially by 99% as compared to 073/074.  

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Prepaid Expenses & Advances

NLIC (Loan Deposit) 476,668 109,213 -77%

Staff Advances 229,109 74,518 -67.5%

Advance Tax (Net) 5,825,311 2087,074 -64%

Other receivables & advances 28,953,968 197,814 -99%

Staff Loan 11,678 ---------

Cheque in Hand

Total 35,496,734 2,468,619 -93%
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Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Fixed Deposit

Current 561,800,000 709,100,000 26%

Non current ----- ----- ----

•	 The Investment in Corporate Security included equity investments of Rs.1million in ICRA Nepal Limited. The 
investment was made in 068/069 and the bureau holds 5% stake in the company and has one representation in 
its Board of Directors. The investment made in ICRA has been measured at the fair value this year based on the 
ICRA’s net worth as declared in its audited financial statement of the year 2074.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Investment in Corporate Security

Corporate Security (ICRA) 1,000,000 1,894,200 89.4%

Liabilities (Non current)

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Non Current Liabilities 

Retirement & Benefit Obligations 1,998,312 2,158,632 8%

Trade & other Payables 13,496,743 29,973,058 122%

Fund from Asian Development Bank 231,369,813 185,095,850 -20%

Total Non Current Liabilities 246,864,868 217,227,540 -12%

•	 The Retirement and benefit obligation takes both Leave Fund and Gratuity Fund into account. During the period, 
provision for gratuity liability charged through profit and loss account amounted to Rs.1,526,393 that led to 
increase the gratuity fund from Rs.1,178,241 in 073/074 to Rs.2,704,634 in 074/075. The Board decided to 
provide Gratuity to all the contractual staffs with effective from the month of Bhadra 2074, as per the provision 
made in the new Labor Act of the country thus increasing the Gratuity fund by nearly 129.5% as compared 
to the previous year.  The gratuity fund has been deposited separately with the Citizen’s Investment Trust 
(CIT). Similarly Leave provision of Rs.472,623.5 was made during the period thus increasing the Leave Fund 
balance from Rs.1,998,312 in 073/074 to Rs2,470,936. The total liability of Gratuity & Leave fund amounting 
to Rs.5,175,570 was thus adjusted against the Balance for Gratuity Fund at CIT amounting to Rs.3,016,938 
resulting in the net retirement benefit liability of Rs.2,158,632 for the year.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Retirement & Benefit Obligations

Gratuity Liability 1,178,241 2,704,634 129.5%

Leave liability 1,998,312 2,470,936 23.65%

Total  liability 3,176,553 5,175,570 62.9%

Balance for Gratuity Fund at CIT 1,178,241 3,016,938 156%

Net liability 19,98,312 2,158,632 8%

•	 The Investments (Fixed Deposits) increased by 26% from Rs561.8million in 073/074 to Rs709.1million in 074/075. 
All the revenues that were earned through the operations were invested in short term and long term deposit 
accounts of various banks and financial institutions as per the criteria set forth by the Board. The growing 
revenue base of the company along with compounded value of the earlier investments led to the increase in 
the “investment” account. 
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•	 Non current trade payables included accrued rent amount and deferred income on Secured Transaction Registry. 
The accrued rent amount was created due to lease rental for the office premises charged on straight line basis in 
accordance with the lease. The rental charge including the increments was calculated for ten years period and its 
ten year average was compared against the current rental charge paid for the year. The difference amounting to 
Rs.0.98million was recorded as non current lease payables for the year. The deferred income of Rs28.99million 
on STR service was created due to allocation of STR income for five years period as per the provisions of the Act.      

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Trade & Other Payables (Non Current)

Lease payable (as per NFRS on operating lease) 491,593 983,186 100%

Deferred Income on Secured Transaction Registry 13,005,150 28,989,872 123%

13,496,743 29,973,058 122%

Lease payable increased by 100% where as deferred income on STR increased by 123% leading to the increase 
in non current lease payable by 122% as compared to the year 073/074.

•	 The bureau received the Grant of Rs.231million from Asian Development Bank in 071/072 for the implementation 
of microfinance bureau system. The system has already been in use from the beginning of the year 074/075. 
Grants relating to intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are 
credited to the profit or loss over the expected lives of the related assets. 

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Deferred Grant/Fund from Asian Development Bank

Initial Grant amount 231,369,813 231,369,813

Less: Grant Assets Depreciation (46,273,963)

Total (Reflected in SOFP) 231,369,813 185,095,850 -20%

Grant Income (Reflected in SOPL) 46,273,963

The depreciation on hardware and amortization of software is charged to depreciation and amortization expenses 
respectively and the corresponding amount charged as the grant income.

Liabilities (Current)

The current “trade and other payables” increased by 48.4% to Rs.46.7million with major payable components being 
the bonus payable, deferred income on Secured Transaction, advance received from STR and other miscellaneous 
payables. The bonus payable occupied nearly 63.5% of the total payables where as deferred income on STR and 
advance received from STR occupied nearly 19.6% and 11% of the total payables respectively. Similarly the above 
three major components, bonus payable, deferred income on secured transactions and advance received from STR 
increased by 53.1%, 174.4% and 5.8% respectively this year as compared to the previous year.

Current Liabilities 

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Changes

Trade & Other Payables 31,504,960 46,748,273 48.4%
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Rs.

Equity

•	 The share capital increased by 50% because of the issue of 50% bonus share (1:2; one bonus share for every 
two shares held) to its shareholders as per the decision reached by the 13th AGM of the company. The Reserve 
and Surplus that included the Retained Earning, General Reserve, Capital Reserve also increased by 17.46% 
to Rs568.16million leading to increase the equity capital by 25.36% to Rs.800.8million. The Retained earnings 
include the face value of the investment made in ICRA Nepal.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Equity

Share Capital 155,112,000 232,668,000 50%

Reserve & Surplus 483,693,223 568,159,861 17.46%

Total Equity 638,805,223 800,827,861 25.36%

Rs.

Rs.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Reserves

Retained Earnings 337,093,050 381,533,690 13.18%

General Reserve 139,300,916 179,326,914 28.73%

Capital Reserve 7,299,257 7,299,257 0%

Total Reserve 483,693,223 568,159,861 17.46%

•	 The retained earnings increased by 13.18% to Rs.381.5million after adding the net profit and adding/deducting 
all the essentials (fair value of the investment, general reserve, deferred tax reserve etc). The bureau sets aside 
20% of the net profit to the general reserve every year until the General Reserve is equal to two times to paid 
up capital as mentioned in the section 18(b)(4) of the company’s article of association. The Capital Reserve that 
was created at initial years of the bureau’s establishment has been left unused and unchanged since then.

Profit & Loss

•	 The revenue from credit bureau services (service charges) amounted to Rs.313.5million where as from 
registry service (STR) amounted to Rs.7.9million leading to increase in revenue from core services by 39.8% to 
Rs.321.4million. Though the actual revenue generated by the STR service during the period was Rs.28.9million, 
it was distributed for five years period to comply with the provisions of the STR Act resulting in the revenue 
of Rs.4.6million being allocated for this fiscal year from this year’s revenue. Apart from this, the revenue of 
Rs.3.3million that was earned in previous year and distributed accordingly was also added to this year’s revenue 
thus making the total STR revenue of Rs.7.9million for the year.

 Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Revenues from Service Charges

Revenue from Service Charges 229,526,732 313,472,475 36.6%

Revenue from STR 372,450 7,933,291

Total  229,899,182 321,405,766 39.8%
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Rs.

Rs.

•	 The Interest Income increased by 82.7% because of the higher interest rate offered by the banks and financial 
institutions at their fixed deposit accounts during the period. The bureau makes the investments in banks and 
financial institutions based on certain criterion as decided by the Board.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Finance Income

Interest from Deposits 32,358,307 59,111,135 82.7%

•	 The bureau earned Rs.0.15million as the dividend from its investment in ICRA Nepal this year.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Dividend  Income

Interest from Deposits 100,000 150,000 50%

•	 The grant received from the ADB has been recorded as income this year because of the operation of the 
microfinance bureau for which the Grant was provided.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Grant Income

Grant Income 46,273,963 100%

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Total Income

Total income (income from core services, finance, dividend 
& ADB Grant) 

262,357,489 426,940,864 62.7%

•	 As the previous years, the Commercial Banks were the largest contributor of the service revenue followed by 
National Development Banks, Regional Development Banks and Finance Companies. The revenue from the 
Co-operatives and Others were minimal. Service Charge from the “Others” included the revenue from the “self 
declaration report” (official Blacklist Report that bureau generates for the borrowers upon their request) and 
new member registrations. 

S. No. Names
Revenue 

Generated
% of the 

total

1. Commercial Banks  (CB) 238,877,870 76.2%

2. National Development Banks 42,385,835 13.5%

3. Regional Development Banks 14,515,275 4.6%

4. Finance Companies 14,042,670 4.5%

5. Co-operatives & Others 3,650,825 1.2%

Total 313,472,475 100%
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Rs.

Categories of lending institutions Revenue Generated Increments % Increments %  of the Total 
Increments074/075 073/074

Commercial Banks (CB) 238,877,870 161,938,065 76,939,805 47.5% 91.6%

Development Banks/National (NDB) 42,385,835 34,076,845 8,308,990 24.4% 9.9%

Development Banks/Regional (RDB) 14,515,275 17,381,400 -2,866,125 -16.5% -3.4%

Finance Companies (FC) 14,042,670 12,632,250 1,410,420 11.2% 1.7%

Co-operatives and others (CO) 3,650,825 3,498,172 152,653 4.4% .2%

Total Revenue 313,472,475 229,526,732 83,945,743 36.6% 100%

Rs.

•	 The operating expenses excluding depreciation increased by 11.47% to Rs.52.9million this year as compared 
to Rs47.5million in 073/074. The staff related expenses which primarily consisted of salary, provident fund, 
leave provision, gratuity etc increased by 31.1% to Rs.18.9million where as administrative expenses increased 
by only 2.87% to Rs.34million. The staffs were given the hike in their salaries late in the year (01 Jestha, 2075) 
and provided with Gratuity and Provident Fund benefits with effective from the month of Bhadra 2074 that led 
to the substantial increase in staff related expenses. The bureau implemented a very strong austerity measures 
to cut down its admin cost resulting in the marginal increase in admin expenses. The major components of 
administrative expenses were AMC expenses, rental expenses, utility expenses, web expenses etc. As in previous 
years, AMC occupied nearly 72% of the total administrative expenses. The AMC expenses covered the repair 
and maintenance of all the infrastructure equipments (hardware and system software) installed in the Data 
Center including the renewal of the software licenses installed in the systems. 

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Expenses

Salary, Allowances & staff related expenses 14,434,572 18,929,391 31.1%

Administrative Expenses 33,076,247 34,028,807 2.87%

Operating expenses excluding Depreciation 47,510,819 52,958,198 11.47%
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•	 There was the massive increase in Depreciation expenses which shoot up by 3090% to Rs.77.2million. The 
new tangible and intangible assets worth Rs.112.6million were added into the system where as the assets 
worth Rs.2205 were disposed off leading to the total depreciable asset balance of Rs387.4million. The total 
depreciation/amortization for the period amounted to Rs.77million leading to the closing balance of the assets 
at the end of the year amounting to Rs.310.2million. Since all three systems were launched from the beginning 
of the year, all tangible and intangible assets were subjected to depreciation and amortization.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization 2,418,504 77,160,707 3,090%

•	 The operating expenses including depreciation amounted to Rs.130.12million this year as compared to 
Rs49.9million in 073/074.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Expenses

Salary, Allowances & staff related expenses 14,434,572 18,929,391 31.1%

Administrative Expenses 33,076,247 34,028,807 2.87%

Operating expenses excluding Depreciation 47,510,819 52,958,198 11.47%

Depreciation Expenses 2,418,504 77,160,707 3,090%

Operating Expenses including Depreciation 49,929,323 130,118,905 160.6%

•	 The company disposed off an asset with the book value of Rs.2,205 during the period. 

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Loss on sale of assets (55,962) 2,205 -

Rs.

Rs.

•	 The company earned the Profit before bonus & Taxes of Rs.296.9million this year as compared to Rs.212.3million 
in 073/074 thus achieving the growth of 39.8% and the increment of Rs84.5million.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Incomes

Total revenue (income from core services, finance, dividend & ADB Grant) 262,357,489 426,940,864 62.7%

Operating Expenses including Depreciation (49,929,323) (130,118,905) 160.6%

Non Operating Expenses (Loss on sale of assets) (55,962) 2,205

Profit before Bonus & Tax (PBT) 212,372,204 296,819,754 39.76%
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•	 As per the increase in operating profit, the provision for bonus also increased accordingly by 53.74% to 
Rs.29.68million. The company has set aside 10% of its accounting profit as staff bonus from this FY 2074/075 as 
per the decision of the Honorable Supreme Court in one of the cases dated 2073/04/30. Earlier the bonus has 
been set aside on net profit computed including such bonus. 

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

……Expenses

Provision for Bonus 19,306,564 29,681,975 53.74%

•	 The company made the pretax profit of Rs.267.1million this year. The provision for Income Tax as per the Income 
Tax Act 2058 for the year amounted to Rs.67million out of which current tax expenses amounted to Rs.68.69 
where as deferred tax expenses amounted to 1.68million.

Particulars Year 073/074 Year 074/075 Increase

Profit Before Tax 193,065,640 267,137,779 38.36%

Provision for Taxation with Deferred Tax 48,890,135 67,007,791 37.05%

a. Current Tax Expenses 48,165,484 68,687,218

b. Deferred Tax Expenses 724,651 (1,679,427)

Net Profit 144,175,505 200,129,988 38.8%
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•	 The ICRA’s net worth per share amounted to 
Rs189.42 at the closure of fiscal year 2074. 
With the bureau’s 10,000 number of shares, 
the face value of the ICRA’s investment goes up 
to Rs.1,894,229 which has been reflected in the 
Balance Sheet (Financial Assets held at fair value 
through Profit or Loss)  of the bureau for the year 
2075.

Other Comprehensive (OCI) Income (Expenses)

Particulars 073/074 074/075

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) /Expenses

Net Gains/loss on available for 
sale investments

894,200

Less Tax expenses relating to 
components of OCI

(223,550)

Total OCI for the year 670,650

Attributable to:
Equity Shareholders

144,175,505 200,800,638

Net worth of ICRA Nepal (2074) Rs.37,884,588

Number of Share 200,000

NAV per Share 189.42

Number of Shares hold by  bureau 10,000

Fair value 1,894,229

Cost 1,000,000

Gain 894,229
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Internal Control Systems

Internal control and risk 
management are fundamental 
components of good corporate 
governance.  The bureau has 
employed a very effective internal 
control system that incorporates a 
set of rules, policies and procedures 
that safeguard company’s assets and 
resources, encourage incorruptibility 
and deter fraudulent activities, 
ensure reliability and integrity of the 
accounting and management data, 
produce reliable and timely financial 
and management information, 
ensure compliance with all existing 
rules and regulations and conduct 
business in an orderly, efficient 
and effective manner. The bureau 
periodically evaluates the efficiency 
of internal control processes so 
that it can fit into and adapt to 
continuously changing risk profiles. 

The bureau’s framework for internal 
control system consists of the 
following elements: 
Control environment: consists 
of elements such as established 
values, management philosophy, 
assignment of responsibility and the 
leadership and guidance provided by 
the senior management on internal 
control. It focuses on integrity and 
ethical behavior, commitment 
to investigating discrepancies, 
commitment to competencies and 
diligence in designing systems and 
assigning responsibilities.

Control activities: includes policies 
and procedures that help ensure 
that necessary actions are taken 
to address risks. It includes various 
aspects such as segregation of 
duties, authorizations, account 

reconciliations, verifications, 
reviews of operating performance 
and information processing controls 
that ensure the protection of assets 
and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial statements.  

Risk Assessment: includes the 
identification, analysis and 
evaluation of various risks that 
affect bureau’s business objectives. 
As business risks are constantly 
changing, internal control 
mechanisms are made to be able 
to adapt and address risks resulting 
from these changes. 

Information & Communication: 
includes the focus on effective means 
to identify, process and aggregate all 
pertinent information on business 
operations and communicate and 
disseminate the information within 
the company in an efficient and 
effective manner. Internal control 
processes ensure that important 
information is passed on efficiently 
between management and staff, 
as well as between the bureau and 
the external stakeholders including 
users, promoter shareholders and 
regulator.

Monitoring:  includes the assessment 
of quality of internal control 
performance over time. The bureau 
regularly monitors the internal 
control processes and immediately 
makes necessary adjustments if the 
failures are observed.

The bureau employs both preventive 
and detective control activities. 
Both types of controls are essential 
to an effective control system. From 

quality standpoint, preventive 
controls are essential because they 
are proactive and emphasize quality. 
However detective controls play a 
critical role by providing evidence 
that preventive controls are 
functioning as intended. Preventive 
controls aim to deter the instances 
of error or fraud. It includes the 
segregation of duties; approvals, 
authorizations and verifications of 
transactions; and security of assets 
etc. The detective control activities 
identify undesirable “occurrences” 
after the fact. It includes the reviews 
of performance, reconciliations of 
accounts, logs and audits.  

In order to strengthen the internal 
control system in accounting 
and finance, the Board relies on 
the audit committee, internal 
and external audit reports. The 
company’s periodic internal audit 
is done on a quarterly basis by the 
firm BRS Neupane & Co. Chartered 
Accountants”, having its principle 
office in Bhagwatibahal, Kathmandu 
where as the annual audit at the 
end of fiscal year is done by the 
firm S.R. Pandey & Co., Chartered 
Accountants” having its principle 
office in Nabil Galli, Maharajgunj, 
Kathmandu. 

Audit Committee mandates internal 
auditors to review and report on the 
quarterly basis the effectiveness of 
the existing controls and procedures 
adopted by the bureau. The internal 
and external auditors are allowed to 
perform independently and without 
any external pressure. At the same 
time they are expected to perform 
proficiently and with impartiality 
and due professional care. 
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Report of the Audit Committee

Committee members and attendance

Attendance

Mr. Anil Khanal 3/3 (5/5)

(Chair since 17th November, 2017)

Mr. Sagar Sharma 2/3 (5/5)

(Member since 17th November, 2017) 

The table shows the membership of the committee together with their attendance at meeting during 074/075. 
Attendance is expressed as the number of meetings attended out of the number of the eligible to be attended. 
The Committee is governed by the Articles of Association of the Company and the country’s Company Act. The 
Committee members are nominated by the Board for the period of four years.

The audit committee oversees Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors. It assists 
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in areas such as integrity of financial reporting, the effectiveness 
of risk management and internal control system, the adequacy of the external and internal audits and the related 
governance and compliance matters. The committee discharges its responsibilities, and assesses the information 
provided by the company’s management and the Company’s registered public accounting firm, in accordance 
with its business judgment. The committee is also responsible for making a recommendation to the Board on the 
appointment or reappointment of the external auditor. The meetings of the Committee are designed to facilitate 
and encourage communications among the committee, management, internal auditor and statutory auditor of the 
company.

The committee’s responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following matters with a view to bringing any 
relevant issues to the attention of the Board:

•	 oversight of the integrity of the bureau’s financial statements

•	 review of the bureau’s quarterly and annual financial statements (including clarity and completeness 
of disclosure);

•	 oversight of risk management and internal control arrangements;

•	 oversight of compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

•	 oversight of external auditor’s performance, objectivity, qualifications and independence; 
recommendation to the Board of their nomination for shareholder approval; and approval of their fees.

•	 the performance of the internal audit function;

The audit committee met five times during the year to discharge its duties and responsibilities. During the period, 
the Audit Committee periodically reviewed matters relating to accounting policies, financial risks and compliance 
with accounting standards. The committee met with the internal auditor and independent auditor, with or without 
management present, to discuss the results of their examinations; their evaluations of the company’s internal 
control; and the overall quality of the company’s financial reporting. The Committee focused on ensuring that 
the company’s systems and controls are operating effectively, are responsive to the challenges of the external 
environment and evolving in line with the company’s growth. The Bureau’s high risk areas were also regularly 
reviewed by the Committee to avoid/minimize business risks. 
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Specially, the committee among other actions:

•	 reviewed the bureau’s quarterly earnings, consolidated financial statements and other financial reports as 
submitted by the internal auditor at each quarter. It assessed the accounting provisions and statements included 
in the financial statements, unusual transactions and management’s responses to them. It also assessed in its 
quarterly meetings the adequacy and appropriateness of internal control policies and internal audit programs 
and their findings.

•	 reviewed the final annual audit report submitted by the external auditor, including non financial information, 
prior to publication there of. The audit committee discussed the report in which the external auditor set forth 
its findings and attention points and management’s responses to those attention points.

•	 reviewed compliance with statutory and legal requirements and regulations, particularly in the financial 
domain. Important findings, identified risks and follow up actions were examined thoroughly in order to allow 
appropriate measures to be taken.

•	 inquired about significant risks, reviewed bureau’s policy for risks assessment and risk management, and 
assessed the steps management has taken to control these risks.

•	 met in periodic executive session with each of the external auditor, management and internal auditor.

•	 Assessed the performance of the internal and external auditor. 

After the review of the financial statements for the year ended Asar 31, 2075, the Audit Committee hereby states 
as follows:

•	 the scope and planning of the audit were adequate in committee’s opinion;

•	 the accounting and reporting policies of the company confirmed with the statutory requirements and 
agreed ethical practices;

•	 the consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 
standards and fairly present the bureau’s financial position and results;

•	 the Internal Control and Internal Audit Functions were operating effectively. The bureau was found 
to adopt necessary control mechanisms to monitor and correct non compliances and complied 
satisfactorily with the applicable practices in respect of risk management and internal control system. 

The Committee is of the view that adequate controls and procedures are in place to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial position of the Bureau is well monitored & sound and assets are safeguarded.

•	 the external auditor’s findings as stated in the audit report were being dealt by the management 
satisfactorily.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the audit committee recommends for the submission 
of the Audit Committee Report to Board of Directors for its approval and its adoption in Annual Report and for 
its filing to the Inland Revenue Department of the Ministry of Finance for the tax purposes and the copy sent 
to Company Registrar office for its reference. Audit Committee also recommends for the reappointment of S.R. 
Pandey & Co., as the external auditor of the company for the fiscal year 075/076.

The Committee is satisfied that it has considered and discharged its responsibilities in accordance with its 
mandate and terms of reference during the year under review.
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Report of the HR Committee

Board approved the Terms of Reference of the HR committee on 22nd January, 2018. HR committee is a sub committee 
to which the Board has delegated responsibility for the oversight of the bureau’s HR policies and practices. The 
purpose of the committee is to consider, monitor, oversee and make recommendations to the Board related with 
the organizational structure, HR management, HR strategy and planning, workforce engagement, physical working 
conditions, succession planning and compensation policies. 

Attendance

Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha 6/6

(Chair since 22nd January, 2018)

Mr. Subhakanta Kanungo 6/6

(Member since 22nd January, 2018 

Committee members and attendance

The CEO participates in all the meetings and engages in deliberations with the committee.

The committee’s responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following matters with a view to bringing various 
issues to the attention of the Board:

•	 periodic review of the Company’s Human capital; HR policies and practices; HR objectives;  Employees’ retention, 
engagement, performance, succession planning, talent management and employee development plan etc.

•	 oversight of the Organizational Capital; Organization structure/manpower planning (values, engagement, 
alignment and leadership);

•	 oversight of Compensation and benefits plans and policies across the company

•	 review of Staff’s Charter; Compliance with applicable laws and ethical standards; Compliance with company’s 
vision, mission, objectives, values and principles 

The HR committee met six times during the period to discharge its duties and responsibilities as entrusted by the 
Board. During the period, the committee looked into various Organization and HR related issues to ensure whether 
they are in line with the company’s scope of activities and service deliverables. The committee discussed various 
matters with the management pertaining to the effectiveness of the current organization structure, functional levels, 
number and qualities of the staffs working in each level and whether they support and match with the increasing 
scope of activities of the company. The committee also went through the current salary structure and compensation 
and benefits plans of the company and checked whether it matches with the industry standards, market dynamics 
and level of competencies required on jobs. The committee also reviewed the Staff’s Charter and discussed the 
various issues that have to be addressed as per the new Labor Act of the country. The committee focused on 
ensuring that company has adopted all the measures possible to develop a conducive working environment that 
brings synergy in work, increases innovation, creativity, productivity and helps build a more engaged workforce.

After the detail review of the issues, the committee made few recommendations to the Board on the following 
issues:

a) Reorganization of the “organization structure” with distinct functional levels and job descriptions. 

b) Recruitment of all the existing contractual staffs into permanent positions. 

c) Increment of remuneration of the staffs and provision of the Gratuity and Provident Fund to all the contractual 
staffs as per the new Labor Law of the country. 

The HR committee submitted the detail documentations to the Board on the above issues highlighting the management 
levels to be implemented, number of staffs to be made permanent, percentile increments in remuneration along 
with the provision of Gratuity and Provident Fund.  

The Committee is satisfied that it has discharged all its responsibilities in accordance with its mandate and terms of 
reference during the year under review.
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Comments & Observation of the Board on the Audit Committee’s Report
 
The Board reviewed the operational and financial performance of the company and took assessment of the 
company’s risks and internal control framework & its effectiveness as presented in the Audit Committee Report 
submitted by the Audit Committee. Board also went through the Final Audit Report of the company for the year 
074/075 as audited by S. R. Pandey & Co., and submitted by the Audit Committee.

Based on the review of the Report, Board concluded that the Committee has presented a balanced report and 
given a fair assessment of the company’s risks, performance, its position and prospects. Board thus approved the 
consolidated financial statement of the company and gave its approval to be adopted in the Annual Report and 
presented to the shareholders in the forthcoming 14th Annual General Meeting of the company. 
Board at the same time thanked the Audit Committee, Management, Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditor for 
their cumulative efforts in maintaining the account books correct and transparent and introducing the best practices 
in internal control system and risk management. 

As per the recommendation made by the Audit Committee, Board agreed on the name of S.R Pandey & Co., as the 
Statutory Auditor of the company for the fiscal year 075/76. Board will propose the name of Statutory Auditor in the 
14th Annual General Meeting of the company for its ratification.   

Comments and Observations of the Board on HR Committee’s Report

The Board reviewed the documents submitted by the HR committee and went through the various recommendations 
made by it on the HR policies and practices, organization structure, compensation and benefits and other issues. 
The Board concluded that the HR Committee presented the fair assessment of the bureau’s organization structure 
and HR policies and approved the recommendations for its earliest implementation. 

Statement of the Value Added and its Distribution

•	 Contribution to the national exchequer and to the economy

The company paid Rs.67million as the corporate tax to the Government of Nepal in the year 074/075. The 
company also helped to collect Rs.247.2crores (Rs.2,472million) from the serious defaulters (blacklist borrowers) 
in the year thus helping the banks and financial institutions reduce their non performing loans.  

•	 Employees Salary
   
The total expense incurred by the company in the form of salary, allowance and other facilities to the staffs 
amounted to Rs.18.8million. CEO was paid the total remuneration package of Rs6.1million and the remaining 
staffs were paid Rs.12.7million. CEO is also provided with vehicle and all its operating expenses. 

•	 Employees Bonus

Company has allocated Rs.29.7million as the provision for bonus for the year 074/075 to be distributed to 
its staffs. Bonus will be paid to all its staffs as per the provisions made in the Labor Act of the country. The 
amount left after making the bonus payment, 30% will be deposited in the National Staff Welfare Fund and the 
remaining 70% will be deposited in Staff Welfare Fund of the company.

•	 Retained by the Entity

Company has transferred Rs.200.1million to its Accumulated Profit account from the earnings of the fiscal 
year 073/074. Along with this, the company made the “Other Comprehensive Income” of Rs670,650 from its 
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Proposal for the issue of Dividend

As per the decision reached by the 120th meeting of the Board of Directors of the company, Board decides to issue 
50% Bonus share (1share for every two shares held) and 25% Cash Dividend (Rs.25 per share) to its shareholders 
for the year 2074/75. This will reduce the total retained earnings of the company by Rs.58.17million from 
Rs381.53million pre issue to Rs323.36million post issue. 

On behalf of the Board of the Directors, I would like to bring forward this proposal on the floor of this AGM for your 
approval.

Gratitude
On behalf of the entire Board of Directors and the management team, I offer my sincere thanks to all the promoter 
shareholders for their continued support to this company. It is through your support that this company is able to 
grow every year and consolidate its position as the provider of high quality credit bureau services to its users.  I also 
would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Board of Directors for offering steadfast direction and guidance 
over the last year. I would like to thank all our member banks and financial institutions for being with us and 
supporting us all the time. Your regular comments on our services have always kept us on toes and made us to be 
alert on our service deliveries. We are grateful to Nepal Rastra Bank, our regulator, and all other concerned agencies 
for guiding us and supporting us in our endeavor to move forward.  At the end, our success would not have been 
possible without the efforts of our staffs who have always given their best to this company.   

investments in the ICRA Nepal in the form of “net gains on Available-for Sale investments” leading to the total 
net income attributable to Equity Shareholders to be Rs.200.8million.    

•	 Litigation Cases

Out of the Four (4) “Blacklist” court cases carried forward from the year 073/074, ten (10) new cases were 
added and six (6) cases were settled by the court during the period. Thus there were eight cases pending at the 
end of fiscal year 074/075 which were carried forward in the year 075/076. 

110



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Shareholders

S. No. Name of Banks and Financial Institutions 2075 Ashad Total Share Capital Share Holding %

 Total Shares Amount NRs.

1. Nepal Rastra Bank 233,280.00 23,328,000 10.03

Commercial Banks

1 Century Bank Ltd. 2,362.50 236,250 

76.17

2 Civil Bank Ltd. 8,077.50 807,750 

3 NMB Bank  Ltd. 12,600.00 1,260,000 

4 Sunrise Bank Ltd. 14,960.25 1,496,025 

5 Citizen Bank International Ltd. 14,962.50 1,496,250 

6 Nepal Bank Limited Ltd. 30,879.00 3,087,900 

7 Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd. 57,123.00 5,712,300 

8 Agriculture Development Bank 69,984.00 6,998,400 

9 Nabil Bank  Ltd. 82,347.75 8,234,775 

10 Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. 82,347.75 8,234,775 

11 Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 82,347.75 8,234,775 

12 Everest Bank  Ltd. 82,347.75 8,234,775 

13 Himalayan Bank  Ltd. 88,434.00 8,843,400 

14 Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd. 88,647.75 8,864,775 

15 Machhapuchhre Bank  Ltd. 88,647.75 8,864,775 

16 Kumari Bank Ltd. 88,647.75 8,864,775 

17 Nepal Bangladesh Bank  Ltd. 91,008.00 9,100,800 

18 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 94,529.25 9,452,925 

19 Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 112,567.50 11,256,750 

20 Laxmi Bank  Ltd. 116,640.00 11,664,000 

21 Prabhu Bank  Ltd. 126,864.00 12,686,400 

22 Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 164,110.50 16,411,050 

23 Nepal Investment Bank  Ltd. 165,615.75 16,561,575 

24 Janata Bank Nepal Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

 Total Commercial Bank 1,772,352.00 177,235,200 

    

Development Banks

1 Lumbini Bikash  Bank Ltd. 4,726.00 472,600 
5.532 Om Development Bank Ltd. 2,362.50 236,250 

3 Kailash Bikash Bank Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

4 Dev Bikas Bank Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

5 Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank Ltd. 108,985.50 10,898,550 

 Total Development Bank 128,674.00 12,867,400 
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Finance Companies

1 Himalayan Finance & Saving Co.  Ltd. 2,362.50 236,250  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              8.27

 
 

2 Capital Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd. 2,362.50 236,250 

3 Nepal Share Markets & Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

4 United Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

5 Samjhana Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

6 Progressive Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

7 Best  Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

8 Central Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

9 Multipurpose Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

10 World Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

11 Crystal Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

12 Guheshwori Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

13 Lalitpur Finance Ltd. 6,300.00 630,000 

14 Nepal Finance Ltd. 9,866.25 986,625 

15 Srijana Finance Ltd. 10,235.25 1,023,525 

16 Goodwill Finance Ltd. 13,801.50 1,380,150 

17 Gurkhas Finance Ltd. 17,964.00 1,796,400 

18 Shree Investment and Finance Ltd. 20,061.00 2,006,100 

19 Synergy Finance Ltd. 46,422.00 4,642,200 

 Total Finance Companies 192,375.00 19,237,500 

 

49 Grand Total 2,326,681 232,668,100              100 

112



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

Disclosure of Information as per Company’s Act 2006
a. Review of the transactions of the previous year: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report.

b. Impacts, if any, caused on the transactions of the company from national and international situation: No material 
impact observed in the business

c. Achievements  in  the  current year  as  at  the date of  report and  opinions  of  the  board  of  directors  on  matters  
to  be done in the future: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

d. Industrial or professional relations of the company: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

e. Alterations  in  the  board  of  directors  and  the  reasons therefore: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

f. Major things affecting the transactions: Detailed in the Board of Director’s Report

g. If there  are any remarks in the audit report, the comments of the board of directors on such remarks: None

h. Amount recommended for payment by way of dividend: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

i. In  the  event  of  forfeiture  of  shares,  details  regarding  the number of  forfeited shares, face value of such shares, 
total amount  received by  the  company  for  such  shares prior  to the forfeiture thereof, proceeds of sale of such 
shares after the forfeiture  thereof, and refund  of amount ,if any, made for such forfeited shares; The company has 
not forfeited any shares

j. Major  transactions  completed  by  the  company  and  its subsidiary company  in  the  financial year and any material 
changes  taken  place  in  the  transactions  of  the  company during that period: Disclosed in the Board of Directors 
Report; No subsidiary

k. Disclosures  made  by  the  substantial  shareholders  of  the company to the company in the financial year: None

l. Details of shareholding taken by the directors and officers of the company in the year and, in the event of their 
involvement in share transaction of the company, details of information received by the company from them in that 
respect: None

m. Details of disclosures made about the personal interest of any director and his/her close  relative in any agreements 
related with the company during the year: None

n. In  the  event  that  the  company has bought  its own  shares (buy-back),  the  reasons  for  such  buy-back number  
and face  value  of  such  shares,  and  amount  paid  by  the company for such buy-back: None

o.	 Whether there is an internal control system in  place or not; and details of such system, if it is in place: Disclosed in 
the Board of Directors Report

p. Details of  total management expenses during  the financial year: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

q. Name-list  of  the  members  of  audit  committee, remuneration,  allowances  and  facilities  received by  them, 
details of  the  functions performed by  that committee, and details of suggestions, if any, made by that committee: 
Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

r. Amount,  if  any, outstanding  and payable  to  the  company by  any  director,  managing  director, chief  executive, 
substantial  shareholder or his/her  close  relative or by  any firm company, corporate body in which he/she is involved: 
None

s. Amount of  remuneration, allowances and  faculties paid  to the director, managing director, chief executive and 
officer: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

t. Amount  of  dividends  remaining  unclaimed  by  the shareholders: Disclosed in the Board of Directors Report

u. Details  of  sale  and  purchase  of  properties  pursuant  to Section 141 of Company Act 2006: Disclosed in the Board 
of Directors Report

v. Details  of  transactions  carried  on  between  the  associated companies pursuant to Section 175 of the Company 
Act 2006: None

w. Any  other matters  required  to be  set  out  in  the  report of board of directors under this Act and the prevailing law: 
None
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Statement of Director’s Responsibility

The provisions of the Company Act 2006 requires the Board to ensure that the Bureau  keeps proper books of 
accounts of all the transactions and prepare financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of the 
affairs of the Bureau and of the profit and loss for the year. The Directors are also required to ensure that the 
financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS).

They are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to safeguard the assets of the Bureau, and in that context 
to have proper regard to the establishment of appropriate systems of internal control with a view to prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, all taxes and levies payable by the Bureau and 
all contributions and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Bureau have been paid or 
provided for as at the reporting date.

The Directors are of the view that, these financial statements have been prepared under the generally accepted 
accounting principles and in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards as published by the Accounting 
Standards Board and issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The Directors endeavor to ensure that the Bureau maintains sufficient records to be able to disclose with reasonable 
accuracy, the financial position of the Bureau and to be able to ensure that the financial statements of the Bureau 
meet with the requirements of the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

The Directors have reasonable expectation, after making enquiries and following a review of the Bureau’s budget for 
the ensuing year including cash flows and borrowing facilities, that the Bureau has adequate resources to continue 
its operational existence for the foreseeable future, and therefore have continued to adopt the going concern basis 
in preparing the Accounts.

Messrs., S.R. Pandey & Company, the statutory auditor of the Bureau have examined the financial statements made 
available by the Board of Directors together with all relevant financial records, related data, minutes of the Directors 
meeting and express their opinion in their report included herewith in this Annual report.

By Order of the Board
Karja Suchana Kendra Limited (Bureau)

............................................
     Company Secretary
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the affairs of the Company
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the Audited Accounts of the bureau for the year 
ended 31st Asar, 2075, to be presented at the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Bureau. 

Review of The Year

The Chairman’s Massage on page 32 describes the affairs of the Bureau and mentions important events that occurred 
during the year, and up to the date of this report. This report together with the audited financial statements reflects 
the state of the affairs of the Bureau.

Principal Activities / Core Business

The main activity of the company is the business of collection and collation of trade, credit and financial information 
on borrowers and prospective borrowers of lending institutions. The bureau has recently started the new Commercial 
Bureau, Microfinance Bureau and Secured Transaction Registry services. The commercial bureau and microfinance 
bureau will be engaged in providing the credit information services to BFIs (banks and financial institutions) and 
MFIs (microfinance institutions) respectively where as Secured Transaction Registry will be providing the services to 
public and private enterprises, SMEs, micro enterprises and individuals. Please refer the Summary of Operational 
Activities on page 38 for more information.

Financial Statements 

The financial statements prepared in compliance with the requirements of Clause 109 of the Company Act are given 
on page 118 to 121 in this annual report.

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Auditor’s Report on the financial statements is given on page 117 in this report.

Accounting Policies

The Accounting Policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements is given on pages 122 to 125. 

Financial Results/Profit and Appropriations

The Income Statement is set out on page 119.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Information relating to movement in Property, Plant & Equipment during the year is disclosed in financial statement 
on pages 136 to 139.

Investments

Details of long-term Investments held by the Company are given in financial statements on page 128.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities is given on page 114 of this report.

Reserves

The Reserves and Accumulated Profits as at 31st Asar, 2075 is given on page 141. The breakup and the movement 
are shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity in page 121. 
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Stated Capital

The details of share capital and reserves as at 31st Asar,2075 are given in financial statement on page 141.

Dividend

The Dividend declared by the Board of Directors for the financial year ended 31st Asar, 2075 is given on page 110 of 
this report.

Post Balance Sheet Events

There were no material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date that require adjustments, or disclosure in the 
Financial Statements. 

Statutory Payments

The declaration relating to Statutory Payments is made in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 114.

Board Committees

Audit Committee
The Report of the Audit Committee is given on page 106.

HR Committee
The report of the HR committee is given on page 108.

Financial Highlights

The earnings per share, net assets per share are given in Financial Highlights on page 14 of this Annual Report.

Auditor

The resolution to continue the service of the Statutory Auditor, Messrs. S.R Pandey & Company Chartered 
Accountants, will be proposed at the 14th Annual General Meeting. 

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationship or interest in the Bureau. The Audit 
Committee reviews the appointment of the Auditors, its effectiveness and its relationship with the Bureau including 
the level of audit and non-audit fees paid to the Auditor. Details on the work of the Audit Committee are set out 
under Audit committee report.

Notice of Meeting

The Annual Shareholders meeting of the Bureau will be held on 14th January at Hotel Annapurna at 10AM.

For and on behalf of the Board.

.......................................
Company Secretary
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Statement of Financial Position as at 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16th July, 2018)
NPR

Particulars Notes 2075 Ashad 32nd 2074 Ashad 31st
ASSETS  

 
Non Current Assets  
Property, Plant and Equipment 6 76,233,966                    90,835,386 
Intangible Assets 7 233,992,168                  183,917,808 
Deferred Tax Asset 12                 1,820,034                         364,157 
Total Non Current Assets  312,046,168                  275,117,351 

 
Current Assets  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.2 18,955,633                    25,682,370 
Trade Receivables 4.3 20,339,054                    18,078,596 
Prepaid Expenses & Advances 4.4                 2,468,619                    35,496,734 
Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost (FD) 4.1 709,100,000                  561,800,000 
Financial Assets held at fair value through Profit or Loss (Shares) 4.5                 1,894,200                      1,000,000 
Total Current Assets  752,757,506                  642,057,700 
Total Assets  1,064,803,674                  917,175,051 

 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

 
Non Current Liabilities  
Retirement Benefit Obligations 8.2                 2,158,632                      1,998,312 
Trade & Other Payables 4.6 29,973,058                    13,496,743 
Deferred Grant/Fund from Asian Development Bank 11 185,095,850                  231,369,813 
Deferred Tax Liability                             -                                   -   
Total Non Current Liabilities  217,227,540                  246,864,868 

 
Current Liabilities  
Trade & Other Payables 4.6 46,748,273                    31,504,960 
Total Current Liabilities  46,748,273                    31,504,960 

 
Equity  
Share Capital 9 232,668,000                  155,112,000 
Reserve and Surplus 10 568,159,861                  483,693,223 
Total Equity  800,827,861                  638,805,223 
Total Equity & Liabilities  1,064,803,674                  917,175,051 

...........................................
Anil Chandra Adhikari

Chief Executive Officer

...........................................
Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Chairperson

...........................................
S.R. Pandey, FCA
Senior Partner

S.R. Pandey & Co.

...........................................
Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

...........................................
Anil Kumar Khanal

Director

...........................................
Shubhakanta Kanungo

Director

...........................................
Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli

Director

...........................................
Sagar Sharma

Director

...........................................
Swayambhu Shakya

Director

Date: November 21, 2018
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position
As per our report of even date
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NPR
Notes FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

 
Income from Operation  
Service Charge 5.1                321,405,766                    229,899,182 
Total Operating Income                 321,405,766                    229,899,182 

 
Operating Expense  

 
Staff Cost 8.1                  18,929,391                      14,434,572 
General Administrative Expenses 15                  34,028,807                      33,076,247 
Depreciation and amortisation 16                  77,160,707                       2,418,504 
Operating Profit                 191,286,861                    179,969,859 

 
Finance Income 5.2                  59,111,135                      32,358,307 
Dividend Income 5.3                      150,000                          100,000 
ADB Grant Income 11                  46,273,963                                   -   
Loss on sale of assets                          2,205                            55,962 
Profit Before Income Tax                 296,819,754                    212,372,204 

 
Staff Bonus 8.1                  29,681,975                      19,306,564 
Taxation                  67,007,791                      48,890,135 
Current Income Tax 12                  68,687,218                      48,165,484 
Deferred Tax (Income) / Expense 12                  (1,679,427)                          724,651 
Profit for the Year                 200,129,988                    144,175,505 

 
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses)  
Net Gains / (loss) on Available-for-Sale Investments                      894,200                                   -   
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on Defined Benefits Plan                               -                                     -   
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses)                      894,200                                   -   
less: Tax Expense relating to Components of OCI 12                      223,550                                   -   
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year                       670,650                                   -   
    
Attributable to    
Equity Share Holders                 200,800,638                    144,175,505 

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2074 to 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16th July 2017 to 16th July 2018)

As per our report of even date

Date: November 21, 2018
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

...........................................
Anil Chandra Adhikari

Chief Executive Officer

...........................................
Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Chairperson

...........................................
S.R. Pandey, FCA
Senior Partner

S.R. Pandey & Co.

...........................................
Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

...........................................

Anil Kumar Khanal
Director

...........................................
Shubhakanta Kanungo

Director

...........................................

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

...........................................
Sagar Sharma

Director

...........................................
Swayambhu Shakya

Director
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Statement of Cash Flow 
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2074 to 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16th July 2017 to 16th July 2018)

NPR
Particulars FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

 
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities  

 
Net Profit before Tax 267,137,779 193,065,640 
Adjustments for:  
Loss on sale of assets                       2,205                       55,962 
Depreciation expenses               77,160,707                  2,418,504 
Income tax Paid (68,687,218) (48,165,484)
Increase/(Decrease) in  Liabilities (14,394,015)                24,049,145 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets               30,767,657 (7,787,964)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (1)             291,987,115              163,635,803 

 
B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities  

 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital                             -                               -   
 Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Loan                             -                               -   
 Dividend Paid (38,778,000) (25,852,000)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (2) (38,778,000) (25,852,000)

 
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities  

 
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments                            -   
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposits (147,300,000) (146,000,000)
Sale/(Purchase) of Tangible Fixed Assets (4,204,362) (998,058)
Sale/(Purchase) of Intangible Assets (108,431,490) (566,421)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (1) (259,935,852) (147,564,479)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) (6,726,737) (9,780,676)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period               25,682,370                35,463,046 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year/period               18,955,633                25,682,370 

 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents               18,955,633                25,682,370 
Balance with Banks               18,955,633                25,682,370 
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation                            -                               -   

Date: November 21, 2018
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

...........................................
Anil Chandra Adhikari

Chief Executive Officer

...........................................
Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Chairperson

...........................................
S.R. Pandey, FCA
Senior Partner

S.R. Pandey & Co.

...........................................
Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

...........................................
Anil Kumar Khanal

Director

...........................................
Shubhakanta Kanungo

Director

...........................................

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

...........................................
Sagar Sharma

Director

...........................................
Swayambhu Shakya

Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements as of Ashad End 2075 (16th July 2018)
1. Overview of the Company

Karja Suchana Kendra Limited is a limited liability public company domiciled in Nepal registered under the 
Company Act of Nepal. The registered address of the company is Kathmandu Metropolitan Ward No. 31 
with registration number 895/061/62

Karja Suchana Kendra was established in 14 May, 1989 with the sole objective of improving the functionality 
of the country’s financial system. 

Karja Suchana Kendra was incorporated under Nepal Bankers Association in 1989 as a non-profit organization 
to provide vital credit information service to its member institutions, in order to allow them to make informed 
and objective credit decisions. NRB came out with new amendments to consolidate the functioning of 
Kendra and gave a legal framework for its operation through Nepal Rastra Bank Act 2058, Clause 88. It was 
reorganized as a public company in order to strengthen its autonomy and increase its operational efficiency. 
It was renamed as Karja Suchana Kendra Limited and got registered as the Company in September, 2004 
under the Company Act 2053 and started its operation as an independent and autonomous entity from 
March 2005.

The Board of Directors of the company acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements 
of the company.

2. Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) – Nepal and Issued by Institute of Chartered 
Accountant of Nepal (ICAN).  

2.1  Approval of financial statements

Accompanied financial statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its meeting held on 
November 21, 2018 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting.

3. Basis of Preparation

The company while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgement as having 
potentially material impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that relate to the 
financial statements as a whole along with the judgements made are described herein. 

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within 
that relevant note. NFRS requires the company to exercise judgement in making accounting estimates.  
Description of such estimates has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

3.1 Reporting Pronouncements

The company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as 
effective on September 13, 2013 which was applicable to Karja Suchana Kendra from FY 2073/74. NFRS 
conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 

3.2 Accounting Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of 
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.  
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The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and 
judgements as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically. 

3.3 New reporting standards in issue but not yet effective

NFRS 9–Financial Instruments has been issued but is not effective until further notified.  For the reporting of 
financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition 
and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied. 

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been 
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable 
when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. 

A significant impact on classification and measurement including impairment of financial instruments, will 
arise as a result of application of NFRS 9. 

3.4 Presentation

The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees.  

For presentation of the statement of financial position assets and liabilities have been bifurcated into 
current and non- current distinction.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method. 

The cash flows from operation within the statement of cash flows have been derived using the indirect 
method.

3.4.1 Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the company. 

3.4.2 Current and Non-Current distinction 

Assets

Apart from the property plant and equipment and deferred taxes assets all the assets are taken as current 
assets unless specific additional disclosure is made in the notes for current and non-current distinction. 

Liabilities

Apart from the defined benefit plan obligations all the liabilities assets are taken as current liabilities unless 
specific additional disclosure is made in the notes for current and non-current distinction. 

3.5 Accounting Policies and accounting estimates

The company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances 
and operating environment.  Further the company is required to make judgement in respect of items where 
the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the 
financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements. The 
effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed. 

NFRS requires the company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, 
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disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.  

The company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements.  The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and applied prospectively. 

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever 
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any. 

3.6 Financial Periods

The company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. 

3.7 Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting 
is material.

3.8 Limitation of NFRS implementation 

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception 
to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section. 

4. Financial Instruments

Accounting Policy

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: a) financial assets 
held at fair value through profit or loss; b) loans and receivables; c) held-to-maturity; and d) available-for-
sale. Financial liabilities are classified as either held a) at fair value through profit or loss, or b) at amortised 
cost. 

Management determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition or, where 
applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets and liabilities held for trading, and those designated 
at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset or liability is classified as held for trading if 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.

Financial assets and liabilities may be designated at fair value through profit or loss when:

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that 
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities on a different basis

- A group of financial assets and/or liabilities is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair 
value basis

- The assets or liabilities include embedded derivatives and such derivatives are required to be 
recognised separately

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market and it is expected that substantially all of the initial investment will be recovered, 
other than because of credit deterioration.
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Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that the Company’s management has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale assets are those non-derivative financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period 
of time, which may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in interest rates, exchange rates, 
commodity prices or equity prices.

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, not classified held at fair value through profit or loss includes payables which are 
classified as amortised cost instruments.

Initial recognition

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, which is normally the transaction price plus, 
for those financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable 
transaction costs

Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss, and financial 
assets classified as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale are initially recognised on the trade-date (the date 
on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset). 

Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers. 

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, 
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the net trading income in the 
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value taken to profit or loss unless the Company makes irrevocable election to make changes 
in fair value through Other Comprehensive Income. 

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method.  

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between proceeds net 
of directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or 
where the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the 
risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the Company has retained control, the 
assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. A financial liability is extinguished when 
the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4.1. Fixed Deposit

The fixed deposits are maintained at various banks and other financial institutions with varying maturity 
period. The fair value of the fixed deposit is the carrying amount.  

 32nd Ashad 2075  31st Ashad 2074 

Fixed Deposit  

Current           709,100,000           561,800,000 

     Non-current - -

Total           709,100,000 561,800,000

4.2 Cash & Cash Equivalents

32nd Ashad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

Cash in Hand - -

Cash at Bank  18,955,633  25,682,370 

Total  18,955,633  25,682,370 

Balance with banks is classified as loans and receivables and are subsequently measured at amortised costs.
Risks associated with these assets are regularly assessed.

4.3 Trade Receivables

The trade receivables that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortised 
costs and those other assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost.  These instruments are 
regularly monitored for impairment.

32nd Ashad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

Service Charge Receivable  11,551,742  6,408,299 

Interest Accrued Receivable  8,787,312  11,670,297 

Total  20,339,054  18,078,596 

4.4 Prepaid Expenses & Advances

The Prepaid Expenses & Advances that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at 
amortised costs and those other assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost.  These 
instruments are regularly monitored for impairment.

32nd Ashad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

National Life Insurance (Loan Deposit)  109,213  476,668 

Staff Advances  74,518  229,109 

Advance Tax (Net) 2,087,074  5,825,311 

Other receivable and advance  197,814  28,953,968 

Staff Loan  -    11,678 

Cheque in Hand  -    -   

Total 2,468,619  35,496,734 

128



Annual Report
KARJA SUCHANA KENDRA LIMITED

4.5 Investment in Corporate Security

 32ndAshad 2075  31st Ashad 2074

Corporate Securities 1,894,200  1,000,000

Total 1,894,200 1,000,000

This include equity investments in ICRA Nepal Limited. This investment does not result in control or 
significant influence over the invested entity. This investment is classified as available for sale assets.

Investments in ICRA Nepal Limited

This investment is not actively traded in the market and are therefore not liquid.  The Company has no 
intention to dispose these investments in foreseeable future. The Company considers that the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive in future exceeds the carrying value of the investments.

4.5 Trade & Other Payables

Accounting Policy

Non-financial liabilities are recorded and reported at cost based on legal and constructive obligation to the 
Company. 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
and the amount can be reliably estimated. 

Explanatory Notes

Current

 32nd Ashad 2075  31st Ashad 2074

Audit Fee Payable  194,127  238,169 

Other Payable  1,900,182  2,934,726 

Advance Received of Service Charges  587,801  372,595 

Deferred Income on Secured Transaction Registry  9,178,988  3,344,400 

TDS payable  -    81,224 

Bonus Payable 29,681,975  19,389,496 

Dividend Payable  -    226,100 

Advance Received from STR  5,205,200  4,918,250 

                          Total 46,748,273 31,504,960

Non-Current

32nd Ashad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

Lease Payable (As per NFRS on Operating Lease) 983,186  491,593 

Deferred Income on Secured Transaction Registry 28,989,872  13,005,150 

Total 29,973,058  13,496,743

Non-current payable includes accrued rent amount created due to Lease rental for premises charged on 
straight line basis in accordance to the lease.
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4.7 Valuation hierarchy

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three 
levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in 
the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets 
and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair 
value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of observability 
of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices 
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where 
all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s 
valuation, is not based on observable market data.

Hierarchy of Fair Value Measurement
NPR

32-3-2075 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Corporate Securities

ICRA Nepal Limited 1,894,200 1,894,200

Total - - 1,894,200 1,894,200

31-3-2074 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Corporate Securities

ICRA Nepal Limited 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total - - 1,000,000 1,000,000

The following table presents the Company’s financial instruments, which are held at the fair value. The table 
also presents the valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of those financial instruments, the 
significant unobservable inputs, the range of values for those inputs.

Instrument Principal valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs

Corporate Securities   

ICRA Nepal Ltd. Internal pricing model EV/EBITDA multiples, P/E multiples, Liquidity 
discount

4.8 Fair  value of Financial Instruments held at Amortised Costs on recurring basis

The following table shows the carrying amounts and incorporates the Company’s estimate of fair value 
of those financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Company’s statement of financial position at 
fair value.  These fair values may be different from the actual amount that will be received or paid on the 
settlement or maturity of the financial instruments.  For certain instruments, fair value may be determined 
using assumptions for which no observable prices are available. 
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NPR

32-3-2075 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Trade & Other Payable 76,721,331

Total - - 76,721,331

31-3-2074 Level 1 Level 2  Level 3 

Trade & Other Payable 45,001,703

Total - - 45,001,703

 NPR 

32-3-2075 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed Deposits 709,100,000 

Balance with Banks 18,955,633

Trade Receivables 20,339,054

Prepaid Expenses and Advances 2,468,619

Total 750,863,306

31-3-2074 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed Deposits 561,800,000

Balance with Banks 25,682,370

Trade Receivables 18,078,596

Prepaid Expenses and Advances 35,496,734

Total 641,057,700

4.8.1	 Fair	value	of	Financial	Assets	held	at	amortised	cost

4.8.2	 Fair	Value	of	Financial	Liabilities	held	at	amortised	cost

4.9 Fair value Level 3 disclosures

The following sets out the basis of establishing fair values of amortised cost financial instruments. These 
are not generally traded and there is a significant level of management judgement involved in calculating 
the fair values.

Fixed Deposits

For fixed deposits with the banks, the estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing time deposits is based 
on discounted cash flows using the prevailing money market rates for debts with a similar credit risk and 
remaining maturity.  These are generally the carrying amount of these assets.

Prepaid Expenses & Advances

These assets are generally with the residual maturity of less than one year.  The impact of discounted cash 
flows of those assets more maturity period of more than one year is insignificant. Therefore, the fair value 
of other assets generally approximates the carrying amount.

Trade Receivables 

These assets are generally with the residual maturity of less than one year.  The impact of discounted cash 
flows of those assets more maturity period of more than one year is insignificant. Therefore, the fair value 
of other assets generally approximates the carrying amount.
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4.10	 Reclassification	of	financial	assets

Financial assets and liabilities have been classified in accordance with the requirements of NFRS.  These 
have been presented consistently and there have been no reclassifications since 2071-72, when financial 
instruments were restated under first time adoption of NFRS.

4.11 Risk management

The Bureau has employed robust IT security infrastructure and various layers of system security that could 
circumvent any external threats. Data Center is fully protected & equipped with access control mechanisms 
and safety systems. Unauthorized admission in Data Center is strictly prohibited.

Bureau ensures that IT staff are fully aware with the information confidentiality policy and follow them 
strictly. Only those staff “who need to know” are provided with access privileges which will be revoked in a 
timely manner when no longer warranted. Bureau has employed trained staff for information security who 
have many years of experience in the field and are capable of dealing with any types of system security 
problems.

In order to prevent the risk of service breakdowns, Bureau has housed its Disaster Recovery Site in National 
Information Technology Center in Singh Durbar which will be brought into operation once Primary Site shuts 
down due to technical failure or any other Force Majeure reasons. All the primary site equipments have 
been arranged in failover mode

All the Data Center equipments and infrastructures including the staff have been safeguarded with adequate 
insurance coverage.

Although the Bureau carefully monitors the impacts of economic changes in the banking sector, it can do 
least to avoid business risks which are culminated from the factors external to the Bureau. Though the 
number of “Information Hits” generated by the banks and financial institutions remained quite uneven 
during the period of the review because of sector specific issues, the bureau maintained its revenue growth 
on an even level by increasing the ‘Hits” through the expansion of the service coverage.

In order to eliminate the risk of wrong identification, Bureau has developed a very effective algorithm based 
on borrower’s personal identification information and three generation information. Data quality of the 
borrowers is maintained at highest level so that the algorithm functions properly and gives the correct Hits. 
So far the algorithm has given the hundred percent correct hits of the borrowers.

Bureau tries to retain the talented workforce by providing them the best working environment where they 
get the opportunities to learn and grow, can utilize their talent and skill and get a sense of being a part of 
team which is geared to develop the system that contributes in a meaningful way for the development 
of credit market in the country. Apart from this, the Bureau motivates its employees by providing them 
the trainings, attractive remuneration packages, incentive schemes and other benefits based on their 
performance and contribution made to the company.

Bureau has installed high capacity UPS systems and Batteries in failover mode along with two sets of power 
generators to provide reliable services to its users. Bureau has designed the system assuming power outages 
of long duration and has taken all the preventive measures to keep the system active even in the worst 
possible scenario.

The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below:

4.11.1	 Technological	and	Information	Management	Risk	

The information collected from various BFIs regarding various borrowers is the major asset of the Bureau. 
The Credit Bureau system which consists of various hardware equipment and software are always susceptible 
to external threats and exposed to various security risks. From the fear of forced access to Data Center 
hosting hardware infrastructures to unauthorized remote access of IT assets, the risks are many. Given the 
diversity of attack tools currently being used, there has been a drastic increase in the number of security 
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vulnerabilities. The risks include—but not limited to—piracy of database and server contents, access, 
modification or destruction of data, disclosure and exposure of information to unauthorized individuals, 
hardware vandalism, software piracy, and network sabotage etc.

The Bureau has in its possession a great deal of confidential information relating to the banks and their 
borrowers. While such confidential information is managed according to law and internal regulations 
specifically designed for that purpose, there is always the risk that information may leak due to unforeseen 
circumstances. Should such an event occur, there is a likelihood that borrowers’ confidence and bank trust 
would deteriorate, resulting in a negative effect on the bureau’s performance.

4.11.2 Business Risk

The growth of Banking and Finance sector has been quite uneven and gone through many ups and downs 
in the last few years. They had to cope with multiple challenges - liquidity crisis, declining deposits, inflated 
interest rate, real state collapse, loan recovery problems and others. Economy or market down turns or poor 
state of the banking business adversely impacts the bureau’s growth potential. Decreasing banking business 
leads to decline in credit information enquiries which lead to reduced revenue for the bureau. Uncertainties 
in the banking business make it difficult to forecast future levels of bureau’s income and earning potentials.

Bureau has developed the plans for the placements of value added products and services for the banking 
and finance sector based on certain assumptions of the banking sector growth and demand potentials. 
Given the uncertainties looming large on the sector growth, products placements may be ill-timed or the 
market may not be ready to absorb the products incurring high cost to income ratio for the bureau.

4.11.3	 Operational	Risk

Because of the lack of any reliable instrument for correctly identifying the borrower, credit bureau is always 
exposed to the risks of incorrect borrower identification and profile matching. Coupled with this, many 
financial institutions still have poor and inadequate information about the borrowers which makes it further 
difficult for the bureau to correctly identify the borrowers. Wrong identification leads to wrong credit report 
which further leads to poor lending decisions by the lending agencies incurring huge losses to them. This 
may have adverse impact on the credibility of the bureau.

Credit Bureau operation is a very specialized field of activity primarily focused on IT and Operations. Being 
an IT driven company, it needs to have a very strong IT & Operations workforce who are skilled, talented 
and have expertise on the system. Such people are very limited in number and very hard to find by in the 
job market. Recruiting the talented people and training them to make them expert on the system takes time 
and incurs cost. Once trained, bureau runs the risk of losing them in such a fiercely competitive market of 
IT. Under such conditions, bureau may face the risk of HR crunch to man its operations.

Irregular & unreliable commercial power supply and long load shedding hours in the country may pose 
serious problem for the bureau to provide uninterrupted credit bureau services to the users. Bureau may 
risk of losing the confidence of the users if it fails to provide reliable and uninterrupted service to them as 
required.

4.11.4 Financial Risk

Trade and Other Payables are the main financial liabilities of the company. Bureau has capability and 
sufficient funds in the form of financial assets, receivables, cash and bank balance, short term deposits and 
investment incomes to pay back the payables.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. It is a risk that future proceeds will have to be re-invested at a 
lower rate. Interest rate risk may not pose serious problem for the bureau since interest income is not the 
main income and has only marginal effect on bureau’s total income.
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Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. Since the customers of the Bureau are all banks & financial institutions, 
it is exposed to minimum credit risk.

All the costs related with the implementation of the new commercial bureau and MF bureau is borne by the 
Grant received from the Asian Development Bank with no financial and commercial pre-conditions attached 
with it for its repayment. Thus there are no any financial risks involved for the company in this transaction.

4.11.5	 Reputational	Risk

Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue; 
increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder value. 

Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting the 
institution’s reputation locally and has the responsibility to ensure that the Bureau does not undertake any 
activities that may cause material damage to the reputation of institution.

4.11.6	 Employee	Benefit	Risk

Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the company’s defined 
benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes. 

The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of retirement of the individual 
staff and number of years’ service with the Bureau for three staff eligible for gratuity under old Labour Law. 
From Bhadra 2074, the company has provided gratuity to all staff at 8.33% of basis salary as per New Labour 
Act 2074. The leave can be accumulated for maximum period of 90 and 45 days respectively for home and 
sick leave in total period served by individual staff. The gross obligation for leave encashment is calculated 
considering the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days for leave encashment. The gratuity amount 
is contributed to Citizen Investment Trust while the leave amount is duly provided. 

4.11.7 Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a manner 
which enables it to reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board has 
adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.  

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its 
Committees, Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the 
Bureau’s system of internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate.

4.12 Impairment

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and 
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) 
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets.

Impairment	of	assets	other	than	financial	assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have been 
impaired.  If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. 

Explanatory Notes

 There is not any impairment charge required for any class of assets during FY 2074/75.
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5. Revenue

Accounting Policy

Service Charge

Service Charges for credit information are recognized on accrual basis when the hits (queries) are made in 
the system. Annual Fees are recognized and realized on the basis on Nepali Calendar Year. Self-declaration 
fees are recognized when the service is delivered. 

Income on Initial Registry Charges on Secured Transaction which is valid for the period of five years from 
registration as per Section 10 of Secured Transaction Act is allocated over the period of five years from 
the date of registry up to its validity period on monthly basis. The remaining amount is shown as deferred 
revenue on Secured Transaction Registry by allocation between current and non-current liability. 

Income from financial instruments

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments held at fair value through 
profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For available-for-sale assets and financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost, interest income and 
interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for- sale financial assets are recognised 
directly in profit or loss unless an irrevocable selection is done to charge it through Other Comprehensive 
Income. Once such selection is done the changes in fair value is also charged through Other Comprehensive 
Income unless the assets is derecognized. The gain or loss on disposal of available for sale financial assets is 
recognised directly in profit or loss.  

Dividends on equity instruments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss within other income when 
the Company’s right to receive payment is established

Explanatory Notes

5.1 Service Charge

 32ndAshad 2075 31st Ashad 2074 

From Commercial Banks 238,877,870  161,938,065 

From Development Banks (National) 42,385,835  34,076,845 

From Development Banks (Regional) 14,515,275  17,381,400 

From Finance Companies 14,042,670  12,632,250 

From Co-Operatives & Other Companies 1,834,720  1,129,350 

Other Charges 1,816,105  2,368,822 

Income from Secured Transaction Registry 7,933,291  372,450.00 

Total 321,405,766  229,899,182 

5.2 Finance Income

2074-75 2073-74

Interest from Deposits 59,111,135  32,357,758 

Interest from Loan -  549 

Total 59,111,135  32,358,307 
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5.3 Dividend Income

2074-75 2073-74

Dividend income from ICRA Nepal  150,000  100,000 

Total  150,000  100,000.00 

6. Property Plant and Equipment

Accounting	Policy

All property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 
to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

 Data Center     5 Years
 Vehicle     5 Years
 Furniture and Fixtures   6 Years
 Computers and Office Equipment 5 years
 Software     5 years
 Leasehold improvements  life of the lease period

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of 
financial position date.  The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not 
material.

At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s 
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down 
immediately to the recoverable amount.

Assets with cost below NRs 5,000 are charged off as revenue expenditure.Gains and losses on disposal is 
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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NPR

Balance as at 
01/04/2073

Additions	during	
the year

Disposals during 
the year

Balance as at 
31/03/2074

Total WDV 91,957,783 1,038,058 95,962 92,899,879

IBM Hardware (Work In Progress) 82,142,682 - - 82,142,682

Computers, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment 3,691,129 1,038,058 95,962 4,633,225

Vehicle 5,104,807 - - 5,104,807

Plant and Machinery 1,019,165 - - 1,019,165

Total	Depreciation 2,064,493 - 2,064,493

IBM Hardware (Work In Progress) -

Computers, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment 839,699 839,699

Vehicle 1,020,961 1,020,961

Plant and Machinery 203,833 203,833

Net Book Value at 31st Ashad 2074 90,835,386

IBM Hardware (Work In Progress) 82,142,682

Computers, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment 3,793,526

Vehicle 4,083,846

Plant and Machinery 815,332

Net Book Value at 31st Ashad 2073 91,957,783

Balance as at 
01/04/2074

Additions	during	
the year

Disposals during 
the year

Balance as at 
32/03/2075

Total WDV  90,835,386  4,204,362  2,205 95,037,543

IBM Hardware  82,142,682  -    82,142,682 

Computers, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment  3,793,526  2,210,082  6,003,608

Vehicle  4,083,846  1,994,280  2,205  6,075,921 

Plant and Machinery  815,332  815,332 

Total	Depreciation  18,803,577  -    18,803,577 

IBM Hardware  16,428,536  16,428,536 

Computers, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment  1,102,716  1,102,716 

Vehicle  1,068,492  1,068,492 

Plant and Machinery  203,833  203,833 

Net Book Value at 32nd Ashad 2075  76,233,966

IBM Hardware  65,714,146 

Computers, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment  4,900,892

Vehicle  5,007,429 

Plant and Machinery  611,499 

Net Book Value at 31st Ashad 2074  90,835,386 

Explanatory Notes
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7. Intangible assets

Accounting	Policy

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability 
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Company, and are amortised on the 
basis of their expected useful lives.  

Computer	software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring 
to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalised where it is 
probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are 
amortised on the basis of expected useful life.  Costs associated with maintaining software are recognised 
as an expense when incurred. 

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s 
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down 
immediately.

Explanatory Notes  NPR 

 Balance as at 
01/04/2073 

	Additions	during	
the year 

 Disposals during 
the year 

 Balance as at 
31/03/2074 

Total WDV 183,705,398 566,421 - 184,271,819

Building, Structures and similar Works of 
Permanent Nature 2,160,420 - - 2,160,420

old software 42,061 - - 42,061

Oracle, Microsoft & Other Software (WIP) 179,152,143 - - 179,152,143

Software & Others 2,350,774 566,421 - 2,917,195

Total	Amortization - - 354,011

Building, Structures and similar Works of 
Permanent Nature 216,042

Old software 42,061

Software & Others 95,908

Net Book Value at 31st Ashad 2074 183,917,808

Building, Structures and similar Works of 
Permanent Nature 1,944,378

Oracle, Microsoft & Other software (WIP) 179,152,143

Old software -

Software & Others 2,821,287

Net Book Value at 31st Ashad 2073 183,705,398
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NPR
 Balance as at 

01/04/2074 
	Additions	during	

the year 
Disposals during 

the year 
 Balance as at 

32/03/2075 
Total WDV  183,917,808  108,431,490  -    292,349,298 
Building, Structures and similar Works of 
Permanent Nature

 1,944,378  -    -    1,944,378 

New Software  -    108,431,490  -    108,431,490 
Oracle, Microsoft & Other Softwares  179,152,143  -    179,152,143 
Software & Others  2,821,287  -    -    2,821,287 
Total	Amortization  -    -    58,357,130 
Building, Structures and similar Works of 
Permanent Nature

 -    216,042  -    216,042 

New Software  -    21,727,220  -    21,727,220 
Oracle, Microsoft & Other Softwares  -    35,830,429  -    35,830,429 
Software & Others  -    583,439  -    583,439 
Net Book Value at 32nd Ashad 2075  233,992,168 
Building, Structures and similar Works of 
Permanent Nature

 1,728,336 

New Software  86,704,270 
Oracle, Microsoft & Other Softwares  143,321,714 
Software & Others  2,237,848 
Net Book Value at 31st Ashad 2074  183,917,808 

8.	 Employee	Benefits

Accounting Policy

Retirement benefit obligations (Provident Fund, Gratuity & Leave)

The Company operates a defined contribution plan as provident fund contribution of its employees and 
defined benefit plans for the Gratuity payment requirement under its employee’s byelaws.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to the publicly administered provident fund 
plans (named Employee Provident Fund) on a mandatory basis, and such amounts are charged to operating 
expenses. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

For defined benefit plans (ie; Gratuity) and long term benefit plan (ie; accumulated leave), the liability 
recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less 
the fair value of plan assets. Such obligations are estimated on the basis of the computation made by the 
Company as provided in its employees byelaws which is considered approximate to actuarial assumptions by 
the management for staff eligible under gratuity as per employee byelaws. Third Party Actuarial Valuation is 
not made as the number of staff entitled to this benefit is only 3 and the cost for defined benefits obligation 
is considered not material. Further the cost of actual valuation exceeds the benefits to be received from such 
valuation. From Bhadra 2074, the company is providing gratuity to all staff excluding three staff eligible for 
gratuity as per Employee Byelaws at 8.33% of basis salary per month in accordance with the new Labour 
Act 2074. As the contribution amount of the company is fixed, this liability is treated as defined contribution 
plan and expenses off every month.

Performance Incentive

The Company set asides NRs. 1,000,000 as incentive package to its staff which is provided to staff on the 
basis of their individual performance appraisal. Any amount remaining after providing such incentive is 
carried forward to next year. The company recognize full package of NRs 1,000,000 as performance incentive 
expenses on accrual basis.  

Staff Bonus
The Company has set asides 10% of its accounting profit as staff bonus from this FY 2074/75 as per the 
decision of Honorable Supreme Court in one of the case dated 2073/04/30. Earlier the bonus has been set 
aside on net profit computed including such bonus. 

Explanatory Notes
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8.1	 Current	Employee	benefits

Following employee benefits costs are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

 32nd Ashad 2075  31st Ashad 2074 

Salary and Allowance 14,534,288  11,952,856 

Provident Fund 686,769  451,832 

Leave Encashment 377,032  451,255 

Leave Provision 472,623  89,257 

Gratuity 1,526,394  439,977 

Performance Incentive 1,000,000  800,000 

Uniform Expenses 332,284  249,395 

Total  18,929,391 14,434,572

Staff Bonus 29,681,975 19,306,564

Total	Staff	Cost	including	Bonus  48,611,366 33,741,136

8.2	 Retirement	Benefit

FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

Opening Liability  3,176,553  4,451,113 

Interest Cost  -   -   

Current Service Cost  2,376,049.00  980,489 

Less: Gratuity & Leave Paid during the Year  (377,032)  (2,255,049)

Actuarial Gain or Loss  -    -   

Closing Liability  5,175,570  3,176,553 

Defined	Benefit	Plan-	Assets

FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

Opening Assets 1,178,240  2,542,058 

(+) Estimated Investment Returns for the year              312,304 -   

(+) Additional Investment during the Year              1,903,426  891,231 

(-) Withdrawal (payouts during the year)            (377,032)  (2,255,049)

Actuarial Gain or Loss                           -    -   

Closing Assets            3,016,938  1,178,240 

Net Charge FY 2074/75 FY 2074/73

Net Charge - P & L 2,063,745 980,489 

Net Charge (credit) - SOCE - -

 32nd Ashad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

Gratuity Liability at the End  2,704,634  1,178,241 

Leave Liability at the End  2,470,936  1,998,312 

Total Liability  5,175,570  3,176,553 

Balance for Gratuity Fund at CIT  3,016,938  1,178,241 

Net Liability  2,158,632  1,998,312 
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NPR 

32-3-2075 No of share Value per share Capital in Value

Authorized capital 3,000,000  100 300,000,000

Issued capital 2,326,680  100 232,668,000

Paid up capital 2,326,680  100 232,668,000

31-3-2074 No of share  Value per share Capital in Value

Authorized capital 1,500,000  100 150,000,000

Issued capital 1,551,120  100 155,112,000

Paid up capital 1,551,120  100 155,112,000

9. Share Capital

Accounting	Policy

Financial instruments issues are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer 
cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments.  Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognised in equity in the period in which they are 
declared.

Explanatory Notes

9.1 Share capital detail

 The company’s registered capital structure is as follows

9.2	 Share	ownership	detail

The shareholding pattern of the company is as follows

Shareholder Category
 32nd Ashad 2075  31st Ashad 2074 

% of holding % of holding

Nepal Rastra Bank 10.03% 10.03%

"A" Class Institution 76.18% 71.35%

"B" Class Institution 5.53% 9.61%

"C" Class Institution 8.27% 9.01%

Total 100% 100%

10. Reserves

Accounting Policy

The reserves includes the following reserves.

10.1 General Reserve

The company sets aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve every year until the General Reserve is 
equal to two times it paid up capital as mentioned in section 18 (b)(4) of its Article of Association.
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NPR

Particulars  32nd Ashad 2075  31st Ashad 2074 

Retained Earnings  381,533,690  337,093,050 

General Reserve  179,326,914  139,300,916 

Capital Reserve  7,299,257  7,299,257 

Total  568,159,861  483,693,223 

10.2 Capital Reserve

The company has unused capital reserve since earlier years.

Explanatory Notes

10.3	 Movement	in	reserves

Movements in the reserves are given in detail in Statement of Changes in Equity.

11. Grant

Accounting Policy

The company recognizes government grant only when there is a reasonable assurance that the company will 
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Grants relating to intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and 
are credited to the profit or loss over the expected lives of the related assets.

Explanatory Note

 Under SOFP

 32nd Ashad 2075  31stAshad 2074 

Asian Development Bank 231,369,813 231,369,813

Less: Grant Assets Depreciation/income (46,273,963) -

Total 185,095,850 231,369,813

Under SOPL

 32nd Ashad 2075  31st Ashad 2074 

Grant Income  46,273,963 

Total  46,273,963  -   

The grant was received from Asian Development Bank in 2070/71 for the implementation of Microfinance 
Bureau System. The system has been ready to be used from the current fiscal year. The depreciation on 
hardware and amortization of software is charged to depreciation and amortization expenses respectively 
and the corresponding amount charged as grant income.

12.	 Taxation

Accounting	Policy

Income tax payable on profits is based on the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act 2058 BS and is 
recognized as an expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred 
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income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting date which is expected 
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Current and deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or 
charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognized in the statement of profit or loss together with the 
current or deferred gain or loss.

Explanatory Notes

12.1 Current Taxes

The Company‘s current tax liabilities are calculated using the Income Tax Act 2058 BS as applicable in Nepal.  
Current tax payable (or recoverable) is based on the taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from 
the profit reported in the statement or profit or loss, because some item of income or expense are taxable 
or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible.

12.2	 Tax	Settlement	Status

The Company’s income tax has not been assessed by the tax authorities till date.

12.3 Deferred Taxes

2074/75 NPR

Particulars Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary	Diff

Property, Plant & Equipment 310,226,135 312,428,782 (2,202,647)

Defined Benefit Plan Prov 5,175,570 - (5,175,570)

Performance Incentive 304,523 - (304,523)

Lease Liability 491,593 - (491,593)

Investment 1,894,200 1,000,000 894,200

Total (7,280,134)

Tax Rate @  (1,820,034)  (1,820,034)

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - 32-03-2075  (1,820,034)

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2074-75  (1,455,877)

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - 31-03-2074  (364,157)

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2074-75 
P&L

 (1,679,427)

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2074-75 
OCI

 223,550 
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2073/74 NPR

Particulars Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary	Diff

Property, Plant & Equipment 13,458,369 10,919,489 2,538,880

Defined Benefit Plan Provision 3,176,553 - (3,176,553)

Performance Incentive 327,360 - (327,360)

Lease Liability 491,593 - (491,593)

Total (1,456,626)

Tax Rate @ 25% (364,157)

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - 31-03-2074 (364,157)

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2073-74 724,651

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - 31-03-2073 (1,088,808)

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2073-74 
P&L

724,651

Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2073-74 
OCI

-

13.	 Assets	held	for	sale	and	discontinued	operations

Accounting Policy

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the 
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 
value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are 
available-for-sale in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and 
liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described 
above.

Explanatory Notes

There are no assets that meet the recognition criteria for assets held for sale and discontinued operation.  

14. Foreign Currencies

The Company does not have any foreign currency denominated Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses. 

15.	 General	Administrative	Expenses

Accounting Policy

Lease rental for premises are charged on straight line basis in accordance to the lease.  All other expenses 
are recognised when they become due for payment.

Note- The Company has entered into lease agreement from 1 Shrawan 2073 for a period of 10 years with 
Heritage Plaza Private Ltd. for lease property.

All the general administrative expenses are recognised when the benefit is received by the company. 

Explanatory Notes
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 NPR
 32ndAshad 2075  31st Ashad 2074 

Actual Office Rent  2,224,200  2,224,200 
Office Rent (As per NFRS on Operating Lease)  491,592.72  491,593 
Utility Expenses  2,178,889  1,283,242 
Printing And Stationery Expenses  197,195  136,956 
Fuel  239,312  235,666 
Postal Charge  -    3,271 
Repair and Maintenance  92,481  86,425 
AMC of hardware and third party software 24,516,650 24,342,011 
Meeting Expenses  402,278  222,746 
i. Meeting Allowances  383,000  211,000 
ii. Other Meeting Expenses  19,278  11,746 
Telephone Charge  85,095  78,311 
Training Expenses  248,888  229,244 
Travelling Expenses  451,962  926,558 
Insurance Expenses  295,551  275,599 
Audit Fee  260,701  234,519 
  i. External Audit Fee  129,000  117,134 
  ii. Internal Audit Fee  113,000  113,000 
  iii. Audit Expenses  18,701  4,385 
Books And Periodicals  24,730  3,450 
Legal Expenses  313,748  262,650 
i. Legal Fee  278,148  254,150 
  ii. Other Legal Expenses  35,600  8,500 
Web Charge  814,520  881,400 
Paper & Publication  181,463  61,221 
Miscellaneous Expenses  44,505  276,466 
AGM Expenses  395,221  312,020 
Furniture and Equipment Expenses  57,816  60,079 
Festival and Ceremony Expenses  190,644  190,620 
Business Expenses  196,365  200,000 
Corporate Social Responsibilities  125,000  58,000 
Total 34,028,807 33,076,247

16.	 Depreciation	and	Amortisation

Accounting	Policy

The Company’s accounting policy related to the depreciation of property plant and equipment has been 
discussed in Note 6.

Amortisation of expenses, wherever appropriate is apportioned on the basis of the pattern of the economic 
benefit derived, which is usually on the time apportioned basis.

Explanatory Notes

 32ndAshad 2075 31stAshad 2074
Depreciation (refer note 6)  18,803,577  2,064,493 
Amortization (refer note 6) 58,357,130 354,011
Total 77,160,707 2,418,504
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17. Related Party Disclosures

Accounting	Policy
The Company identifies following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.
i) Shareholders having shareholding of 4% or more during the year. 

ii) Companies represented by the Directors. 

iii) Directors of the Company and their close family members if any 

iv) Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members if any

Explanatory Notes

Share Holder
 32nd Ashad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

 % of holding  % of holding 
Nepal Rastra Bank* 10.03% 10.03%
NIC Asia Bank 4.06% 4.06%
Siddhartha Bank 4.84% 4.84%
Laxmi Bank 5.01% 5.01%
Prabhu Bank 5.45% 5.45%
Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 7.05% 7.05%
Nepal Investment Bank * 7.12% 4.06%
Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank* 4.06% 1.54%
Kumari Bank Ltd.* 3.81% 3.54%
Nabil Bank Ltd.* 3.54% 3.54%
Nepal SBI Bank* 3.54% 3.54%
Goodwill Finance Ltd.* 0.59% 0.59%

17.1	 Significant	Shareholders

*Note: Shareholding represented by directors

17.2	 Transaction	with	Subsidiary	of	Significant	Shareholders

The following balance lies with the related parties as at the end of the financial year.

Related Party Fixed Deposit Bank Balance
Nepal Rastra Bank - 66,769
NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 20,000,000 -
Siddhartha Bank  Ltd. - -
Laxmi Bank Ltd. 35,000,000 -
Prabhu Bank Ltd. 30,000,000 15,718,469
Bank of Kathmandu Ltd 75,000,000 319,547
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 105,000,000 -
Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank Ltd. 44,600,000 -
Kumari Bank Ltd. 57,000,000 -
Nabil Bank Ltd. - -
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. - -
Goodwill Finance Ltd. 8,000,000 -
Total 374,600,000 16,104,785

The interest income earned on the fixed deposit and the amount receivable is presented below:
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Shareholder
 Interest Income 

Earned  Interest received  Accrued Interest 

NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 1,218,356 831,781 386,575

Laxmi Bank Ltd. 3,239,987 3,239,987 -

Prabhu Bank Ltd. 3,459,672 3,032,384 427,288

Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 6,157,424 6,006,033 151,392

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 6,635,651 5,317,262 1,318,390

Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank Ltd. 3,587,140 2,472,163 1,114,977

Kumari Bank Ltd. 1,914,121 1,914,121 -

Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 1,880,809 1,146,199 734,609

Goodwill Finance Ltd. 2,525,560 1,832,847 692,712

17.3	 Transactions	with	and	payments	to	directors	of	the	Company

Following payments have been made to the directors of the Company

FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

Directors' Meeting Allowance  383,000  211,000 

Other Meeting Expenses  19,278  11,746 

Total  402,278  222,746 

Details of the board of directors and their composition, and changes if any during the period, are disclosed 
in the director’s report. There have been no payment or transactions with the close family member of the 
directors. 

17.4	 Transactions	with	and	payment	to	key	management	personnel	

The Company defines its Chief Executive Officer as the key management personnel.  Payment of NRs. 
6,106,550 as made to the Chief Executive Officer during the FY 2074/75 as per the Contract. In addition to 
that Vehicle facility is provided to the CEO. 

There have been no payment or transactions with the close family member of the key managerial personnel. 

18.	 Events	after	reporting	period

Accounting Policy

The company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and 
/ or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period.  All adjusting events are adjusted in the 
books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible 
financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

Explanatory Notes

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 32nd Ashad 2075 till the signing of this 
financial statement.
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19.	 Contingent	Liabilities	and	Commitments	

Explanatory Notes

The Company seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, but may be subject to regulatory 
actions and investigations, the outcome of which are generally difficult to predict and can be material to the 
Company. Furthermore, there are court cases pending against the company on account of “Blacklisting”. 
The Company considers none of these claims as material. 

Where appropriate, the Company recognizes a provision for liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of 
economic resources embodying economic benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can be 
made of the obligation(s). As on Ashad End 2075 there is no Contingent Liabilities. 

20.	 Cash	Flow	Statements

20.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting Policy

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with Banks.

Explanatory Notes

32ndAshad 2075 31st Ashad 2074

Cash in Hand  -    -   

Cash at Bank  18,955,633  25,682,370 

Total  18,955,633  25,682,370 

21. Dividends

Accounting	Policy

Distribution of profit to the shareholders is done by way of payment of cash dividend and /or issue of bonus 
shares.  Applicable withholding taxes are deducted from such distribution.  The distributions are proposed by 
the board and approved by the general meeting.  The proposed dividend and bonus shares are not adjusted 
in the books instead disclosed by way of notes.

Proposed	Distributions	(Dividends	and	Bonus	Shares)

The Board has recommended 25% as cash dividend and 50% bonus shares for the reported year, 2074-
75 based on paid up capital of Ashad End 2075. This proposal of the Board of Directors is subject to the 
ratification by the Annual General meeting of the Shareholders.

Dividends FY 2074/75 FY 2073/74

Cash Dividend Declared  58,167,000                38,778,000 

Bonus Share  116,334,000                77,556,000 

Total 174,501,000               116,334,000 
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